








 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MEETING 
 

 

 
       

 

 

 

 

       

 

 

 
 

OCTOBER 1, 2012 

1



BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

OMAHA, NEBRASKA 

 

BOARD MEETING                STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER 

6:00 P.M.                              5606 SOUTH 147th STREET 

                                                      October 1, 2012 

  

AGENDA 

 

A. Call to Order 

 

The Public Meeting Act is posted on the Wall and Available for Public Inspection 

 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

C. Roll Call 

 

D. Public Comments on agenda items – This is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda items 

only.  Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins. 

 

E. Routine Matters 

1. *Approval of Board of Education Minutes – September 17, 2012 

2. *Approval of Bills 

3. *Receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File 

4. Committee of the Whole Meeting – September 24, 2012 

 

F. Information Items 

1. Employees of the Month 

2. Superintendent’s Comments 

3. Board Comments/Announcements 

4. Report from Student Representatives 

 

G. Unfinished Business: 

 

H. New Business 

1.    Approval of Superintendent Goals for 2012-2013 

2.    Reaffirm Policy 6040 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Ceremonies and Observances 

3.    Approval of Rule 6040.1 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - Ceremonies and Observances – Flag   

       Salute and Treatment 

4.    Approval of Rule 6040.2 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - Ceremonies and Observances –      

Pledge of Allegiance  

5.    Reaffirm Policy 6920 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Community Resources 

6.    Approval of Rule 7305.1 – Technology – Web Publishing and Social Media 

7.    Approval of Resolution authorizing, approving, ratifying and confirming the preparation of not exceeding      

       $14,500,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2012, of Douglas County School District 017, in 

       the State of Nebraska, also known as Millard Public Schools; the Official Notice of bond Sale and 

       Preliminary Official Statement relating to said bonds; the delivery of the Preliminary Official Statement 

       relating to said  Bonds; the delivery of the Preliminary Official Statement and the publication of the Official 

       Notice of Bond Sale; and authorizing and directing the receipt of proposals to purchase said Bonds. 

8.    Approval of Personnel Action:   New Hire 

     

I. Reports 

1. Summer School 2012 Report 

2. ACT, SAT 2011-2012 Report 

3. Enrollment Report 

 

J. Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar  

1. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, October 15, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 South 147th Street  

2. Special Board Meeting on Wednesday, October 17, 2012 at 12:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 S. 147
th

  Street 

2



 

 

Board Meeting Agenda 

October 1, 2012   

Page 2 

 

 

 

3. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, October 22, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 South 147
th

 Street 

4. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, November 5, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 South 147th Street  

5. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, November 12, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh 

Administration Center, 5606 South 147
th

 Street 

5.    Board of Education Meeting on Monday, November 19, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

        Center, 5606 South 147th Street 

6.  Board of Education Meeting on Monday, December 3, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 South 147th Street 

7. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, December 17, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 South 147th Street 

 

K. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic.  Please make sure a 

request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins. 

L.    Adjournment:   

All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single motion.  Items may 

be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member. 

 

 

3



BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

OMAHA, NEBRASKA  

 

BOARD MEETING            STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER 

6:00 P.M.                              5606 SOUTH 147TH STREET 

                                      October 1, 2012 

                                                                              

ADMINISTRATIVE MEMORANDUM 

 

A. Call to Order 

 

The Public Meeting Act is posted on the Wall and Available for Public Inspection 

 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

C. Roll Call 

 

D. Public Comments on agenda items - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda items only.  Please 

 make sure a request form is given to the Board President prior to the meeting. 

 

*E.1. Motion by                     , seconded by, ______________, to approve the Board of Education Minutes – September 17, 2012 

(See enclosure.) 

 

*E.2. Motion by                     , seconded by                     , to approve the bills.  (See enclosures.) 

 

*E.3.  Motion by                     , seconded by                     , to receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File.  (See enclosure.) 

 

E.4.  Summary of Board Committee of the Whole Meeting – September 24, 2012. 

 

F.1   Employees of the Month 

 

F.2.  Superintendent’s Comments  

 

F.3. Board Comments/Announcements 

  

F.4. Report from Student Representatives 

 

H1. Motion by ______________, seconded by _______________, to approve the Superintendent Goals for 2012-2013 (See 

  enclosure.) 

 

H.2.   Motion by  ______________ ,  seconded  by  ________________ ,  to  reaffirm  Policy 6040 – Curriculum, Instruction, and 

Assessment – Ceremonies and Observances (See enclosure.) 

 

H.3.  Motion by______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Rule 6040.1 – Curriculum, Instruction, and 

Assessment – Ceremonies and Observances – Flag Salute and Treatment (See enclosure.) 

  

H.4.   Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Rule 6040.2 – Curriculum, Instruction, and 

Assessment – Ceremonies and Observances – Pledge of Allegiance (See enclosure.) 

 

H.5.        Motion by ______________, seconded by________________, to reaffirm Policy 6920 – Curriculum, Instruction, and 

Assessment   -  Community Resources (See enclosure.) 

 

H.6.       Motion by______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Rule7305.1 –Technology – Web and Social  

        Media  (See enclosure.) 

 

H.7.   Motion  by ____________, seconded by ________________.   I move the passage and adoption of the Resolution 

authorizing, approving, ratifying and confirming the preparation of not exceeding $14,500,000 General Obligation 

Refunding Bonds, Series 2012, of Douglas County School District 017, in the State of Nebraska, also known as Millard 

Public Schools; the Official Notice of Bond Sale and Preliminary Official Statement relating to said Bonds; the delivery of 

the Preliminary Official Statement and the publication of the Official Notice of Bond Sale; and authorizing and directing 

the receipt of proposals to purchase said Bonds. 

   

  

 

4



 

Board Meeting Agenda 

October 1, 2012 

Page 2 

 

 

 

H.8.  Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Personnel Action: New Hire (See enclosure.) 

 

I.  Reports 

  1.  Summer School 2012 Report 

 2.  ACT, SAT 2012-2012 Report 

 3.  Enrollment Report 

  

J.  Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar 

1. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, October 15, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 

South 147th Street 

2. Special Board Meeting on Wednesday, October 17, 2012, 2012, at 12:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 

5606 S. 147
th

 Street 

3. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, October 22, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 

5606 South 147th Street 

4. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, November 5, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 

South 147th Street 

5. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, November 12, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 

5606 South 147th Street 

6. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, November 19, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 

South 147th Street 

7. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, December 3, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 

South 147th Street 

8. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, December 17, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 

South 147th Street 

 

K. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic.  Please make sure a request form is 

given to the Board President before the meeting begins. 

 

L.    Adjournment   All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single motion.  

Items may be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member. 

 

 

 

5







 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Millard Public Schools 
October 1, 2012 

 

8



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  October 1, 2012

Date: 9/26/2012

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
AMSAN LLC069689396837 37.15 
COX COMMUNICATIONS INC108436396838 44,403.79 
DOUGLAS COUNTY TREASURER033901396839 90.00 
WRIGHT EXPRESS FINANCIAL SVCS CORP138496396841 22,231.77 
ANTHONY W GUTIERREZ139027396843 50.00 
GEORGE W JELKIN135735396844 223.00 
NEBRASKA ACADEMY OF SCIENCES133225396848 123.00 
NEBRASKA ACADEMY OF SCIENCES133225396849 43.00 
NEBRASKA ASSN TEACHERS MATHEMATICS135742396850 210.00 
NEBRASKA STATE BANDMASTERS ASSN067027396851 175.00 
BRIAN L NELSON107732396852 50.00 
NE SPEECH COMMUNICATION & THEATRE132625396853 50.00 
OMAHA PUBLIC SCHOOLS070810396854 150.00 
SECURITY BENEFIT LIFE INS CO098765396855 3,150.00 
JEFF WARNOCK133224396856 75.00 
WESTSIDE HIGH SCHOOL099997396857 100.00 
DANIEL P WOOTTON138505396858 75.00 
AMERICAN EXPRESS011651396876 7,250.49 
ECHO ELECTRIC SUPPLY CO052370396878 0.00 
NATIONAL ASSN FOR MUSIC EDUCATION063097396879 109.00 
NEBRASKA INTERNATL LANGUAGES ASSN136955396880 80.00 
NEBRASKA INTERNATL LANGUAGES ASSN136955396881 320.00 
BRIAN L NELSON107732396882 275.00 
NEBRASKA STATE BANDMASTERS ASSN067027396883 0.00 
NE SPEECH COMMUNICATION & THEATRE132625396884 30.00 
SAMUEL FRENCH INC041500396885 450.00 
SECURITY BENEFIT LIFE INS CO098765396886 19,257.50 
SUNGARD PUBLIC SECTOR NATL USER GRP138771396887 262.50 
RUDOLPH A VLCEK III135863396888 100.00 
DANIEL P WOOTTON138505396889 50.00 
ECHO ELECTRIC SUPPLY CO052370396890 1,952.86 
NEBRASKA STATE BANDMASTERS ASSN067027396891 98.00 
AC AWARDS INC131632396892 90.00 
ACCUCUT LLC010298396894 161.00 
AFFORDABLE COMPUTER PRODUCTS INC132004396895 212.50 
KAREN S ADAMS133402396896 60.83 
AKSARBEN PIPE AND SEWER CLEAN LLC133620396898 1,435.20 
AMAZON.COM INC107651396900 839.08 
AAHPERD/AMERICAN ALLIANCE HEALTH011241396901 135.00 
AMERICAN MATHEMATICS COMPETITIONS012067396902 84.00 
AMERICAN ORFF-SCHULWERK ASSN135652396903 643.00 
AMERICAN PLASTICS SUPPLY & FAB CO130704396904 1,016.40 
AMSAN LLC069689396905 76,186.23 
HOLLAND USA INC012590396906 239.70 
ANTHRO CORP101318396907 38.08 
APPERSON138550396908 1,489.32 

9



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  October 1, 2012

Date: 9/26/2012

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
APPLE COMPUTER INC012989396909 4,772.95 
AQUA-CHEM INC106436396910 7,851.03 
DIANE ARAUJO133770396911 34.24 
ARLO GRAFTON130574396912 380.00 
ART STUDIO CLAY COMPANY013209396913 1,654.87 
ASCD013496396914 254.17 
SARAH A ASCHENBRENNER134235396915 112.11 
AUTISM ASPERGERS PUBLISHING CO134427396916 65.90 
AUTISM CENTER OF NEBRASKA INC138291396917 776.23 
ARNOLD MOTOR SUPPLY LP108092396918 442.77 
BAHR VERMEER HAECKER ARCHITECTS135245396919 3,125.00 
BAKERS CANDIES INC138048396920 364.50 
REX J BARKER017908396922 53.45 
BARNES AND NOBLE BOOKSTORE099646396923 1,071.71 
CYNTHIA L BARR-MCNAIR017877396924 140.30 
LORI A BARTELS107979396925 148.74 
MARY A BAYNE134584396926 39.07 
BRIAN F BEGLEY107540396927 64.38 
JULIE K BERGSTROM134884396929 19.65 
BERKLEY RISK ADMINISTRATORS CO LLC139161396931 14,368.00 
NOLAN J BEYER134945396932 213.12 
BIORIDGE PHARMA LLC139340396933 1,457.30 
BISHOP BUSINESS EQUIPMENT019111396934 386.92 
BIZCO INC139321396935 1,868.00 
BLAND & ASSOCIATES PC136105396936 890.00 
DICK BLICK CO099220396937 576.63 
MATTHEW J BLOMENKAMP138841396938 33.97 
TIFFANY M BOCK SMITH134478396939 47.73 
DOUGLAS J BOGATZ139344396940 38.30 
KIMBERLY M BOLAN130899396941 177.60 
PAMELA A BRENNAN130576396943 240.32 
BRETFORD MANUFACTURING INC137843396944 526.56 
BRIGGS, INC.019861396945 4.86 
SCHOOL SPECIALTY INC130303396946 221.53 
ALLISON M BROWN138640396947 38.07 
NANCY A BROWN133824396948 25.75 
BSN SPORTS INC099417396949 109.96 
EILEEN CABRERA137274396950 15.26 
CAMBIUM LEARNING134350396951 2,636.70 
ELIZABETH J CAREY106806396952 39.57 
CAROLINA BIOLOGICAL SUPPLY CO023970396953 4,288.54 
CURTIS R CASE131158396954 59.94 
CCS PRESENTATION SYSTEMS133970396955 10,963.48 
CDW GOVERNMENT, INC.133589396956 1,268.77 
CENGAGE LEARNING051572396957 802.00 
CENTRAL SALES INC138613396958 417.36 

10



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  October 1, 2012

Date: 9/26/2012

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
SUSAN M CHADWICK135648396959 41.24 
JULIE CHALOUPKA139345396960 17.99 
ERIK P CHAUSSEE132271396961 33.30 
JILL R CLASSEN138843396962 26.88 
SCHOOL SPECIALTY INC099222396963 1,273.58 
DALE CLAUSEN025235396964 195.92 
PATRICIA A CLIFTON131135396965 56.94 
LISA L CLINARD136780396966 29.71 
NANCY S COLE137013396967 150.68 
SHARON R COMISAR-LANGDON022701396968 125.99 
COMMERCIAL FLOORING SYSTEMS INC025562396969 6,529.50 
COMMUNICATION SERVICES INC.106902396970 249.55 
COMPUTYPE INC136791396971 820.80 
OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CTRS OF NE PC135082396972 442.00 
CONTROL MASTERS INC026057396973 1,361.00 
CONTROLLED COMFORT INC139130396974 9,512.50 
CORWIN PRESS INC026537396975 0.00 
CPI QUALIFIED PLAN CONSULTANTS INC137395396977 887.50 
MANSON WESTERN CORPORATION137377396978 54.95 
JODI L CRITSER132845396979 27.75 
CUMMINS CENTRAL POWER LLC027300396981 11,159.29 
CURRICULUM ASSOCIATES INC027345396982 4,121.37 
CHERYL L CUSTARD130900396983 87.14 
D & D COMMUNICATIONS130731396984 864.56 
JEAN T DAIGLE132671396985 116.56 
ANGELA M DAIGLE134751396986 22.42 
DAILY RECORD131003396987 237.30 
MIDWEST HARDWOODS138477396988 74.56 
JASON DANNELLY139342396989 25.00 
STACY L DARNOLD138306396990 95.02 
PAMELA M DAVIS032246396991 50.45 
DELTA EDUCATION LLC099249396993 399,160.87 
DEMCO INC032800396994 180.34 
DENNIS SUPPLY COMPANY032872396995 263.75 
EVA M DENTON136316396996 47.18 
BASTIAN DERICHS137331396997 41.57 
LYNN DETHLOFF139346396998 22.20 
DEX MEDIA EAST LLC109850396999 238.60 
DIDAX INC033466397000 513.24 
DIETZE MUSIC HOUSE INC033473397001 485.52 
DIGITAL DOT SYSTEMS INC132669397002 167.00 
DIGITAL EXPRESS INC136179397003 139.20 
DIGITAL RIVER EDUCATION SVCS INC138677397004 320.00 
LINDA K DONOHUE135373397005 56.61 
DOUGLAS COUNTY SCHOOL DIST.28-0001130908397009 452,159.18 
SUSAN M DULANY135689397011 100.62 

11



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  October 1, 2012

Date: 9/26/2012

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
JEANNE J DYMOND137117397012 15.98 
ERIC ARMIN INC102791397013 69.73 
EARTHWALK COMMUNICATIONS INC138021397014 75.90 
EASTERN NEBRASKA HUMAN SVCS AGENCY036520397015 12,665.00 
EDUCATIONAL SERVICE UNIT #6037526397017 600.00 
EDUCATIONAL SERVICE UNIT 10109135397018 1,470.00 
EDUCATIONAL SERVICE UNIT #3037525397019 274.07 
REBECCA S EHRHORN133823397020 242.53 
ELECTRONIC SOUND INC.038140397021 1,591.66 
JAMES J LEONARD138810397022 2,362.50 
ELSEVIER SCIENCE131907397023 1,264.08 
ENGINEERED CONTROLS INC132066397024 109.00 
ERIC L ENGSTROM134883397025 33.81 
TED H ESSER109066397028 122.10 
A DAIGGER & CO INC035610397029 34.32 
ETC PRESS INC136937397030 20.99 
JOHN T FABRY106735397031 162.62 
FATHER FLANAGANS BOYS HOME132699397032 6,212.50 
FATHER FLANAGANS BOYS HOME132699397033 43.35 
FEDEX OFFICE AND PRINT SERVICES INC056724397034 18.00 
FEINER SUPPLY CO136377397035 172.60 
ALICIA C FEIST131826397036 49.28 
MARK W FELDHAUSEN040470397037 41.25 
ANGELA L FERGUSON137016397038 81.71 
SHARON A FIELD139337397039 93.20 
FILTER SHOP INC133919397040 3,326.72 
FIRST NATIONAL BANK TRUST DEPT040902397041 500.00 
LAIDLAW TRANSIT INC058755397042 13,461.22 
SHANNON M FISCHER109855397043 48.29 
FISHER SCIENTIFIC040919397044 248.75 
FLEET US LLC136370397045 6,048.00 
FLINN SCIENTIFIC INC041086397046 589.20 
FOLLETT EDUCATIONAL SERVICES041098397047 132.00 
FOLLETT LIBRARY RESOURCES041100397048 3,403.84 
KENNETH J FOSSEN041146397049 493.73 
ERIC W FULLER134168397051 129.09 
GALE GROUP109036397052 59,003.62 
GAME PLAN TECHNOLOGIES INC139311397053 934.00 
MEGAN E GEERTS137543397054 27.29 
GLASSMASTERS INC106660397056 1,088.49 
GLOGSTER EC INC139320397057 99.00 
GOODWILL INDUSTRIES INC044886397058 240.00 
GOPHER044891397059 3,720.00 
KAREN A GORDON044896397060 62.36 
GRAINGER INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY044950397062 1,169.40 
GRAYBAR ELECTRIC COMPANY INC099888397063 150.84 

12



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  October 1, 2012

Date: 9/26/2012

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
GREENLIFE GARDENS133885397064 380.00 
KRISTIN R GREENWALD138845397065 50.51 
JANET L GRIERSON134133397066 8.33 
CANDRA R GUENTHER135016397067 45.29 
HANCOCK FABRICS101931397068 145.73 
HAPPY CAB COMPANY INC047853397069 12,888.25 
HARDING & SHULTZ PC LLO138297397070 750.00 
HARRIS COMPUTER CORPF03042397071 1,354.30 
HARRY A KOCH COMPANY056820397072 99,611.59 
CHERYL L HEADLEY139347397073 52.73 
HEARTLAND FOUNDATION048475397074 1,860.00 
MARGARET HEBENSTREIT PT108273397076 117.27 
GREENWOOD PUBLISHING GROUP INC048517397077 1,176.18 
DAVID C HEMPHILL108478397078 30.08 
JENNIFER HERZOG133186397079 80.00 
HEWLETT PACKARD CO132423397080 1,007.69 
ELAINE HILL134441397082 18.04 
CAMILLE H HINZ048845397083 34.24 
STACY M HORSHAM137943397086 152.84 
VICTORIA L HOSKOVEC136336397087 283.61 
HOUCHEN BINDERY LTD049600397088 22.20 
HOUGHTON MIFFLIN HARCOURT PUB CO049650397089 600.85 
AMY L HOULTON109836397090 124.88 
DIANE F HOWARD101533397091 30.75 
HUSKER MIDWEST PRINTING101032397092 147.30 
MONICA A HUTFLES134807397093 64.44 
KARA L HUTTON130283397094 131.83 
HYDRONIC ENERGY INC049844397095 4,093.45 
IDENTISYS INC132581397096 72.12 
BAUDVILLE INC099749397097 151.50 
IMAGESTUFF.COM INC136223397098 45.36 
RAND WORLDWIDE SUBSIDIARY INC067004397099 580.80 
DANIEL D INNES139348397100 42.40 
ALL BATTERY CENTERS INC102958397101 39.00 
J A SEXAUER101991397102 6,630.76 
J W PEPPER & SON INC.100928397103 1,841.41 
KORRINDA K JAMIESON136314397104 105.62 
CHRISTINE A JANOVEC-POEHLMAN131157397105 99.35 
JSDO 1 LLC136953397106 529.31 
MARGARET J JAWORSKI134836397107 13.69 
GEORGE W JELKIN135735397108 9.11 
DEBBIE A JENKINS133059397109 96.85 
JENSEN TIRE COMPANY133037397110 566.99 
JIST PUBLISHING054430397112 56.95 
AMANDA J JOHNSON131367397113 21.09 
JOHNSON HARDWARE CO LLC054500397114 109.69 

13



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  October 1, 2012

Date: 9/26/2012

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
TERRIN D JOHNSON139349397115 55.83 
BRANDON K JOHNSTON139350397117 85.19 
NANCY A JOHNSTON059573397118 53.17 
JONES BARREL054640397119 112.00 
JOSEPHSON INSTITUTE OF ETHICS109138397120 69.98 
NICHOLAS R KAISER136237397122 92.01 
KAPCO101224397123 132.00 
CATHERINE A KEISER132265397124 66.93 
SUSAN L KELLEY132272397125 53.75 
KELVIN ELECTRONICS056276397126 1,530.22 
ANDREA L KIDD131177397128 8.27 
DENNIS F KIMBERLIN132676397129 315.00 
EMILY KIRKLAND139146397130 25.00 
REBECCA D KLEEMAN WEYANT139301397131 250.00 
BETTY H KLESITZ056770397132 99.35 
GERALD S KNAPP138308397133 50.00 
KNOWLEDGELAKE INC138807397134 1,222.19 
LARISSA K KNUDSON135946397135 44.98 
ELIZABETH A KOCIS138846397136 15.21 
BECKY S KOENIG093978397137 71.76 
KONICA MINOLTA PRINTING SOLUTIONS134607397138 123.20 
MICHAEL JOHN KROS139343397139 50.00 
KRUEGER INTERNATIONAL INC135194397140 470.00 
KUBAT PHARMACY/HEALTHCARE133923397143 1,905.00 
JOSEPH R KUEHL137385397144 76.09 
AMANDA J KUNES109033397145 307.31 
VICTORIA L KYROS132934397146 11.10 
MCKAYLA LABORDE137694397147 76.09 
CHRISTINA A LAGRONE137010397148 129.65 
LAKESHORE LEARNING MATERIALS099217397149 568.90 
LAMP RYNEARSON ASSOCIATES INC058775397150 900.20 
LANGUAGE LINE SERVICES135257397151 658.38 
LORENE M LARSEN121124397152 45.29 
JANET L LARSON136518397153 73.92 
LARUE DISTRIBUTING INC102491397154 1,146.94 
LAWSON PRODUCTS INC135156397155 141.72 
VOYAGER EXPANDED LEARNING136240397157 7,818.30 
LEARNING RESOURCES130792397158 129.90 
RAYMOND A LEBLANC139351397159 38.24 
LEGO EDUCATION NORTH AMERICA106469397160 167.94 
LIBRARY STORE INC059360397161 170.59 
LIEN TERMITE & PEST CONTROL INC059470397162 2,010.00 
LINGUISYSTEMS, INC.059577397163 234.50 
MATHESON TRI-GAS INC059560397164 1,190.73 
COURTNEY A LOHRENZ136315397165 19.15 
JAMIE K LONDON135707397166 38.41 

14



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  October 1, 2012

Date: 9/26/2012

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
LOVELESS MACHINE & GRINDING060111397167 186.00 
LOWE'S HOME CENTERS INC131397397168 448.98 
ZACHARY B LOWE136319397169 111.00 
LRP PUBLICATIONS INC057770397170 152.00 
LUCKS MUSIC LIBRARY INC060125397171 154.17 
CASEY I LUNDGREN135376397172 30.64 
MACKIN BOOK CO099321397173 79.95 
KAREN M MARBLE137007397174 197.58 
SUSAN N MARLATT133505397176 36.08 
DAWN M MARTEN133201397177 25.00 
MATHEMATICAL OLYMPIADS099328397179 99.00 
MAX I WALKER108052397181 2,838.29 
PATRICIA J MCCUNE138262397183 50.00 
AMERICAN BUSINESS NETWORK100944397184 156.00 
LAB SAFETY SUPPLY INC131101397185 270.30 
MCGILL ASBESTOS ABATEMENT CO.107470397186 780.00 
MCGRAW-HILL COMPANIES063349397188 453.37 
RYE L MCINTOSH137014397189 156.62 
PATRICIA A MEEKER121126397190 25.97 
METAL DOORS & HARDWARE COMPANY INC064600397191 630.00 
METAL LOGOS AND MORE102139397192 122.06 
AMERICAN NATIONAL BANK133403397194 11,211.83 
MID STATES SCHOOL EQUIPMENT CO INC103082397195 4,238.08 
MIDLAND COMPUTER INC102870397196 1,849.69 
MIDLANDS PRINTING & BUS FORMS INC137999397197 125.14 
MIDWEST METAL WORKS INC064950397198 64.00 
MIDWEST SPECIAL INSTRUMENTS CORP101274397199 653.00 
MIDWEST SHOP SUPPLIES INC065200397200 85.50 
MIDWEST TURF & IRRIGATION INC065233397201 440.95 
MILLARD METAL SERVICES INC.107560397202 38.00 
MILLER ELECTRIC COMPANY131328397203 8,345.00 
ANNE C MILLER135388397204 17.32 
SANDRA R MILLER132412397205 33.19 
LEAGUE OF HUMAN DIGNITY INC065844397206 127.50 
CRYSTAL M MOODY138991397207 11.14 
DEBRA K MORGAN139355397208 48.84 
MORRISSEY ENGINEERING INC134532397209 7,750.00 
DONITA L MOSEMAN132491397210 29.42 
MSC INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO063150397211 569.30 
DEVONYE J MULLINS137052397212 72.26 
JANIS R MULLINS066490397213 36.08 
MUSEUM OF SCIENCE138675397215 50,407.50 
N. PITLOR & SON INC136073397216 10,210.50 
NCTM066671397217 208.00 
NATIONAL COUNCIL TEACHERS ENGLISH067666397218 75.00 
NATIONAL COUNCIL FOR SOCIAL STUDIES101560397219 250.00 

15



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  October 1, 2012

Date: 9/26/2012

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
NATL RESTAURANT ASSN SOLUTIONS LLC138316397221 968.77 
NEBRASKA AIR FILTER INC068334397222 4,612.35 
NEBRASKA ASSOCIATION FOR THE GIFTED068340397223 145.00 
NEBRASKA COUNCIL OF SCHOOL068415397224 2,235.00 
NEBRASKA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION068440397225 75.00 
NEBRASKA FURNITURE MART INC068445397226 488.17 
JOHN D CARLSON107814397227 64.15 
ROBIN K NELSON069060397228 4.44 
NEVCO INC132236397229 323.04 
NEWS BOWL099737397230 818.00 
NEXTEL PARTNERS INC109843397231 5,721.53 
NIENHUIS MONTESSORI USA INC069576397232 514.43 
CARISSA N NIETFELDT136715397233 6.66 
MELINDA C NOLLER107905397234 53.57 
NOVA HEALTH EQUIPMENT COMPANY069930397235 149.50 
NURSE PROVIDERS INC139001397236 1,911.00 
KELLY R O'TOOLE133368397237 50.51 
ANNE M OETH050042397240 138.76 
OFFICE DEPOT  84133510100013397247 25,246.33 
OHARCO DISTRIBUTORS070245397248 50.24 
MELANIE L OLSON132778397249 22.14 
OLSSON ASSOCIATES INC136898397250 1,700.00 
OMAHA PAPER COMPANY INC.070700397251 167.70 
OMAHA STAGE EQUIPMENT INC139356397252 475.00 
OMAHA WORLD HERALD  (EDUC)071053397253 175.70 
ONE SOURCE133850397254 3,797.00 
MARY M OSTERLOH130092397255 64.88 
OTIS ELEVATOR COMPANY107193397256 2,495.88 
ANDREA M OTTE132008397257 23.54 
ELIZABETH A PACHTA134428397258 134.81 
PAINTIN PLACE CERAMICS INC071515397259 60.00 
JANIE L PAPP134636397260 53.84 
GEORGE M PARKER137015397261 27.81 
ANDREA L PARSONS132006397262 140.98 
PASCO SCIENTIFIC099244397263 276.00 
ANGELO D PASSARELLI108098397264 158.73 
PATTERSON MEDICAL SUPPLY INC073300397265 240.83 
CYNTHIA L PAVONE135569397266 106.95 
PAXTON PATTERSON LLC071850397267 453.40 
PAYFLEX SYSTEMS USA INC071891397268 2,109.00 
PAULA A PEAL071947397269 38.32 
PEARSON EDUCATION082652397270 3,055.66 
HEIDI T PENKE107783397271 58.28 
ANGELA J PETERSON137009397272 61.22 
BETH A PFEIFFER132751397273 18.65 
HEATHER C PHIPPS133390397274 34.63 

16



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  October 1, 2012

Date: 9/26/2012

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
MARY J PILLE130721397275 103.79 
PITNEY BOWES PRESORT SERVICES INC073040397276 20,000.00 
PITSCO INC072760397277 370.01 
PLANK ROAD PUBLISHING INC072785397278 127.20 
POSITIVE PROMOTIONS INC079051397279 92.95 
PRAIRIE MECHANICAL CORP131835397280 8,459.33 
MIKE GUTHRIE134531397281 122.20 
PRIME COMMUNICATIONS INC134598397282 792.94 
PROGRESS PUBLICATIONS073610397283 530.67 
PROTEX CENTRAL INC132713397285 472.00 
PSAT/NMSQT071372397286 50.00 
PUSH PEDAL PULL131901397287 262.76 
WEATHERCRAFT CO OF LINCOLN138854397288 96,955.00 
RAINBOW PRESS INC078170397289 3,150.00 
RALSTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS078250397290 2,909.29 
CHARLES J RANDONE134755397291 7.50 
REALLY GOOD STUFF INC100642397292 518.64 
DEIDRE M REEH135690397293 7.19 
JENNIFER L REID134858397294 42.40 
RENAISSANCE LEARNING INC.099940397295 2,913.28 
KIMBERLI R RICE109192397296 28.25 
RIVER CITY GLASS LLC137911397297 294.95 
RIVERSIDE TECHNOLOGIES INC136847397298 1,654.00 
PAIGE E ROBERTS138312397299 96.45 
DALE H ROBINSON079295397300 100.95 
ROCKBROOK CAMERA CENTER079310397301 1,031.49 
POLLY A RODENBIKER133495397302 11.77 
LINDA A ROHMILLER134882397303 29.30 
EILEEN A RONCI134081397304 166.50 
ROSENBAUM ELECTRIC INC079440397305 2,423.08 
JEAN M RUCHTI072286397306 163.17 
RURAL METRO MEDICAL SERVICES133572397307 884.00 
JEFFREY A SALBERG081604397308 11.10 
VWR CORPORATION081695397309 141.00 
BRENT J SCHADE109806397310 47.62 
SHELLEY L SCHMITZ137012397312 59.72 
SCHOLASTIC INC082100397313 11,721.70 
SCHOLASTIC MAGAZINES082140397315 11,195.97 
SCHOOL HEALTH CORPORATION082200397316 40.03 
SCHOOL SPECIALTY INC082350397317 3,155.12 
SCHOOL-TECH INC099808397318 124.93 
PHYLLIS A SCHROEDER137471397319 32.66 
SCOTT ENTERPRISES INC131699397320 33,337.32 
KIMBERLY A SECORA082905397321 76.70 
SECURITY EQUIPMENT INC082910397322 6,465.70 
STAN J SEGAL108161397323 166.22 

17



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  October 1, 2012

Date: 9/26/2012

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
KELLY M SELTING082941397324 106.01 
JODY L SEMPEK134189397325 34.85 
AMY L SHATTUCK109800397326 127.10 
LARIA K SHEA137697397327 95.18 
SHEPPARD'S BUSINESS INTERIORS083175397328 1,827.99 
SHIFFLER EQUIPMENT SALES, INC.083188397329 1,013.19 
SIEMENS INDUSTRY INC.131887397330 6,578.22 
SIGNAL 88 SECURITY GROUP LLC138176397331 651.78 
SILVERSTONE GROUP INC132590397332 4,463.00 
SIMPLEXGRINNELL083400397333 163.13 
SIMPSON SUPPLY083452397334 648.00 
MATTHEW L SMITH139357397335 32.10 
ELIZABETH K SMITH133211397336 229.99 
SNYDER CHARLESON THERAPY SERVICES132808397337 2,603.15 
CHARLENE S SNYDER107093397338 107.28 
SODEXO INC & AFFILIATES101476397339 201,302.62 
SOL LEWIS ENGINEERING COMPANY084019397340 46,261.45 
MARK SOMMER139217397341 689.82 
SOMMERFELD ENTERPRISES INC139111397342 233.72 
NANETTE R SOMMERS131814397343 15.54 
SOUTH OMAHA TERMINAL WAREHOUSE CO084081397344 593.20 
SOUTHPAW ENTERPRISES INC102046397345 696.54 
JOHN D SOUTHWORTH131714397346 25.53 
SPECIALIZED AIR/HYDRONIC BALANCING136932397347 2,738.00 
STANDARD DIGITAL IMAGING INC084397397348 13.20 
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMMERCIAL INC137481397349 413.44 
STATE STEEL OF OMAHA134116397350 78.06 
TRACY L STAUFFER084491397351 104.34 
SUSAN G STODDARD138276397355 26.64 
CLAUDIA P SUCHA135744397356 36.67 
ERIN C SULLIVAN138848397357 61.61 
BRAD D SULLIVAN109822397358 1,441.10 
SUPER DUPER INC084930397359 519.77 
SUPER SAVER #20102869397360 110.93 
CARRIE A SWANEY137011397361 167.61 
JAMES D SWITZER132417397362 30.53 
SYSCO LINCOLN INC099302397363 1,096.05 
TARGET088654397364 222.56 
DRAPHIX, LLC103050397365 490.92 
AMERICAN EAGLE  COMPANY INC109041397366 155.40 
TENNANT SALES & SERVICE COMPANY133969397368 4,353.58 
THEATRICAL MEDIA SERVICES, INC.131729397369 95.81 
ANNETTE J THOMAS136381397370 24.70 
JONATHON C THOMPSON131159397371 59.11 
TI MEDIA SOLUTIONS INC099272397372 238.80 
PEGGI S TOMLINSON136578397373 72.65 

18



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  October 1, 2012

Date: 9/26/2012

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
JEAN M TOOHER106807397374 47.73 
TOSHIBA AMERICA INFO SYS INC131446397375 5,328.72 
TOSHIBA AMERICA INFO SYS INC131446397376 423.88 
TOSHIBA AMERICA INFO SYS INC131446397377 15,241.00 
TOTAL MARKETING INC089574397378 191.10 
TRADE WELL PALLET INC108055397380 2,000.00 
MARIELA J TRIBULATO135247397381 87.34 
KIMBERLY P TRISLER107719397382 28.31 
TYCON ELECTRIC INC135716397383 615.00 
DENISE B TYSON137693397384 7.50 
JEAN R UBBELOHDE131819397385 97.13 
ULTIMATE OFFICE INC102846397386 209.12 
UNISOURCE WORLDWIDE INC090678397387 1,002.10 
UNL EXTENSION IN DOUGLAS/SARPY CO100923397389 90.00 
BSN SPORTS INC090440397390 947.59 
USA-CLEAN INC138661397391 5,425.90 
VAL LTD091040397392 60.00 
AUTO LUBE INC138046397393 153.91 
JENNIFER L VEST136318397394 166.50 
VEX ROBOTICS INC138328397395 1,699.85 
VIRCO INC092323397396 2,001.20 
DAWN R WAGNER138311397397 16.65 
BARBARA N WALLER093008397398 95.79 
LINDA WALTERS131112397399 13.26 
WARD'S NATURAL SCIENCE EST LLC093650397400 610.32 
KATRINA M WATTON139220397401 160.00 
HEIDI J WEAVER133438397402 26.76 
WHALEY GRADEBOOK CO INC094680397404 132.00 
CRAIG T WHALEY134658397405 340.21 
DEBBY A WHITAKER094751397406 193.86 
WHITE WOLF WEB PRINTERS INC137878397407 480.00 
SARA M WIESE-JOHNSON137892397408 60.39 
WENDY A WIGHT137485397409 74.43 
CHRISTINA L WILCOXEN136162397410 58.28 
TAMARA J WILLIAMS136322397411 31.52 
STACIE A WITHERSPOON136323397412 81.97 
WOODWORKERS SUPPLY, INC.095355397413 39.24 
WORLD BOOK INC095376397415 12,210.00 
WORLD RESEARCH COMPANY095416397416 349.80 
GLEN E WRAGGE095491397417 266.73 
JEFFREY F YOST138356397418 12.15 
KATHRYN A YOST137683397419 23.17 
CHAD R ZIMMERMAN137020397420 475.32 
PAUL  R ZOHLEN136855397421 54.89 
ZONAR SYSTEMS INC139278397422 11,697.38 
SAGE PUBLICATIONS, INC.081491397423 469.20 

19



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  October 1, 2012

Date: 9/26/2012

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount

2,141,230.40 Total for GENERAL FUND
WRIGHT EXPRESS FINANCIAL SVCS CORP13849623811 77.84 
NEXTEL PARTNERS INC10984323812 126.00 
OFFICE DEPOT  8413351010001323813 815.00 
SODEXO INC & AFFILIATES10147623814 641,586.21 

642,605.05 Total for FOOD SERVICE 
FUND

BERINGER CIACCIO DENNELL MABREY133480396930 225.00 
PRIME COMMUNICATIONS INC134598397282 2,827.32 
SCHEMMER ASSOCIATES INC081880397311 1,534.25 

4,586.57 Total for SPECIAL BUILDING 
FUND

ACADEMIC HALLMARKS INC010278396893 61.00 
AMERICAN MATHEMATICS COMPETITIONS012067396902 84.00 
CHUCK BRAAK139322396942 60.50 
D & D COMMUNICATIONS130731396984 186.90 
DARREL DRAPER107948397010 200.00 
EDUCATIONAL RESOURCE SERVICES INC138884397016 251.40 
FRANKLIN COVEY130992397050 2,745.30 
GREENWOOD PUBLISHING GROUP INC048517397077 2,923.50 
VIA INC138759397121 127.44 
CARRIE E MARTIN138921397178 99.02 
NATIONAL GEOGRAPHIC SOCIETY107416397220 100.00 
ROCKBROOK CAMERA CENTER079310397301 342.00 
SCHOLASTIC INC082100397313 4,342.95 
STENHOUSE PUBLISHERS131099397352 217.83 
OREGON UNIVERSITY SYSTEM137712397388 550.00 
UNL EXTENSION IN DOUGLAS/SARPY CO100923397389 1,055.00 
WORDMASTERS LLC139352397414 285.00 

13,631.84 Total for GRANT FUND
COVENTRY HEALTH & LIFE INS CO136587396976 148,441.43 

148,441.43 Total for 
ADVANCED OFFICE INTERIORS CORP102832396897 9,846.36 
BARCO MUNICIPAL PRODUCTS, INC.017900396921 89.80 
HEARTLAND SCENIC STUDIO INC100782397075 1,225.00 
MIDLAND COMPUTER INC102870397196 1,285.93 
MILLER ELECTRIC COMPANY131328397203 5,807.00 
NEBRASKA FURNITURE MART INC068445397226 821.80 
SCHOOL SPECIALTY INC082350397317 -389.57 
VIRCO INC092323397396 750.45 

19,436.77 Total for DEPRECIATION 
FUND

DELORES J ELY138287396840 350.00 
TIMOTHY BRIAN GRAY138286396842 350.00 
BLAIR KUHN139330396845 350.00 
JONATHAN V MERRITT139332396846 350.00 
KEVIN D MILES139329396847 350.00 

20



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  October 1, 2012

Date: 9/26/2012

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
BIANCA CHRISTENSEN137605396877 768.00 
ACCUCUT LLC010298396894 20.00 
ALEKS CORPORATION136499396899 917.50 
APPLE COMPUTER INC012989396909 2,192.00 
CASSIDY BENJAMIN138888396928 60.00 
DEMCO INC032800396994 208.30 
ZACH ERIKSEN138591397026 40.00 
ROBERT W. ERLANDSON038431397027 270.00 
TAYLOR GILROY138064397055 25.00 
TARA GOSS138889397061 60.00 
HIGHSMITH LLC138687397081 27.96 
HODGES BADGE COMPANY132721397084 85.50 
JUDE F HOLZER138849397085 160.00 
YUAN YUAN JIANG138369397111 60.00 
JAMES H JOHNSON138260397116 47.00 
MITCHELL JOHN KERFELD139338397127 47.00 
DANA S KRUSE138836397141 47.00 
CALEB KRUSE139134397142 50.00 
GRACE LAY139353397156 50.00 
SHEA MARCINSKI138768397175 60.00 
EMILY MCCOY138066397182 60.00 
KATHERINE MCGINN138156397187 25.00 
NOVA HEALTH EQUIPMENT COMPANY069930397235 3,250.45 
ERIN OELTJEN137588397238 42.00 
HANNAH MARIE OELTJEN138769397239 70.00 
OFFICE DEPOT  84133510100013397247 90.75 
MATTHEW C PROPHIT138738397284 60.00 
SCHOOL SPECIALTY INC082350397317 210.24 
BROOKE STILMOCK138198397353 60.00 
LANE STILMOCK139354397354 50.00 
TATIANNA TRABUCCO139138397379 50.00 
BRENT A WELSCH139336397403 45.00 

10,958.70 Total for ACTIVITY FUND

2,980,890.76 Report Total               

21



9/25/2012 10/1/2012 10/1/2012

Lot Quantity

1 20

2 3

3 1

4 26

5 4

6 5

7 25

8 1

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

Apple laptops

Millard Public Schools - Planned Disposition of Surplus Property 

BOE Packet Due Date: BOE Meeting Date: Sale or Disposals Scheduled After:

Description

Desktop computers

lot computer cases

calculators

audio mixers

laptop batteries

Apple G4 chargers

GPS unit

22



Committee Meeting Minutes 

September 24, 2012 

 

The members of the Board of Education met as a Committee of the Whole on Monday, September 24, at 

6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147
th
 Street. 

 

Present:  Linda Poole, Dave Anderson, Mike Pate, Mike Kennedy, Todd Clarke and Patrick Ricketts 

 

Also in attendance were Keith Lutz, Ken Fossen, Mark Feldhausen and other Administrators. 

 

Jim Sutfin and Kim Saum-Mills gave a  power point presentation on Performance Based Administrator 

Evaluation.  They reviewed the Administrator Evaluation Process which is brought back to the Board 

every couple of years for them to have an over view of what Millard does in their Administrator 

Evaluations process. 

 

A Planner from Kansas City spoke to the Committee of the Whole on the services they offer.  The intent 

of them being at the Committee meeting was to show the Board the scope of what they do and what they 

can do for Millard.  They talked to the Board about the advantages of using a firm like theirs.   

They work with analysis, education, demographics, boundaries, capacities, staffing and more.  This group 

can basically give Millard another point of view on how changes can be made within the District.  Dr. 

Lutz knows schools that have used this firm and was drawn to them for help needed in Boundary changes 

that will have to be made.   

 

The Committee of the Whole meeting was adjourned at 7:20 p.m.      

 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

                            Chairman 

23



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

 

AGENDA ITEM:   Approval of Superintendent Goals for 2012-2013  

 

MEETING DATE:   October 1, 2012 

 

DEPARTMENT:  Board of Education 

 

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION:  Each year the Board approves the goals set for the 

Superintendent 

 

ACTION DESIRED:  Approval 

 

BACKGROUND:   

 

OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATIONS: 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS:  Approval 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:   

 

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION: 

 

TIME LINE: 

 

PERSONS RESPONSIBLE:  Board of Education 

 

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL:  ___________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

24

kksullivan
Dr Lutz



 

SUPERINTENDENT GOALS 2012-2013 

 

1. Come up with a proposal for our next bond issue with not only the amount of the 

project, but also a contingency plan if it does not pass again.  The contingency plan 

may need to include possible changes in school boundaries. 

 

2. Explore our benefit options and review our health care benefits in order to contain 

our costs while at the same time making sure that we remain competitive. 

 

3. Examine the assessments that we currently give, look at the number given at each 

grade level, when they are given, the relevancy and timing of the assessments and the 

time that they take away from teaching and learning to decide which assessments are 

needed and if any can be discontinued and whether we need to replace any with a 

different assessment.  Are our assessments what we need for our students to be 

college and career ready? 

25



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Reaffirm Policy 6040—Ceremonies and Observances

MEETING DATE: October 1, 2012

DEPARTMENT: Educational Services

TITLE AND Reaffirmation of Policy 6040—Ceremonies and Observances
BRIEF DESCRIPTION:

ACTION DESIRED: X Approval

BACKGROUND: N/A

RECOMMENDATIONS: Reaffirm Policy 6040

STRATEGIC PLAN: N/A

REFERENCE: N/A

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION OR REJECTION: N/A

TIMELINE: N/A

RESPONSIBLE
PERSON(S): Mark Feldhausen, Assoc. Supt. (Educational Services)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL:

26

kksullivan
Dr Lutz



Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment

Ceremonies and Observances 6040

The flags of the United States of America and the State of Nebraska shall be prominently displayed on the school
grounds of every school on each day that such school is in session. All flag displays shall be in accordance with the
standards prescribed for the display of the flag of the United States of America.

Legal Reference: Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-707, 79-708, 4 U.S.C. § 6

Policy Adopted: June 16, 1975 Millard Public Schools
Revised: March 16, 1998; March 6, 2006 Omaha, Nebraska
Reaffirmed: October 1, 2012

27



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Approve Rule 6040.1: Ceremonies and Observances—Flag Salute and
Treatment

MEETING DATE: October 1, 2012

DEPARTMENT: Educational Services

TITLE AND Approve Rule 6040.1: Ceremonies and Observances—Flag Salute
BRIEF DESCRIPTION: and Treatment

ACTION DESIRED: X Approval

BACKGROUND: N/A

RECOMMENDATIONS: Approve Rule 6040.1

STRATEGIC PLAN: N/A

REFERENCE: N/A

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION OR REJECTION: N/A

TIMELINE: N/A

RESPONSIBLE
PERSON(S): Mark Feldhausen, Assoc. Supt. (Educational Services)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL:

28

kksullivan
Dr Lutz



Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment

Ceremonies and Observances – Flag Salute and Treatment 6040.1

The Superintendent or Superintendent’s designee at each building in the dDistrict shall be responsible for the care
and display of the Flag and shall adhere to rules and customs pertaining to the use and display as set forth in the
United States Code.

Legal Reference: Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-707, 79-708, 4 U.S.C. § 1 6 et seq.

Related Policies & Rules: 6040P

Rule Approved: June 16, 1975 Millard Public Schools
Revised: March 16, 1998; April 19, 1999; March 6, 2006 Omaha, Nebraska
October 1, 2012

29



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Approve Rule 6040.2: Ceremonies and Observances—Pledge of
Allegiance

MEETING DATE: October 1, 2012

DEPARTMENT: Educational Services

TITLE AND Approve Rule 6040.2: Ceremonies and Observances—Pledge of
BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Allegiance

ACTION DESIRED: X Approval

BACKGROUND: N/A

RECOMMENDATIONS: Approve Rule 6040.2

STRATEGIC PLAN: N/A

REFERENCE: N/A

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION OR REJECTION: N/A

TIMELINE: N/A

RESPONSIBLE
PERSON(S): Mark Feldhausen, Assoc. Supt. (Educational Services)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL:

30

kksullivan
Dr Lutz



Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment

Ceremonies and Observances – Pledge of Allegiance 6040.2

Each of the District’s schools shall establish a period of time during the school day, when a
majority of the students are scheduled to be present, during which time students will be led in the
recitation of the Pledge of Allegiance in the presence of the flag of the United States of America.
Student participation in the recitation of the Pledge of Allegiance shall be voluntary. Students not
participating in the recitation of the Pledge of Allegiance shall be permitted to silently stand or
remain seated but shall be required to respect the rights of those students electing to participate.

Legal Reference: Title 92, Nebraska Administrative Code, Chapter 10-003.12

Related Policies & Rules: 6040, 6040.1

Rule Approved: October 15, 2012 Millard Public Schools
Omaha, Nebraska

31



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Reaffirm Policy 6920 Community Resources

MEETING DATE: October 1, 2012

DEPARTMENT: Educational Services

TITLE AND Reaffirmation of Policy 6920 Community Resources
BRIEF DESCRIPTION:

ACTION DESIRED: X Approval

BACKGROUND: N/A

RECOMMENDATIONS: Reaffirm Policy 6920

STRATEGIC PLAN: N/A

REFERENCE: N/A

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION OR REJECTION: N/A

TIMELINE: N/A

RESPONSIBLE
PERSON(S): Mark Feldhausen, Assoc. Supt. (Educational Services)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL:

32

kksullivan
Dr Lutz



Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment

Community Resources 6920

The Millard School District recognizes the potential education contribution that lies within the Millard community.
Instructional staff members are encouraged to use various members of the community and their particular areas of
expertise to enhance the overall instructional program.

Policy Adopted: June 16, 1975 Millard Public Schools
Revised: September 13, 1999 Omaha, Nebraska
Reaffirmed: September 5, 2006; October 1, 2012

33



 -1- 

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Rule 7305.1 – Web and Social Media Publishing 
 
 
MEETING DATE:  October 1, 2012  
 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Technology Division 
 
 
TITLE AND  
BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Rule 7305.1 – Web and Social Media Publishing 
 
ACTION DESIRED: Approval  X  
 
 
BACKGROUND: This Rule is being revised to reflect a change in title and 

clarification of approved social media sites. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: Approve Rule 7305.1  – Web and Social Media Publishing 
 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:     N/A 
 
 
TIMELINE:  Immediate 
 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON(S):  Dr. Mark Feldhausen, Dr. James Sutfin, Victoria L. Hoskovec 
 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL:    ______________________                                                    
       (Signature) 
 
BOARD ACTION: 
 

34

kksullivan
Dr Lutz



Technology          
 
Web and Social Media Publishing         7305.1  
 
I. Definitions 

 
A. Social Media – electronic communication systems, including web logs (blogs), internet chat rooms or 

bulletin boards, learning management systems, websites, e-mail, and cellular and/or mobile device 
applications, whose primary purpose is to provide a multi-directional communication venue for the 
user and others. 

 
B. Approved Social Media Site – All social media sites must be approved by the Executive Director of 

Technology for technical requirements and compliance issues.  In addition, approved social media sites 
must have been reviewed and approved by the Director of Coordinator of Communications and/or have 
been approved by the Associate Superintendent for Educational Services for use in student learning 
activities and teacher-parent-student communications about learning.  Examples of approved social 
media sites include, but are not limited to, ANGEL/myelearning, SchoolMail365, GroupWise, 
Facebook, Google+, and Twitter, and LinkedIn. 
 

C. Professional Responsibility – Web and social media publishing begins with the active, current use of 
District web site and/or the District-provided learning management system (LMS), in conjunction with 
District-provided e-mail systems, to facilitate communication and instruction.  The employee may use 
approved supplementary social media sites to support communication and/or instruction.  Professional 
responsibility occurs when there is the presentation of oneself as a representative of the District or 
employee thereof, whose activities are job related and is subject to the District’s policies, rules, 
procedures, and guidelines. 
 

D. Personal Responsibility – the presentation of oneself in a manner that is outside professional 
responsibility in all comments, posting, etc. Personal responsibility encompasses that which is not job 
related. 

 
II. Accountability 
 

A. District employees who utilize web or social media sites in pursuit of their professional responsibilities 
are subject to the District’s Code of Ethics (Policy 4155 and Rule 4155.1) 
 

B. Each staff member who creates a web page or any part of a web page or supervises the creation of a 
web page or uses an approved social media site or any part of an approved social media site or 
supervises the creation of an approved social media site is responsible for the content and must inform 
the Superintendent/designee or Principal/designee of the existence and the intent/purpose of the page 
prior to such web site or approved social media site being accessible on the World Wide Web.  This 
includes student-produced web and social media content. 
 

C. Each web page or approved social media author or contributing web page and approved social media 
site author shall assume personal responsibility for the information being current, accurate (including 
having correct spelling and grammar), and adhering to District policies and rules.  This includes 
students who author or contribute to the creation of a web page or approved social media site. 
 

D. All District or building web and approved social media sites shall have a staff member who shall 
monitor and be responsible for approving the content of the information, which is accessible on each 
web and approved social media site.  
 

E. The content of the information shall be in compliance with the District’s policies and rules including, 
but not limited to, the standards, criteria, and limitations of District Policies and Rules 1115.1(I), 
1306.1, 3150.1, 4001, 4145.1, 4155.1, 4156.1, 5010, 5020, 5300.3, 5400.6, 5510.1(I), 5800.1, 6002, 

35



6265, 6605.1(I), 7100.1, and 7310.1, which are incorporated herein. 
 

F. Guidelines for web pages and the use of approved social media sites shall be established by the 
Superintendent or designee and shall be published in the District’s Technology User’s Manual. 

  
III. Professional Responsibility and Person Responsibility 
 

A. Professional Responsibility.  When using District web and or approved social media sites, staff may 
not engage in the following: 

 
1. Simultaneously identify oneself as a District employee and send, solicit, or display materials that 

are offensive, including sexually oriented material, graphic depictions of violence, or material that 
offends or harasses on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, gender, marital status, 
disability, or age. 

 
2. Unprofessional communication that could negatively impact the District’s reputation or interfere 

with the District’s core mission, or unprofessional/inappropriate communication regarding 
members of the District’s community. 
 

3. Acting as a representative of the District, or acting in a way that would infer that one is a District 
representative or acting for and on behalf of the District when not authorized to do so (e.g., 
contacting the media or government officials with District e-mail, responding to complaints or 
questions about District business on internet discussion groups, etc.). 
 

4. Sending, receiving, printing or otherwise disseminating proprietary data, trade secrets or other 
confidential information in violation of District policy, proprietary agreements or other contractual 
terms.  Using District-owned data or work product for personal gain.  Using District trademarks 
(name, logos), or branding without authorization from the Office of Communications. 

 
5. Inappropriately sharing confidential information related to District business, including but not 

limited to, personnel actions, internal investigations, research material, or student information. 
 

6. Any activity in violation of local, state, or federal law as it relates to the staff member’s 
employment with the District, including, but not limited to, defamatory remarks; destruction of 
District data or equipment; or accessing or sharing information in violation of HIPAA, FERPA, 
CIPA, or COPPA.  This includes any activity that would cause the District to not be in compliance 
with state or federal law. 

 
7. Any activity in violation of District policies and rules, including, but not limited to the standards, 

criteria, and limitations of District Policies and Rules 1115.1(I), 1306.1, 3150.1, 4001, 4145.1, 
4155.1, 4156.1, 5010, 5020, 5300.3, 5400.6, 5510.1(I), 5800.1, 6002, 6265, 6605.1(I), 7100.1, and 
7310.1, which are incorporated herein. 

 
B. Personal Responsibility.  When using non-District web sites and/or personal social media sites outside 

of the duties as a staff member of the District, staff should consider the following: 
 
1. For certificated staff, the District’s Code of Ethics and the State Standards of Professional Practice 

are applicable. 
 

2. District staff are responsible for all matters which they post or publish. 
 

3. All matters which may be posted or published, including photographs, should reflect high 
standards of professionalism and professional discretion, and should not negatively or adversely 
impact relations with students, parents, other staff, or the community. 

 

36



4. Staff should not “friend” students or parents on their personal Facebook pages until the student has 
been graduated from the District for a least one year. 

 
IV. Privacy 
 

A. All reasonable steps shall be taken to insure that the use of the Internet or World Wide Web and 
approved social media sites shall not abridge the right of privacy of students or staff as provided by 
law, including but not limited to FERPA, HIPAA, CIPA, and COPPA. 
 

B. Parent permission shall be obtained prior to publishing photographs of students when the students are 
identified by first and/or last names except where such photograph is contained in other official 
District press or media releases and District or school publications such as a school newsletter, school 
annual, or school newspaper. 
 

C. Group and individual photographs may be published without permission if names are not used. 
 

D. Student Directory Information (as described below) may be made available on District web pages in 
compliance with the District’s policies and rules.  Directory information appropriate for the web 
includes the following: 
 
1. First and last name (without photographs unless parent permission is obtained as stated above); 

 
2. Current grade level; 

 
3. Participation in officially recognized activities and sports; 

 
4. Weight and height of members of athletic teams; 

 
5. Degrees and awards received; and 

 
6. Photographs (without first and last names unless parent permission is obtained as stated above). 

 
V. Project PAYBAC® Partners, PTO/PTA Organizations, and Booster Clubs 
 

A. Project PAYBAC® partners, PTO/PTA organizations, and Booster Clubs may be identified as 
supporters of the District. 
 

B. There shall be no web links to commercial web sites that are of a promotional nature except as 
approved by the Superintendent or designee. 
 

C. District or building web sites may contain links to governmental agencies, District affiliated 
organizations which were organized and exist for the sole purpose of supporting the District’s  
educational and extracurricular programs, other educational institutions, public libraries, and public 
museums. 

 
 

VI. Fundraising Activities 
 

A. Information about school-related fundraising activities can be published including information about 
the product, the name of the sponsor and/or telephone number. 
 

B. There shall be no on-line purchasing and such use of the District’s computers is strictly prohibited 
unless authorized by the Superintendent or designee. 
 

37



C. District and building websites shall not facilitate online purchasing unless authorized by the 
Superintendent or designee. 

 
VII. Interactive Use 
 

A. District e-mail addresses of staff and Board members are allowed to be published. 
 

B. When District e-mail addresses are published, the following disclaimer should appear on that page: 
“These e-mail addresses are for use by staff, students, and parents relating to school business only.  
Solicitation is prohibited.” 
 

C. Individual student’s e-mail addresses may be disseminated but must be protected by a unique password 
for each student on servers as identified in Section VIII. 

 
VIII. Where Information Resides 
 

A. All digital information shall be accessible to the World Wide Web on District-controlled servers under 
the District domain name or on servers approved by the Superintendent or designee. 
 

B. All District policies and rules apply regardless of where the web sites reside. 
 
IX. Not an Open or Public Forum 
 

A. The District does not by this Rule create or establish an open or public forum and reserves the sole and 
absolute right to determine the acceptable District web and approved social media sites. 
 

B. The District reserves the right to monitor, review, and audit the use of District web and approved social 
media sites.  The district further reserves the right to search District web and approved social media 
sites as part of any investigation into unauthorized use or prohibited or illegal conduct. 

 
X. Violations  Violations of this Rule may result in disciplinary action. 
 
 
 
Related Policies and Rules:  1115, 1306.1, 5510.1, 5710, 5800.1, 5800.3, 6605.1, 7100, 7100.1, 7100.2, 7100.3, 

7305, 7310, 7310.1 
 
Rule Adopted:  July 17, 2000   Millard Public Schools 
Revised:  September 10, 2001; May 2, 2005; October 6, 2008; May 21, 2012; October 1, 2012 Omaha, Nebraska 
 
Renumbered from 1102.1: May 2, 2005 

38



AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution authorizing, approving, ratifying and confirming the preparation of not 

exceeding $14,500,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2012, of 

Douglas County School District 017, in the State of Nebraska, also known as 

Millard Public Schools; the Official Notice of Bond Sale and Preliminary Official 

Statement relating to said Bonds; the delivery of the Preliminary Official 

Statement and the publication of the Official Notice of Bond Sale; and authorizing 

and directing the receipt of proposals to purchase said Bonds. 

 

 

MEETING DATE: October 1, 2012 

 

DEPARTMENT: General Administration 

 

TITLE & BRIEF 

DESCRIPTION: See “Agenda Item” above. 

 

ACTION DESIRED: Approval              Discussion             Information Only                                      .       

 

BACKGROUND: The District is refunding prior bonds in order to get a better interest rate.  The 

estimated cost savings of the life of the bonds is project at approximately $1.5 

million. 

  

OPTIONS AND 

ALTERNATIVES: n/a 

 

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended the passage and adoption of the Resolution authorizing, 

approving, ratifying and confirming the preparation of not exceeding $14,500,000 

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2012, of Douglas County School 

District 017, in the State of Nebraska, also known as Millard Public Schools; the 

Official Notice of Bond Sale and Preliminary Official Statement relating to said 

Bonds; the delivery of the Preliminary Official Statement and the publication of 

the Official Notice of Bond Sale; and authorizing and directing the receipt of 

proposals to purchase said Bonds. 

 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN 

REFERENCE: n/a 

 

IMPLICATIONS OF 

ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 

 

TIMELINE: Immediate.  (Note:  There is a special board meeting at 12:00 noon on October 17
th
 

to accept the results of the bond auction.) 

 

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration) 

 

SUPERINTENDENT’S 

APPROVAL: __________________________ 

39

kksullivan
Dr Lutz



 

01-675344.1 

4815-7092-1745.2  

 

RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF DOUGLAS COUNTY SCHOOL 

DISTRICT 017, IN THE STATE OF NEBRASKA (MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS): 

WHEREAS, the Board of Education of Douglas County School District 017, in the State 

of Nebraska (Millard Public Schools) (the “District”) previously has issued its $32,000,000 

aggregate principal amount General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2003, of which 

$14,500,000 aggregate principal amount remains outstanding (the “2003 Bonds”); and, 

WHEREAS, the District is authorized by Section 10-142, Reissue Revised Statutes of 

Nebraska, 2007, as amended, to issue refunding bonds with which to call and redeem all or any 

part of its outstanding bonds at or before the maturity or the redemption date of such bonds; and, 

WHEREAS, the District has been advised that the current refunding of the $13,915,000 

aggregate principal amount of 2003 Bonds maturing on November 15 of each of the years 2013 

to 2018, inclusive (the “Refunded Bonds”), will provide significant interest cost savings to the 

District; and, 

WHEREAS, the Board of Education of the District has determined that it is necessary 

and in the best interests of said District that general obligation refunding bonds be authorized to 

be issued pursuant to the aforesaid authorization and for the purpose of obtaining interest cost 

savings by the refunding of the Refunded Bonds, as a single issue of General Obligation 

Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 (the “Series 2012 Bonds”), in the aggregate principal amount of 

not to exceed $14,500,000; and, 

WHEREAS, the Board of Education of the District desires to authorize, approve, ratify 

and confirm the actions taken and such remaining actions as shall be necessary to be taken by the 

Superintendent of Schools and the administrative staff of the District, and the District’s financial 

advisor and bond counsel in connection with the preparation, issuance, sale and delivery of the 

Series 2012 Bonds; and, 

WHEREAS, to enable prospective underwriters of the Series 2012 Bonds to comply with 

Rule 15c2-12 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, it is necessary for the 

District to provide said prospective underwriters with an official statement which (except for 

certain omissions permitted by said Rule 15c-12) the District deems final as of its date; and,  

WHEREAS, the District and its financial advisor and bond counsel have prepared the 

Preliminary Official Statement and Official Notice of Bond Sale pertaining to the issuance and 

sale of the Series 2012 Bonds. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF 

DOUGLAS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 017, IN THE STATE OF NEBRASKA, ALSO 

KNOWN AS MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS: 

THAT, the actions taken and the remaining actions necessary to be taken by the 

Superintendent of Schools and the administrative staff of the District, D.A. Davidson & Co., as 

the District’s Financial Advisor, and Kutak Rock LLP, as the District’s Bond Counsel, in 

connection with the preparation, issuance, sale and delivery of the Series 2012 Bonds in the 

40



 

01-675344.1 2 
4815-7092-1745.2  

aggregate principal amount of not to exceed $14,500,000 are hereby authorized, approved, 

ratified and confirmed. 

THAT, the Official Notice of Bond Sale pertaining to the issuance and sale of the Series 

2012 Bonds, in the Exhibit A attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof as fully as 

if set forth herein, is hereby approved in substantially the form attached hereto; the Preliminary 

Official Statement relating to the Series 2012 Bonds, in the Exhibit B attached hereto and by this 

reference made a part hereof as fully as if set forth herein, is hereby approved in substantially the 

form attached hereto; in the case of each of the Official Notice of Bond Sale and the Preliminary 

Official Statement with such completion and updating as shall be approved by the 

Superintendent of Schools or the Associate Superintendent for General Administration; the  

Preliminary Official Statement is hereby deemed final as of its date within the meaning of 

Rule 15c2-12 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (except for certain 

omissions permitted by said Rule 15c2-12); and the delivery by the Treasurer of the Board of 

Education of the District of said Preliminary Official Statement on behalf of the District is 

hereby authorized, approved, ratified and confirmed. 

THAT, the publication and the manner thereof by the Treasurer of the Board of 

Education of the District of said Official Notice of Bond Sale is hereby authorized, approved, 

ratified and confirmed. 

THAT, the Secretary of the Board of Education of the District be and said Secretary is 

authorized and directed to receive confidential proposals in accordance with said Official Notice 

of Bond Sale through the BiDCOMP™/PARITY
®
 electronic bid system (or, if for any reason 

such system is unavailable for use, sealed proposals complying with said Official Notice of Bond 

Sale) for said “General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2012,” until 11:00 a.m., Omaha 

Time, October 17, 2012. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 1st day of October, 2012. 

DOUGLAS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

017, IN THE STATE OF NEBRASKA 

(Millard Public Schools) 

ATTEST: 

By   

By        President 

     Secretary 

 

 

41



 

4829-1801-2433.2  

 

OFFICIAL NOTICE OF BOND SALE 

 
$14,500,000

*
 

DOUGLAS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 0017 

(Millard Public Schools) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS 

SERIES 2012 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that bids will be received on behalf of Douglas County 

School District 0017, In the State of Nebraska (Millard Public Schools) (the “District”) 

all-or-none bids for the purchase of $14,500,000
*
 principal amount of Douglas County School 

District 0017, In the State of Nebraska (Millard Public Schools) General Obligation Refunding 

Bonds, Series 2012 (the “Bonds”).  All bids must be submitted through the 

BiDCOMP™/PARITY
®

 electronic bid system and will be received on the date and up to the 

time specified below: 

Bid Date:  October 17, 2012 

Bid Time:  11:30 a.m. –12:00 noon Eastern Daylight Time (10:30 a.m. –11:00 a.m. 

Central Daylight Time) 

Bid Submission: All bids must be submitted through the BiDCOMP™/PARITY
®
 

electronic bid system (the “Approved Provider”).  The Approved 

Provider will act as agent of the bidder and not of the District in 

connection with the submission of bids and the District assumes no 

responsibility or liability for bids submitted through the Approved 

Provider.  None of the District, the Financial Advisor or Bond Counsel 

shall be responsible for, and each bidder expressly assumes the risk of, 

any incomplete, inaccurate, or untimely bid submitted through the 

Approved Provider by such bidder, including, without limitation, by 

reason of garbled transmissions, mechanical failure, engaged telephone 

or telecommunications lines, or any other cause arising from delivery 

through the Approved Provider.  All bids will be deemed to incorporate 

the provisions of this Official Notice of Bond Sale.  See “SUBMISSION 

OF BIDS” herein. 

No method of submitting bids other than through the Approved Provider will be 

accepted.  Information related to the Bonds can be obtained from Mr. Daniel Smith at the 

District’s Financial Advisor, D.A. Davidson & Co. (the “Financial Advisor”), at 

(800) 634-2770 or (402) 392-7979. 

This Official Notice of Bond Sale, and the information set forth herein, is not to be 

treated as a complete disclosure of all relevant information with respect to the Bonds.   The 

information set forth herein is subject, in all respects, to a more complete description of the 

                                                 
*
 Preliminary; subject to change. 

42



 

4829-1801-2433.2 2 

Bonds and the security therefore set forth in the Preliminary Official Statement with respect to 

the Bonds (the “Preliminary Official Statement”), as described below. 

DEFINITIONS 

Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the definitions assigned to them 

in the Preliminary Official Statement. 

INTEREST PAYMENTS AND MATURITIES 

The Bonds will be executed and delivered in the aggregate principal amount of 

$14,500,000
*
, will be dated November 16, 2012

*
, will mature on the dates and in the amounts set 

forth below (subject to adjustment as described below) and will bear interest from their original 

dated date to maturity, payable on each May 15 and November 15 of each year, beginning on 

May 15, 2013; except that Bonds which are reissued upon transfer, exchange or other 

replacement shall bear interest from the most recent May 15 and November 15 to which interest 

has been paid or duly provided for, or if no interest has been paid, from the original dated date of 

the Bonds: 

Maturity 

(November 15) 

Principal 

Amount
*† 

  

2013  

2014  

2015  

2016  

2017  

2018  

    
†
Subject to adjustments as set forth herein under “ADJUSTMENTS OF PRINCIPAL AMOUNTS.” 

 

USE OF PROCEEDS 

The proceeds received from the sale of the Bonds will be used to (a) refund certain 

maturities of the District’s outstanding Bonds issued April 15, 2003 and (b) pay certain costs 

related to the execution and delivery of the Bonds. 

SECURITY 

The Bonds are general obligation bonds of the District and the District is obligated to 

levy ad valorem taxes for the payment of the Bonds and interest thereon upon all taxable 

property within the District subject to taxation by the District without limitation as to rate or 

amount.  The full faith and credit of the District shall be pledged to the prompt payment of the 

principal of and interest on the Bonds. 

                                                 
*
 Preliminary; subject to change. 

43



 

4829-1801-2433.2 3 

REDEMPTION PROVISIONS 

The Bonds are not subject to redemption at the option of the District in advance of their 

respective maturities. 

RATINGS 

Moody’s Investors Service and Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, a Division of The 

McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., have assigned to the Bonds the respective ratings set forth on the 

cover page of the Preliminary Official Statement. 

ADJUSTMENTS OF PRINCIPAL AMOUNTS 

The District reserves the right to change the principal amount of each maturity by not 

more than 20% from the amounts set forth above under “INTEREST PAYMENTS AND 

MATURITIES” prior to the end of the business day on which bids are received to adjust for 

substantially level annual debt service and to properly size the issue.  Notice of any adjustment 

will be given to the winning bidder promptly.  If the principal amount is modified, the 

underwriting discount percentage (not the dollar amount of the underwriting discount) will be 

held constant according to the underwriting discount percentage imputed in the reoffering yields 

of the successful bidder. By submitting its bid, each bidder agrees to purchase the Bonds in such 

adjusted principal amounts and to modify the purchase price for the Bonds to reflect such 

adjusted principal amounts and that the interest rates for the various maturities as designated by 

the bidder in its bid will apply to any adjusted principal amount designated by the District for 

such maturities. 

TERM BONDS 

Any bidder may, at its option, specify that the maturities of the Bonds will consist of term 

Bonds which are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption in consecutive years 

immediately preceding the maturity thereof, (a “Term Bond”) as designated in the bid of such 

bidder.  In the event that the bid of the successful bidder specifies that any maturity of the Bonds 

will be a Term Bond, such Term Bond will be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption on 

November 15 of each applicable year, in the principal amount for such year as set forth above 

under “INTEREST PAYMENTS AND MATURITIES,” as the same may be modified as set 

forth above under “ADJUSTMENT OF PRINCIPAL AMOUNTS,” at a redemption price equal 

to the principal amount thereof (with no redemption premium), plus accrued interest to the 

redemption date. 

AMENDMENT OF NOTICE; RIGHT TO CHANGE TIMING AND TERMS OF SALE 

The District reserves the right to further amend this Official Notice of Bond Sale at any 

time prior to the date and time for receipt of bids by publishing the amendments via Thomson 

Municipal Market Monitor (www.tm3.com) (“TM3”). 

The District reserves the right to postpone the date and time established for the receipt of 

bids.  Any such postponement will be announced by posting on TM3 prior to commencement of 

the bidding.  If any date and time fixed for the receipt of bids and the sale of the Bonds is 

44



 

4829-1801-2433.2 4 

postponed, an alternative sale date and time will be announced at least one business day prior to 

such alternative sale date.  On any such alternative sale date and time, any bidder may submit 

bids electronically as described above for the purchase of the Bonds in conformity in all respects 

with the provisions of this Official Notice of Bond Sale, except for the date and time of sale and 

except for any changes announced at the time the sale date and time are announced. 

SUBMISSION OF BIDS 

Electronic proposals must be submitted through the Approved Provider.  Any electronic 

proposal submitted through any other means shall be disregarded.  Bidding for the Bonds will 

begin at 11:30 a.m. Eastern Daylight Time (10:30 a.m. Central Daylight Time), as indicated 

above.  The receipt of bids will end promptly at 12:00 noon Eastern Daylight Time (11:00 a.m. 

Central Daylight Time), at which time the bids will be communicated electronically to the 

District.  Prior to that time, a prospective bidder may (a) submit the proposed terms of its bid 

through the Approved Provider; (b) modify the proposed terms of its bid, in which event the 

proposed terms as last modified will (unless the bid is withdrawn as described herein) constitute 

its bid for the Bonds; or (c) withdraw its proposed bid.  Once the bids are communicated 

electronically through the Approved Provider to the District, each bid will constitute an 

irrevocable offer to purchase the Bonds on the terms therein provided. For purposes of the 

electronic bidding process, the time as maintained by the Approved Provider shall constitute the 

official time. 

The District, the Financial Advisor and Kutak Rock LLP (“Bond Counsel”) are not 

responsible for the proper operation of, and shall not have any liability for any delays or 

interruptions of or any damages caused by, the Approved Provider.  Each bidder expressly 

assumes the risk of any incomplete, inaccurate or untimely bid submitted through the Approved 

Provider, including, without limitation, by reason of garbled transmissions, mechanical failure, 

slow or engaged telephone or telecommunications lines or any other cause.  The District is using 

the Approved Provider as a communications mechanism and not as the District’s agent to 

conduct electronic bidding for the Bonds.  The District is not bound by any advice and 

determination of the Approved Provider to the effect that any particular bid complies with the 

terms of this Official Notice of Bond Sale.  All costs and expenses incurred by prospective 

bidders in connection with their submission of bids through the Approved Provider are the sole 

responsibility of the bidders and the District is not responsible for any of such costs or expenses.  

Further information about the Approved Provider, including any fee charged, may be obtained 

from Ipreo, 2
nd

 Floor, 1359 Broadway, New York, New York 10018, telephone: (212) 849-5021.  

The District assumes no responsibility or liability for bids submitted through the Approved 

Provider.  To the extent any instructions or directions set forth by the Approved Provider conflict 

with this Official Notice of Bond Sale, the terms of this Official Notice of Bond Sale shall 

control. 

The District may regard the electronic submission of a bid through the Approved 

Provider (including information about the purchase price for the Bonds and interest rate or rates 

to be borne by the various maturities of the Bonds and any other information included in such 

transmission) as though the same information were submitted by the bidder on the Bid Form and 

executed on the bidder’s behalf by a duly authorized signatory.  If such bid is accepted by the 

District, this Official Notice of Bond Sale, the Bid Form and the information that is 

45



 

4829-1801-2433.2 5 

electronically transmitted through the Approved Provider shall form a contract and the successful 

bidder shall be bound by the terms of such contract. 

The winning bidder will be required to wire a good faith deposit by 5:00 p.m. Eastern 

Daylight Time on the bid date (see below under “GOOD FAITH DEPOSIT AND METHOD OF 

PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS”). 

ALL-OR-NONE BIDS 

Each bid submitted must be a bid for purchase of all of the Bonds.  No bid for less than 

all of the Bonds will be accepted by the District. 

INTEREST RATE CONSTRAINTS 

All bids must comply with the following conditions:  (1) each interest rate specified in 

any bid must be a multiple of one-eighth or one-twentieth of one percent; (2) no Bond may bear 

more than one rate of interest; (3) each Bond must bear interest from its date to its stated 

maturity date at the interest rate specified in the bid; (4) all Bonds maturing on the same date 

must bear the same rate of interest and (5) no Bond may bear a zero rate of interest. 

Each bid on the Bonds must specify the total interest cost to the District during the term 

of such Bonds on the basis of such bid, the premium, if any, offered by the bidder, and the net 

interest cost to the District on the basis of such bid, all certified by the bidder to be correct.  The 

District will be entitled to rely on the Bond of correctness of the bidder.  Each bid must also 

specify the true interest cost to the District on the basis of such bid, as further described below 

under “BASIS OF AWARD.” 

PRICES 

Bidders must specify a purchase price of not less than 99.00% of the aggregate principal 

amount of the Bonds, plus accrued interest to the date of delivery.  Purchasers must pay accrued 

interest, if any, computed on a 30/360-day basis, from the date of the Bonds to their date of 

delivery. 

BASIS OF AWARD 

The Bonds will be awarded by the District to the bidder whose proposal provides the 

lowest interest cost to the District within the guidelines of this Notice of Bond Sale. The award 

of the Bonds will be made on the basis of the lowest true interest cost (“TIC”) to the District, 

which will be determined as follows: the TIC is the discount rate (expressed as a per annum 

percentage rate) which, when used in computing the present value of all payments of principal 

and interest to be paid on the Bonds, from the payment date to the issue date of November 16, 

2012
*
, produces an amount equal to the purchase price of the Bonds (such purchase price being 

the par amount of the Bonds, plus any premium, less any original issue discount, and less any 

underwriter’s discount).  Present value will be computed on the basis of semiannual 

compounding and a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months.  If there is any discrepancy between 

                                                 
*
 Preliminary; subject to change. 

46



 

4829-1801-2433.2 6 

the TIC specified and the interest rates and premium specified, the specified interest rates and 

premium shall govern, and the TIC specified in the bid shall be adjusted accordingly.  If two or 

more proper bids providing for identical amounts for the lowest TIC are received, the 

District will determine which bid, if any, will be accepted, and its determination will be 

final.  The District reserves the right to reject any and/or all bids and to waive any irregularities 

in a submitted bid. 

The Winning Bid will be unofficially awarded by the District by telephone promptly after 

the bidding deadline.  Upon notice of being unofficially awarded the bid, the winning bidder 

must immediately forward to the District and the Financial Advisor via facsimile and U.S. Mail a 

signed winning Bid Form (which will be generated by the Approved Provider and transmitted to 

the winning bidder by the Financial Advisor upon the conclusion of the bidding).  The winning 

bidder must provide reoffering yields promptly following the end of bidding, and in no case 

later than 1:00 p.m. Eastern Daylight Time on the bid date.  Following the receipt of the 

signed winning bid form by the District, the District will forward to the winning bidder a Bond 

of Award officially awarding the Bonds to the winning bidder.  Such official award will indicate 

any adjustments that were made by the District to the maturities pursuant to this Official Notice 

of Bond Sale. 

GOOD FAITH DEPOSIT AND METHOD OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS 

The winning bidder will be required to wire one hundred forty-five thousand dollars 

($145,000) to the District as a good faith deposit by 5:00 p.m. Eastern Daylight Time on the bid 

date.  The District will provide wire instructions to the winning bidder.  The good faith deposit 

will be retained by the Issuer and:  (a) will be applied, without allowance for interest, against the 

purchase price when the Bonds are delivered to and paid for by such winning bidder; or (b) will 

be retained by the District as liquidated damages if the bidder defaults with respect to the bid; or 

(c) will be returned to the bidder if the Bonds are not issued by the District for any reason which 

does not constitute a default by the bidder. 

RIGHT OF REJECTION; WAIVER OF IRREGULARITIES 

The District reserves the right to reject any or all bids, to waive any irregularity or 

nonconformity in any bid, or to take any action the District may deem to be in the best interest of 

the District.   

BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY 

The Bonds will be issued in registered, book-entry-only form, and all bidders for the 

Bonds must be participants of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC”) 

or affiliated with its participants.  DTC will be responsible for maintaining a book-entry system 

for recording the interests of its participants and for the transfer of the interests among its 

participants.  The participants will be responsible for maintaining records regarding the 

beneficial ownership interests in the Bonds on behalf of the individual purchasers.  Individual 

purchases may be made in denominations of $5,000 and integral multiples thereof (provided that 

no Bond may be in a denomination which exceeds the principal coming due on any maturity date 

and no individual Bond may be executed and delivered for more than one maturity) through 

47



 

4829-1801-2433.2 7 

book entries made on the books and records of DTC and its participants.  Unless the 

book-entry-only system is discontinued, Bond principal and interest payments will be made by 

the Trustee to DTC. 

STANDARD FILINGS AND CHARGES 

The winning bidder will be required to make the standard filings and maintain the 

appropriate records routinely required pursuant to MSRB Rules G-8, G-11 and G-36.  The 

winning bidder will be required to pay the standard MSRB charge for Bonds purchased.  In 

addition, those who are members of the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association 

(“SIFMA”) will be required to pay SIFMA’s standard charge per Bond. 

INFORMATION REQUIRED FROM WINNING BIDDER; CERTIFICATE OF 

REOFFERING PRICES 

The winning bidder must provide the Financial Advisor with the reoffering prices and 

yields for the Bonds it will purchase on the day Bonds are awarded upon the conclusion of the 

bidding.  See above under “BASIS OF AWARD.”  The reoffering prices and yields so provided 

will be printed on the cover of the final official statement relating to the Bonds (the “final 

Official Statement”). 

Prior to the date of delivery of the Bonds, the winning bidder shall be required to furnish 

to the District a written certificate, dated the date of delivery of the Bonds, in form and substance 

acceptable to Bond Counsel: (a) stating the initial reoffering price and yield of each maturity of 

the Bonds to the general public (excluding bond houses, brokers, or similar persons or 

organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters or wholesalers); (b) certifying that a bona 

fide offering of all the Bonds has been made to the public (excluding bond houses, brokers, or 

similar persons or organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters or wholesalers); (c) stating 

the prices at which at least 10% of each maturity and interest rate of the Bonds were first sold to 

the public (excluding bond houses, brokers, or similar persons or organizations acting in the 

capacity of underwriters or wholesalers) prior to the sale, allocation or allotment of any Bonds of 

each maturity and interest rate at other prices; and (d) certifying that the price and yield at which 

each maturity of Bonds was sold did not exceed the fair market value price and yield of such 

maturity as of the sale date. 

Failure to provide the reoffering prices and yields, or such certificate in a form 

satisfactory to Bond Counsel, may result in cancellation of the sale and/or forfeiture of the 

winning bidder’s good faith deposit. 

LEGAL OPINION 

The approving opinion of Kutak Rock LLP, Bond Counsel, in substantially the form 

appended to the Preliminary Official Statement, will be provided at no cost to the purchaser. 

TAX-EXEMPT STATUS 

In the opinion of Kutak Rock LLP, Bond Counsel, under existing laws, regulations, 

rulings and judicial decisions and assuming the accuracy of certain representations and 

48



 

4829-1801-2433.2 8 

continuing compliance by the District with certain covenants, the interest on the Bonds is 

excluded from gross income for purposes of federal income taxation under existing laws, 

regulations, rulings and judicial decisions, with such exceptions as shall be required by the terms 

of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and that such interest is not a specific item of 

tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax on individuals and 

corporations.  This paragraph is subject, in all respects, to the opinion of Kutak Rock LLP set 

forth in the Preliminary Official Statement and the information contained therein under the 

caption “TAX EXEMPTION.” 

DELIVERY AND PAYMENT 

Delivery of the Bonds will be made without cost to DTC.  Payment for the Bonds must 

be made in immediately available funds.  Delivery of the Bonds will be made on or about 

November 16, 2012
*
.  Payment of the purchase price due at delivery must be made in Federal 

Reserve funds for immediate and unconditional credit to the District. 

PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

The Preliminary Official Statement may be viewed and downloaded from 

www.munidoc.com (select “View Current Postings” and then select “D.A. Davidson & Co.”) or 

a physical copy may be obtained by contacting the Financial Advisor.  See “Additional 

Information” below.  The Preliminary Official Statement is, except for Permitted Omissions (as 

defined below), final as of its date, within the meaning of Rule 15c2-12 under the Securities 

Exchange Act of 1934 (17 C.F.R. Part 240, § 240.15c2-12).  “Permitted Omissions” means the 

offering prices, interest rates, selling compensation, delivery date, ratings, and any other terms 

required by the District to be specified in the competitive bid, the identity of the underwriters and 

other terms of the Bonds depending on such matters, all with respect to the Bonds. 

All bidders must review the Preliminary Official Statement prior to bidding. 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

Additional information and physical copies of the Preliminary Official Statement will be 

provided upon request by the Financial Advisor, D.A. Davidson & Co., 111 North 102
nd

 Court, 

Suite 300, Omaha, Nebraska 68114; (800) 634-2770 or (402) 392-7979; dsmith@dadco.com.  

Any questions concerning the Approved Provider, including any fee charged, may be obtained 

from Ipreo, 2
nd

 Floor, 1359 Broadway, New York, New York 10018, telephone: (212) 849-5021. 

FINAL OFFICIAL STATEMENT; COMPLIANCE WITH SEC RULES 

The District will provide the winning bidder with one electronic copy (in PDF format) 

and up to 50 physical copies of the final Official Statement for the Bonds at the expense of the 

District; provided however, the winning bidder must cooperate in providing the information 

required to complete the final Official Statement.  Upon request, the District will provide 

additional copies of the final Official Statement at the expense of the winning bidder.  The final 

Official Statement will be provided in a form “deemed final” by the District, not later than the 

                                                 
*
 Preliminary; subject to change. 

49

http://www.munidoc.com/
mailto:dsmith@dadco.com


 

4829-1801-2433.2 9 

seventh business day following the date of the sale.  Bidders should expect that the final Official 

Statement will not be available prior to the seventh business day following the date of the sale, 

and should not issue confirmations which request payment prior to that date.  This paragraph will 

constitute a contract with the winning bidder or bidders upon acceptance of their bids by the 

District, in compliance with Section 240.15c2-12(b)(3) in Chapter II of Title 17 of the Code of 

Federal Regulations. 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 

The District will enter into an undertaking to provide ongoing disclosure for the benefit 

of the Bond owners as required by Section (b)(5)(i) of Securities and Exchange Commission 

Rule 15c2-12 under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (17 C.F.R. Part 240, 

§ 240.15c2-12), in substantially the form shown in the Preliminary Official Statement. 

CUSIP 

The District will obtain and pay for CUSIP numbers for the Bonds.  If an incorrect 

number is imprinted on any Bond or if a number is not printed thereon, any such error or 

omission shall not constitute cause for the successful bidder to refuse delivery of any Bond. 

BLUE SKY LAWS 

The winning bidder will be responsible for the clearance or exemption with respect to the 

status of the Bonds for sale under the securities or “Blue Sky” laws of the several states and the 

preparation of any surveys or memoranda in connection therewith. 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank.] 

50



 

4829-1801-2433.2 10 

GOVERNING LAW 

This Official Notice of Bond Sale, and upon the acceptance by the District of a bid for the 

purchase of the Bonds in accordance with the terms of this Official Notice of Bond Sale, the 

resulting contract for the purchase of said Bonds, shall be deemed to have been made in 

Nebraska and shall be governed by and construed and interpreted under the laws of the State of 

Nebraska applicable to contracts made and performed in the State of Nebraska.  Additionally, the 

Bonds shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Nebraska. 

Dated:  October ____, 2012. 

Patrick Ricketts 

Treasurer 

Douglas County School District 0017 

5606 South 147
th

 Street 

Omaha, NE  68137 

51



  

PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED __________ __, 2012 

 
THIS COVER PAGE CONTAINS CERTAIN INFORMATION FOR QUICK REFERENCE ONLY.  IT IS NOT A SUMMARY 

OF THIS ISSUE.  INVESTORS MUST READ THE ENTIRE OFFICIAL STATEMENT TO OBTAIN INFORMATION 

ESSENTIAL TO THE MAKING OF AN INFORMED INVESTMENT DECISION. 

 

REFUNDING ISSUE RATINGS:  Moody’s:  “___”  

FULL BOOK-ENTRY Standard & Poor’s: “___”  

NOT BANK QUALIFIED See “RATINGS” herein 

 
In the opinion of Kutak Rock LLP, Bond Counsel, under existing laws, regulations, rulings and judicial decisions and assuming the accuracy of 

certain representations and continuing compliance with certain covenants, interest on the Bonds (including any original issue discount properly 

allocable to the Bonds) is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and is neither a specific preference item nor included in 

adjusted current earnings  for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax.  Bond Counsel also is of the opinion that, under existing laws of the 

State of Nebraska, such interest is exempt from Nebraska state income taxation. See “TAX EXEMPTION” herein. 

 

$13,100,000

 

DOUGLAS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 0017 
IN THE STATE OF NEBRASKA 
 (MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2012 

Dated:  Date of Delivery Due:  November 15, as shown on the inside cover 

The Bonds will be issued in fully registered form only and, when initially issued, will be registered in the name of Cede & 

Co., as the nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC”), which will act as securities 

depository for the Bonds.  Purchases of the Bonds will be made in book–entry form, in the principal amount of $5,000 or any 

integral multiple thereof, through brokers and dealers who are, or who act through, DTC participants.  Beneficial owners of 

the Bonds will not receive physical bond certificates so long as DTC or a successor securities depository acts as the security 

depository with respect to the Bonds.  Interest is payable on May 15 and November 15 of each year, beginning May 15, 2013.  

So long as DTC or its nominee is the registered owner of the Bonds, payments of the principal or redemption price of and 

interest on the Bonds will be made directly to DTC.  Disbursement of such payments to DTC participants is the responsibility 

of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the beneficial owners is the responsibility of DTC participants.  First National 

Bank of Omaha is bond registrar and paying agent for the Bonds (the “Registrar”).  For terms relating to principal and 

interest payments made to DTC or its nominee or in the event that the use of book-entry form is discontinued, see “THE 

BONDS - Book-Entry System.” 

The Bonds are not subject to optional redemption prior to maturity. 

The District will use the proceeds of the Bonds to retire its Series 2003 Bonds dated April 15, 2003 outstanding in the 

principal amount of $13,915,000. 

The Bonds are general obligations of the District payable from ad valorem taxes, unlimited as to rate and amount, levied 

against all of the taxable property of the District.  The full faith, credit, resources, and taxing powers of the District have been 

irrevocably pledged to the payment of the principal or redemption price of and interest on the Bonds.  See “SECURITY” 

and “NEBRASKA LAWS RELATED TO BUDGETS AND TAXATION” herein. 

 

 

MATURITY SCHEDULE – SEE INSIDE 

COVER 

 

 

The Bonds are offered in book-entry form only when, as and if issued, subject to the approving legal opinion of Kutak Rock 

LLP, Omaha, Nebraska, Bond Counsel, and to certain other conditions.  Delivery of the Bonds in definitive form through 

DTC is expected on or about November 16, 2012. 

 
 

                                                      

 Preliminary; subject to change. 

T
h

is
 P

re
lim

in
a
ry

 O
ff

ic
ia

l 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
d
 h

e
re

in
 a

re
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

to
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

r 
a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
t.
  

T
h

e
s
e
 s

e
c
u
ri

ti
e

s
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 

b
e
 s

o
ld

, 
n
o
r 

m
a

y
 o

ff
e
rs

 t
o
 b

u
y
 b

e
 a

c
c
e
p
te

d
, 

p
ri
o

r 
to

 t
h
e
 

ti
m

e
 t

h
e
 O

ff
ic

ia
l 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

is
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n

 f
in

a
l 
fo

rm
. 

 U
n
d
e
r 

n
o
 c

ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 s

h
a
ll 

th
is

 P
re

lim
in

a
ry

 O
ff
ic

ia
l 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

c
o
n
s
ti
tu

te
 a

n
 o

ff
e
r 

to
 s

e
ll 

o
r 

th
e
 s

o
li
c
it
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a
n
 o

ff
e
r 

to
 b

u
y
, 

n
o
r 

s
h
a
ll 

th
e
re

 b
e
 

a
n
y
 s

a
le

 o
f 

th
e
s
e
 s

e
c
u
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 a

n
y
 j
u

ri
s
d
ic

ti
o

n
 i
n

 w
h
ic

h
 s

u
c
h
 o

ff
e
r,

 s
o
lic

it
a
ti
o

n
 o

r 
s
a
le

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 u

n
la

w
fu

l 
p
ri
o

r 
to

 r
e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o

n
 o

r 
q
u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o

n
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 s

e
c
u
ri
ti
e

s
 l
a

w
s
 o

f 
s
u
c
h
 j
u
ri
s
d
ic

ti
o

n
. 

 

52



  

MATURITY SCHEDULE 

$13,100,000
 

DOUGLAS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 0017 

IN THE STATE OF NEBRASKA 

(MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2012 

 

Maturity 

(November 15) 

Principal 

Amount 

Rate of  

Interest 

Yield Price CUSIP


 

Number 

2013 $1,520,000 % % %  

2014 1,530,000     

2015 1,555,000     

2016 1,575,000     

2017 1,635,000     

2018 5,285,000     

 

                                                      

  Preliminary; subject to change. 


Copyright, American Bankers Association.  CUSIP data herein provided  by Standard & Poor’s, CUSIP Service Bureau, a 

division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc.  This data is not intended to create a database and does not serve in any way as 

a substitute for the CUSIP Service.  CUSIP numbers are provided for convenience of reference only.  Neither the District nor 

the Underwriter takes any responsibility for the accuracy of such numbers. 

53



 

DOUGLAS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 0017 

IN THE STATE OF NEBRASKA  

(MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS) 

 

Board of Education 

 

Dave Anderson, President 

Linda Poole, Vice President 

Mike Kennedy, Secretary 

Patrick Ricketts, Treasurer 

Mike Pate, Member 

Todd Clarke, Member 

 

Superintendent of Schools 

 

Dr. Keith W. Lutz 

 

Administrative Staff 

 

Kenneth J. Fossen, J.D., Associate Superintendent for General Administration 

 

 

FINANCIAL ADVISOR 

 

D.A. Davidson & Co. 

Omaha, Nebraska 

 

 

BOND COUNSEL 

 

Kutak Rock LLP 

Omaha, Nebraska 

 

 

REGISTRAR AND PAYING AGENT 

 
First National Bank of Omaha 

Omaha, Nebraska 

 

 

DISTRICT COUNSEL 
 

Young & White 

Omaha, Nebraska 

 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 

 

Orizon CPAs LLC 

 

 

UNDERWRITER 

 

___________________ 

54



 

 

 

REGARDING USE OF THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

__________________ 

AUTHORIZED INFORMATION AND REPRESENTATIONS 

No dealer, broker, sales representative or other person has been authorized by the District or the 

Underwriter to give any information or to make any representations with respect to the Bonds, other than 

those contained in this Official Statement, and, if given or made, such other information or 

representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized by any of the foregoing.  This Official 

Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy, nor shall there be any 

sale of the Bonds by any person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such person to make such 

offer, solicitation or sale.  The information set forth herein has been obtained from the District and other 

sources that are believed to be reliable, but is not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness by, and is not 

to be construed as a representation by, the Underwriter.  The information and expressions of opinion 

herein are subject to change without notice, and neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any 

sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstance, create any implication that there has been no change 

in the affairs of the District since the date hereof. 

__________________ 

REGISTRATION EXEMPTION 

The Bonds have not been registered with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission under 

the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), in reliance upon an exemption contained 

therein, or under any state securities or “blue sky” laws.  In making an investment decision, investors 

must rely upon their own examination of the District and the terms of the offering, including the merits 

and risks involved.  No federal or state securities commission or regulatory authority has recommended 

the Bonds.  Moreover, none of the foregoing authorities has confirmed the accuracy or determined the 

adequacy of this Official Statement.  Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense. 

__________________ 

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

Certain statements included or incorporated by reference in this Official Statement constitute “forward-

looking statements” within the meaning of the United States Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 

1995, Section 21E of the United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and Section 27A of 

the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended.  Such statements are generally identifiable by the 

terminology used such as “plan,” “expect,” “estimate,” “anticipate,” “budget,” “intend” or other similar 

words.  The achievement of certain results or other expectations contained in such forward-looking 

statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause actual 

results, performance or achievements described to be materially different from any future results, 

performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements.  Neither the 

District nor any other party plans to issue any updates or revisions to those forward-looking statements if 

or when the expectations, or events, conditions or circumstances upon which such statements are based 

occur. 

__________________ 

 

55



 

 

 

 

____________________ 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 Page 

INTRODUCTION ........................................................................................................................................ 1 
THE DISTRICT ............................................................................................................................................ 2 
PLAN OF FINANCING ............................................................................................................................... 2 
THE BONDS ................................................................................................................................................ 3 
SECURITY ................................................................................................................................................... 4 
NEBRASKA DEVELOPMENTS RELATED TO BUDGETS AND TAXATION .................................... 5 
LEGAL MATTERS ...................................................................................................................................... 7 
TAX EXEMPTION ...................................................................................................................................... 8 
MISCELLANEOUS ..................................................................................................................................... 9 

INFORMATION CONCERNING THE DISTRICT ............................................................... APPENDIX A 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .................... APPENDIX B 
FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE .................................................. APPENDIX C 
BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM ....................................................................................................... APPENDIX D 

FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL ......................................................................... APPENDIX E 
____________________ 

THE UNDERWRITER INTENDS TO OFFER THE BONDS INITIALLY AT THE OFFERING 

PRICES SET FORTH ON THE INSIDE COVER OF THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT, WHICH 

MAY SUBSEQUENTLY CHANGE WITHOUT ANY REQUIREMENT OF PRIOR NOTICE.  IN 

CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING, THE UNDERWRITER MAY OVER-ALLOT OR 

EFFECT TRANSACTIONS THAT STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICE OF 

THE BONDS OFFERED HEREBY AT A LEVEL ABOVE THAT WHICH MIGHT 

OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET, AND SUCH STABILIZING, IF 

COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME. 

THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT IS NOT, AND MAY NOT BE CONSTRUED AS, A CONTRACT 
WITH THE PURCHASERS OF THE BONDS.  STATEMENTS CONTAINED HEREIN WHICH 
INVOLVE ESTIMATES, FORECASTS, OR MATTERS OF OPINION, WHETHER OR NOT 
EXPRESSLY SO DESCRIBED HEREIN, ARE INTENDED SOLELY AS SUCH AND ARE NOT 
TO BE CONSTRUED AS A REPRESENTATION OF FACTS. 

____________________ 

56



  

OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

$13,100,000
 

DOUGLAS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 0017 

IN THE STATE OF NEBRASKA 

 (MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2012 

INTRODUCTION 

This introduction is only a brief description and summary of certain information contained in this Official 

Statement and is qualified in its entirety by reference to more complete and detailed information 

contained in the entire Official Statement, including the cover page and appendices hereto, and the 

documents summarized or described herein.  A full review should be made of the entire Official 

Statement. 

Purpose of the Official Statement 

The purpose of this Official Statement is to furnish information relating to (a)  Douglas County School 

District 0017 in the State of Nebraska (Millard Public Schools) (the “District”) and (b)  the General 

Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 (the “Bonds”), of the District, dated November 16, 2012, 

issued in the aggregate principal amount of $13,100,000*. 

The District 

The District is a Class III school district and political subdivision organized and existing under the laws of 

the State of Nebraska (the “State”), maintaining both elementary and high school grades under the 

direction of a single board of education.  See “THE DISTRICT.” 

The Bonds 

The Bonds are being issued pursuant to a resolution (the “Bond Resolution”) passed by the Board of 

Education (the “Board”) of the District for the purpose of (a)  refinancing the District’s outstanding 

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2003 dated April 15, 2003 (the “Refunded Bonds”), and 

(b)  paying the costs of issuing the Bonds.  See “THE BONDS” and “PLAN OF FINANCING.” 

Security and Source of Payment 

The Bonds are general obligations of the District payable from ad valorem taxes, unlimited as to rate and 

amount, levied against all of the taxable property of the District.  The full faith, credit, resources, and 

taxing powers of the District have been irrevocably pledged to the payment of the principal or redemption 

price of and interest on the Bonds.  See “SECURITY” and “NEBRASKA LAWS RELATED TO 

BUDGETS AND TAXATION.” 

Financial Statements 

The District’s audited financial statements as of and for the year ended August 31, 2011, are included in 

“APPENDIX B - INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.”  
These financial statements have been audited by Orizon CPAs LLC, independent certified public 

accountants, to the extent and for the periods indicated in their report, which is also included therein. 

                                                      

 Preliminary; subject to change. 

57



2 

THE DISTRICT 

General 

The District is a Class III school district and political subdivision organized and existing under the laws of 

the State.  The District is located in the southwestern portion of the City of Omaha, Nebraska, and an 

adjacent portion of Sarpy County, Nebraska, encompasses approximately 35 square miles, and has an 

estimated population of approximately 125,000 persons.  See “APPENDIX A - INFORMATION 

CONCERNING THE DISTRICT – GENERAL INFORMATION.” 

PLAN OF FINANCING 

Authorization of Bonds 

The Bonds are authorized pursuant to and in full compliance with the Constitution and statutes of the 

State, including, without limitation, Section 10–142, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, 2007, as 

amended.  The Bonds are being issued pursuant to the Bond Resolution for the purpose of refinancing the 

Refunded Bonds, and paying the costs of issuing the Bonds.  

Issues to be Refunded 

The following issue and maturities will be called for redemption: 

 

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2003 

Dated April 15, 2003 
 

Maturing 

November 15 

 

Principal Amount 

 

Interest Rate 

 

CUSIP Number 

    

2013 $1,530,000 4.00% 259327 ZU1 

2014 1,575,000 4.00 259327 ZV9 

2015 1,630,000 4.00 259327 ZW7 

2016 1,675,000 4.00 259327 ZX5 

2017 1,755,000 4.10 259327 ZY3 

2018 5,750,000 4.25 259327 ZZ0 

 

Sources and Uses of Funds 

The following table summarizes the estimated sources of funds and the expected uses of such funds in 

connection with the plan of financing:  

Sources of Funds: 

Principal Amount of Bonds $_________ 

Net Original Issue (Discount) Premium _________ 

   

 Total $_________ 

Uses of Funds: 

Refunding Deposit $_________ 

Underwriter’s Discount _________ 

Costs of Issuance _________ 

 Total $_________ 

58



3 

THE BONDS 

General 

The Bonds will be issued in the principal amount of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, be dated 

November 16, 2012 (the “Dated Date”), bear interest from the Dated Date payable on May 15 and 

November 15 of each year, commencing May 15, 2013 (each, and “Interest Payment Date”), mature on 

November 15 in the years and the principal amounts, and bear interest at the rates (calculated on the basis 

of a 360–day year consisting of twelve, 30–day months) set forth on the inside cover.  Each installment of 

interest is payable by check or draft mailed by First National Bank of Omaha (the “Registrar”) on the 

due date thereof (or on the next business day if such due date falls on a Saturday, Sunday or bank holiday 

applicable to the Registrar) to the registered owner of any Bond shown on the bond registration records of 

the District maintained by the Registrar as of the Record Date (hereinafter defined).  The principal of each 

Bond is payable only upon the surrender of such Bond to the Registrar.  The “Record Date” for each 

payment of interest shall be the 1
st
 day of each month in which an Interest Payment Date occurs. 

Book-Entry System 

General.  The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) will act as securities depository for the Bonds.  The 

ownership of one fully registered Bond for each maturity, as set forth on the inside cover hereof, each in 

the aggregate principal amount of such maturity, will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as DTC’s 

nominee.  Ownership interests in the Bonds will be available to purchasers through a book-entry system 

maintained by DTC (the “Book-Entry System”).  A description of DTC, the Book-Entry System and 

definitions of initially capitalized terms used under this caption are found in “APPENDIX D - BOOK–

ENTRY SYSTEM.” 

Risk Factors.  Beneficial Owners of the Bonds may experience some delay in their receipt of 

distributions of the principal or redemption price of and interest on the Bonds because such distributions 

will be forwarded by the Registrar to DTC, credited by DTC to its Direct Participants, and then credited 

to the accounts of the Beneficial Owners either directly or indirectly through Indirect Participants. 

Because transactions in the Bonds can only be effected through DTC, DTC Participants and certain 

banks, the ability of a Beneficial Owner to pledge Bonds to persons or entities that do not participate in 

the Book-Entry System, or otherwise to take actions in respect of such Bonds, may be limited due to the 

lack of physical certificates.  The Registrar will not recognize Beneficial Owners as registered owners for 

purposes of the Bond Resolution, and Beneficial Owners will be permitted to exercise the rights of 

registered owners only indirectly through DTC and DTC Participants. 

Optional Redemption 

The Bonds are not subject to optional redemption prior to maturity. 

Notice and Effect of Call for Redemption. 

In the event of mandatory sinking fund redemptions of Bonds, the Registrar will give written notice of 

redemption by first-class mail to the registered owner of each Bond to be redeemed, such notice to be 

mailed not fewer than 30 days prior to the redemption date.  Notice of redemption having been given as 

required, the Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed shall become due and payable on the redemption 

date and from and after the redemption date (unless the District defaults in the payment of the redemption 

price) such Bonds or portion thereof shall cease to bear interest. 

So long as DTC is effecting book-entry transfers of the Bonds, the Registrar will provide the notices of 

Bonds to be redeemed to DTC.  It is expected that DTC will notify the DTC Participants and that the 

DTC Participants will notify or cause to be notified the Beneficial Owners.  Any failure on the part of 

DTC or a DTC Participant, or failure on the part of a nominee of a Beneficial Owner of a Bond (having 

59



4 

been mailed notice from the Registrar, a DTC Participant or otherwise) to notify the Beneficial Owner of 

the Bond so affected, will not affect the validity of the redemption of such Bond. 

Interchangeability and Transfer 

Each Bond when issued shall be registered by the Registrar in the name of the owner thereof on the Bond 

Register.  Bonds are transferable only upon the Bond Register upon presentation and surrender of the 

Bonds, together with instructions for transfer.  Bonds may be exchanged for Bonds in the same aggregate 

principal amount and maturity upon presentation to the Registrar, subject to the terms, conditions and 

limitations set forth in the Bond Resolution and upon payment of any tax, fee or other governmental 

charge required to be paid with respect to any such registration, transfer or exchange. 

In all cases in which the privilege of exchanging or transferring the Bonds is exercised, the District shall 

execute and the Registrar shall deliver the Bonds in accordance with the Bond Resolution.  For every such 

transfer or exchange of Bonds, the Registrar shall require the payment by the registered owner requesting 

such transfer or exchange of any tax or other governmental charges payable with respect thereto, and may 

charge a sum not exceeding the actual cost for each new Bond. 

The foregoing procedures will not apply to the Bonds so long as they held are in book-entry form.  The 

transfer and exchange of Bonds held in book-entry form will be governed by the procedures described in 

“APPENDIX D - BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM.” 

SECURITY 

The full faith, credit, resources and taxing powers of the District have been irrevocably pledged to the 

payment of the principal or redemption price of and interest on the Bonds.  The District has the power and 

is obligated to levy ad valorem taxes without limitation as to rate or amount upon all property subject to 

taxation by the District sufficient to pay the principal or redemption price of and interest on the Bonds, 

which taxes shall be in excess of and in addition to all other taxes now or hereafter authorized to be levied 

by the District. 

NEBRASKA DEVELOPMENTS RELATED TO BUDGETS AND TAXATION 

General 

The District’s principal sources of revenue for its general fund are local property taxes and State Aid.  

Local property taxes constitute the District’s largest revenue sources, but are subject to certain limitations 

as discussed below.  State Aid for each school district is determined annually based on student adjustment 

weightings and a variety of other factors including taxable valuations and per student costs. 

The system of assessing and taxing personal property by the State for purposes of local ad valorem 

taxation for support of local political subdivisions, including the District, has from time to time been the 

object of controversy, legal challenges, constitutional initiative petitions and legislative action. 

Budget and Levy Limitations 

 

The Nebraska Legislature has imposed budget limitations and property tax levy restrictions on Nebraska 

political subdivisions, including public school districts, intended to reduce overall property taxes and 

expenditures in the State.  Budget limitations relating to school districts (Section 79-1023 et seq., Reissue 

Revised Statutes of Nebraska, 2008, as amended, and related sections, the “Budget Limitations”) limit the 

growth in general fund expenditures for school districts.  Property tax levy restrictions provide for an 

overall limitation on the tax levies of school districts.  The Budget Limitations, because they apply only to 

general fund expenditures, do not limit budgeting of expenditures for debt service on bonded debt, nor do 

they limit building fund and other special fund expenditures. 

 

60



5 

Pursuant to Section 79-1023 et seq., Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, 2008, as amended, and related 

sections, the Nebraska Department of Education determines for each school district its allowable growth 

percentage.  Such percentage is to be calculated with reference to a base limitation set in Section 77-3446, 

Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, 2009, as amended, at 0.0% for Fiscal Year 2011-12 and0.5% for 

Fiscal Year 2012-13, subject to modification from year to year by the Nebraska Legislature and a growth 

range which is up to 3% above such base limitation.  The specific growth percentage for each school 

district is to be calculated based upon student population, certain cost factors and target budget levels 

established by the Department of Education. 

 

Under Section 77-3442 et seq., Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, 2009, as amended, and related 

sections, the rates for levying property taxes have been reduced for each type of governmental unit in the 

State of Nebraska.  The maximum levy (the “Levy Limitations”) for school districts, such as the District, 

that are members of a Learning Community, is set at the difference between (i) $1.05/$100 of taxable 

valuation and (ii) the Learning Community’s general fund and special building fund levy.  Such Levy 

Limitations do not apply to levies for bonded indebtedness approved according to law and secured by a 

levy on property, levies for preexisting lease–purchase contracts approved prior to July 1, 1998, and to 

levies to pay judgments.  Also excluded from the Levy Limitations are amounts to be paid by a school 

district to certified employees in exchange for voluntary termination of employment and amounts levied 

to pay for special building funds established for projects commenced prior to April 1, 1996, for 

construction, expansion or alteration of school district buildings. 

 

Section 77-3444, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, 2009, as amended, does permit a political 

subdivision to exceed its otherwise applicable Levy Limitation for a period of up to five years by majority 

vote of the electorate.   

 

All Levy Limitation exceptions are subject to Section 77-3442(14) which provides that any combined tax 

levy of a school district in excess of the greater of (a) $1.20/$100 of taxable value or (b) the maximum 

levy authorized by a vote pursuant to Section 77-3444, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, 2009, as 

amended, except levies for bonded indebtedness approved by the voters of the school district and levies 

for the refinancing of such bonded indebtedness, is considered an unauthorized levy pursuant to 

Section 77-1606, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, 2009, as amended.  However, the District does 

not expect its combined tax levy, other than any levies to pay voter–approved bonds, to exceed the greater 

of (a) or (b) above. 

   

As the Bonds are general obligations of the District payable from the special property tax levy 

authorized by law and approved by the voters of the District, neither the tax levy nor the 

corresponding expenditures to pay debt service on the Bonds are subject to the Levy Limitations or 

the Budget Limitations. 

 

There can be no assurance that Nebraska’s system of assessing and taxing real and personal property, or 

that its laws relating to Learning Communities, will remain substantially unchanged, given the possibility 

of additional legislation, litigation, initiatives and referenda.  Such changes could materially and adversely 

affect the amount of property tax revenues the District could collect in future years.  The District does not 

believe, however, that the Nebraska Legislature, subject to constitutional restrictions, would leave the 

District without adequate taxing or other resources to pay for its programs and meet its financial 

obligations, including the repayment of its bonds and other obligations.  The opinion of Bond Counsel 

will be rendered based on the law existing as of the date of issuance of the Certificates and in reliance 

upon general legal presumptions in favor of the constitutionality of statutes and upon the holdings of 

existing case law. 

 

61



6 

School Finances 

 

In Nebraska, School State Aid amounts fluctuate from year to year based upon factors set in the related 

statutes and possible further Legislative revisions, and the District’s State Aid amount could increase or 

decrease in future years. 

 

In Fiscal Year 2011-12, the District received $76,468,282 in State Aid.  This amount included $4,411,094 

of federal moneys referred to as “EduJobs Funds” that the Nebraska Legislature used to fund its State Aid 

formula for schools.  In Fiscal Year 2012-13, the District will receive $72,526,676.  The State of 

Nebraska budgets on a biennial basis.  In establishing the State’s budget for the 2011-13 biennium during 

its 2011 legislative session, the Legislature appropriated $880 million for State Aid to schools.  During 

the 2012 legislative session, the Legislature reduced the appropriation to $852 million and applied the 

balance to fund other areas of the state budget and to reduce state income taxes. 

 

The District recognizes that further pressure on state revenues may have adverse effects on future levels 

of State Aid the District receives. 

 

Since Fiscal Year 2009-10, the total State Aid the District receives comes through the Learning 

Community (the “Learning Community”), an inter–district cooperative of 11 public school districts in 

Douglas and Sarpy Counties that shares financial resources from both State Aid and property taxes. 

Member districts of the Learning Community share in the distribution of State Aid as calculated for the 

Learning Community as a whole.  The distribution to each district is based upon its portion of the total 

“formula needs” calculated for the entire Learning Community pursuant to the statutory State Aid 

formula. 

 

Additionally, the Learning Community, through Section 79–2104, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, 

2008, as amended, has the authority to annually set a common levy of up to $0.95.  The proceeds of such 

common levy are distributed to the member districts for their general funds pursuant to the formula 

provided in Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-1073.  The balance of the tax levy that is permitted under the $1.05 levy 

lid discussed under “Budget and Levy Limitations” above may be levied by each individual school 

district on its own property tax base for general fund or building fund purposes. 

Following the formation of the Learning Community and the subsequent sharing of both State Aid and 

property tax resources by the member districts, the Millard School District found that it has benefited 

somewhat from the sharing arrangement.  The benefit has been calculated to be about $2 million per year 

or slightly less than 1% of the District’s general fund budget of expenditures. 

The property values in the Learning Community and in the Millard School District have been relatively 

flat in the past few years (i.e., growth of less than 1%), which has limited the increase in property tax 

collections in the absence of levy increases.  This limited growth in property taxes combined with the 

reduction in State Aid has required the Millard School District to reduce its general fund budget from 

$210.7 million in Fiscal Year 2011-12 to about $208.0 million in Fiscal Year 2012-13.  The budget 

reductions have been primarily addressed through staff reductions via attrition (i.e., not replacing 

vacancies created by retirements, resignations, etc.) and by reducing the number of routine capital 

construction projects (i.e. replacing roofs, parking lots, etc.). 

Motor Vehicle Taxes 

Under existing state law, motor vehicle valuations no longer are included in the District’s property tax 
base.  Separate and apart from any ad valorem taxes, counties in the state of Nebraska collect motor 
vehicles taxes and fees.  The county allocates to each school district 60% of the motor vehicle taxes and 
fees (less a 1% county treasurer collection fee) arising from motor vehicles within the school district.  
Additionally, school districts are required to deposit such distributions of taxes into their general funds, 
where they will not be available to repay bonded indebtedness, including the Certificates. 

62



7 

Additional Considerations 

The future methods for providing for financing school districts and other local units may be altered 

depending upon future actions taken by voters of the State under initiative and referendum provisions of 

the Nebraska constitution, future actions of the Nebraska Legislature and future decisions of Nebraska 

state and federal courts. 

LEGAL MATTERS 

Legal Proceedings 

As of the date hereof, there is no controversy, suit or other proceeding of any kind pending or threatened 

in or by which any question is raised or may be raised, questioning, disputing or affecting in any way the 

legal organization of the District or its boundaries, or the right or title of any of its officers to his or her 

respective office, or the legality of any official act in connection with the authorization, issuance and sale 

of the Bonds, or the constitutionality or validity of the Bonds or any of the proceedings had in relation to 

the authorization, issuance or sale thereof, or the levy and collection of a tax to pay the principal and 

interest thereof, or which might affect the District’s ability to meet its obligations to pay the Bonds.  

Legal Opinion 

Legal matters incident to the issuance of the Bonds and with regard to the status of the interest thereon are 

subject to the legal opinion of Kutak Rock LLP, Omaha, Nebraska, Bond Counsel.  A signed copy of that 

opinion for the Bonds, dated and premised on facts and laws existing as of the date of original delivery of 

the Bonds, will be delivered to the Underwriter at the time of such original delivery.  In rendering its legal 

opinions, Bond Counsel will rely upon certifications and representations of fact to be contained in the 

transcript of proceedings which Bond Counsel will not have independently verified. 

In its capacity as Bond Counsel, Kutak Rock LLP has participated in the preparation of, and has reviewed 

those portions of, this Official Statement pertaining to the Bonds, and the tax status of the interest on the 

Bonds contained under the captions “THE BONDS,” “SECURITY” and “TAX EXEMPTION” herein.  

Said firm has not been retained to pass upon any other information in this Official Statement, including 

Appendix A, Appendix B or in any other reports, financial information, offering or disclosure documents 

or other information pertaining to the District or the Bonds that may be prepared or made available by the 

District or others to the prospective purchasers of the Bonds or to others. 

Original Issue Discount 

The Bonds maturing in the years ____ through ____, inclusive (collectively, the “Discount Bonds”) are 

being sold at an original issue discount.  The difference between the initial public offering prices, as set 

forth on the reverse of the cover page, of such Discount Bonds and their stated amounts to be paid at 

maturity constitutes original issue discount treated as interest which is excluded from gross income for 

federal income tax purposes, as described above. 

The amount of original issue discount which is treated as having accrued with respect to such Discount 

Bond is added to the cost basis of the owner in determining, for federal income tax purposes, gain or loss 

upon disposition of such Discount Bond (including its sale, redemption or payment at maturity).  

Amounts received upon disposition of such Discount Bond which are attributable to accrued original 

issue discount will be treated as tax exempt interest, rather than as taxable gain, for federal income tax 

purposes. 

Original issue discount is treated as compounding semiannually, at a rate determined by reference to the 

yield to maturity of each individual Discount Bond, on days which are determined by reference to the 

maturity date of such Discount Bond.  The amount treated as original issue discount on such Discount 

Bond for a particular semiannual accrual period is equal to the product of (i) the yield to maturity for such 

63



8 

Discount Bond (determined by compounding at the close of each accrual period) and (ii) the amount 

which would have been the tax basis of such Discount Bond at the beginning of the particular accrual 

period if held by the original purchaser, less the amount of any interest payable for such Discount Bond 

during the accrual period.  The tax basis is determined by adding to the initial public offering price on 

such Discount Bond the sum of the amounts which have been treated as original issue discount for such 

purposes during all prior periods.  If such Discount Bond is sold between semiannual compounding dates, 

original issue discount which would have been accrued for the semiannual compounding period for 

federal income tax purposes is to be apportioned in equal amounts among the days in such compounding 

period. 

Owners of Discount Bonds should consult their tax advisors with respect to the determination and 

treatment of original issue discount accrued as of any date and with respect to the state and local tax 

consequences of owning a Discount Bond. 

Original Issue Premium 

The Bonds maturing in the years ____ through ____, inclusive, and ____ (collectively, the “Premium 

Bonds”), are being sold at a premium.  An amount equal to the excess of the issue price of a Premium 

Bond over its stated redemption price at maturity constitutes premium on such Premium Bond.  An initial 

purchaser of a Premium Bond must amortize any premium over such Premium Bond’s term using 

constant yield principles, based on the purchaser’s yield to maturity (or, in the case of Premium Bonds 

callable prior to their maturity, by amortizing the premium to the call date, based on the purchaser’s yield 

to the call date and giving effect to the call premium).  As premium is amortized, the purchaser’s basis in 

such Premium Bond is reduced by a corresponding amount resulting in an increase in the gain (or 

decrease in the loss) to be recognized for federal income tax purposes upon a sale or disposition of such 

Premium Bond prior to its maturity.  Even though the purchaser’s basis may be reduced, no federal 

income tax deduction is allowed.  Purchasers of Premium Bonds should consult with their tax advisors 

with respect to the determination and treatment of amortizable premium for federal income tax purposes 

and with respect to the state and local tax consequences of owning a Premium Bond. 

TAX EXEMPTION 

In General 

In the opinion of Kutak Rock LLP, Bond Counsel, to be delivered at the time of original issuance of the 

Bonds, under existing laws, regulations, rulings and judicial decisions, interest on the Bonds (including 

any original issue discount properly allocable to the Bonds) is excludable from gross income for federal 

income tax purposes.  Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that such interest is neither a specific 

preference item nor included in adjusted current earnings for purposes of the federal alternative minimum 

tax.  The opinions described in the preceding sentences assumes the accuracy of certain representations 

and compliance by the District with covenants designed to satisfy the requirements of the Code that must 

be met subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds.  Failure to comply with such requirements could cause 

interest on the Bonds to be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes retroactive to the 

date of issuance of the Bonds.  The District has covenanted to comply with such requirements.  Bond 

Counsel has expressed no opinion regarding other federal tax consequences arising with respect to the 

Bonds. 

The accrual or receipt of interest on the Bonds may otherwise affect the federal income tax liability of the 

owners of the Bonds.  The extent of these other tax consequences will depend upon such owner’s 

particular tax status and other items of income or deduction.  Bond Counsel has expressed no opinion 

regarding any such consequences.  Purchasers of the Bonds, particularly purchasers that are corporations 

(including S corporations and foreign corporations operating branches in the United States), property or 

casualty insurance companies, banks, thrifts or other financial institutions, certain recipients of social 

security or railroad retirement benefits, taxpayers otherwise entitled to claim the earned income credit, or 

taxpayers who may be deemed to have incurred or continued indebtedness to purchase or carry tax-

64



9 

exempt obligations, should consult their tax advisors as to the tax consequences of purchasing or owning 

the Bonds. 

In the further opinion of Bond Counsel, under the existing laws of the State of Nebraska, the interest on 

the Bonds is exempt from Nebraska state income taxation so long as it is exempt for purposes of the 

federal income tax.  See “APPENDIX E – FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL.” 

Backup Withholding 

As a result of the enactment of the Tax Increase Prevention and Reconciliation Act of 2005, interest on 

tax-exempt obligations such as the Bonds is subject to information reporting in a manner similar to 

interest paid on taxable obligations.  Backup withholding may be imposed on payments made after 

March 31, 2007 to any bondholder who fails to provide certain required information including an accurate 

taxpayer identification number to any person required to collect such information pursuant to 

Section 6049 of the Code.  The reporting requirement does not in and of itself affect or alter the 

excludability of interest on the Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes or any other 

federal tax consequence of purchasing, holding or selling tax-exempt obligations. 

Changes in Federal and State Tax Law 

From time to time, there are legislative proposals in the Congress and in the states that, if enacted, could 

alter or amend the federal and state tax matters referred to above or adversely affect the market value of 

the Bonds.  It cannot be predicted whether or in what form any such proposal might be enacted or whether 

if enacted it would apply to bonds issued prior to enactment.  In addition, regulatory actions are from time 

to time announced or proposed and litigation is threatened or commenced which, if implemented or 

concluded in a particular manner, could adversely affect the market value of the Bonds.  It cannot be 

predicted whether any such regulatory action will be implemented, how any particular litigation or 

judicial action will be resolved, or whether the Bonds or the market value thereof would be impacted 

thereby.  Purchasers of the Bonds should consult their tax advisors regarding any pending or proposed 

legislation, regulatory initiatives or litigation.  The opinions expressed by Bond Counsel are based upon 

existing legislation and regulations as interpreted by relevant judicial and regulatory authorities as of the 

date of issuance and delivery of the Bonds and Bond Counsel has expressed no opinion as of any date 

subsequent thereto or with respect to any pending legislation, regulatory initiatives or litigation. 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Ratings 

Moody’s Investors Service has assigned the Bonds the rating of “___” and Standard & Poor’s, a division 

of The McGraw-Hill Companies, has assigned the Bonds the rating of “___”.  Such ratings reflect only 

the views of such organizations and an explanation of the significance of such ratings may be obtained 

from Moody’s Investors Service, 7 World Trade Center, 250 Greenwich Street, 23
rd

 Floor, New York, 

New York 10007, telephone (212) 553–0300, and Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, 55 Water Street, 

New York, New York, 10041, telephone (212) 438–2124. 

Generally, rating agencies base their ratings on such information and materials and investigations, studies 

and assumptions furnished to and obtained and made by the rating agencies.  The debt ratings are not a 

recommendation to purchase, sell or hold a security, inasmuch as they do not comment as to market price 

or suitability for a particular investor.  There is no assurance that the above ratings will remain for any 

given period of time or that they may not be lowered, suspended or withdrawn entirely by either or both 

rating services if they deem circumstances are appropriate.  Any downward change in, suspension or 

withdrawal of either or both ratings may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Bonds. 

65



10 

Continuing Disclosure 

In connection with the issuance of the Bonds, the District will execute and deliver a Continuing 

Disclosure Certificate (the “Disclosure Certificate”), pursuant to the requirements of Securities and 

Exchange Commission Rule 15c2–12 (the “Rule”) under which the District will send certain financial 

information and operating data and provide notice of certain material events to the Municipal Securities 

Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB”) through the MSRB’s Electronic Municipal Market Access system 

(“EMMA”).  EMMA is an internet-based, online portal for free investor access to municipal bond 

information, including offering documents, material event notices, real-time municipal securities trade 

prices and MSRB education resources, available at www.emma.msrb.org.  Nothing contained on EMMA 

relating to the Bonds is incorporated by reference in this Official Statement.  The proposed form of the 

Disclosure Certificate is included in this Official Statement as “APPENDIX C – FORM OF 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE.” 

The District inadvertently did not file timely certain of its annual financial information and operating data 

for the years 2010 and 2011, as required under the Rule and the District’s previous continuing disclosure 

undertakings.  In accordance with the Rule and such undertakings, the District filed a material event 

notice on June 21, 2012, including its annual financial information and operating data, with the Municipal 

Securities Rulemaking Board’s EMMA website to such effect.  The District is now in compliance with all 

of its existing continuing disclosure undertakings in all material respects and has implemented procedures 

in furtherance of its future compliance with the Rule. 

A failure by the District to comply with the Disclosure Certificate will not constitute a default under the 

Resolution, although bondholders will have any available remedy at law or in equity.  Any such failure 

must be reported in accordance with the Rule and must be considered by any broker, dealer or municipal 

securities dealer before recommending the purchase or sale of the Bonds in the secondary market.  

Consequently, such a failure may adversely affect the transferability and liquidity of the Bonds and their 

market price. 

Financial Advisor 

D.A. Davidson & Co. has acted as financial advisor (the “Financial Advisor”) to the District in 

connection with the sale of the Bonds.  The Financial Advisor will not be a manager or a member of any 

purchasing group submitting a proposal for the purchase of the Bonds.  The Financial Advisor has read 

and participated in the preparation of this Official Statement and has supervised the compilation and 

editing thereof.  The Financial Advisor has not, however, independently verified the factual and financial 

information contained in this Official Statement and, accordingly, expresses no view as to the sufficiency 

or accuracy thereof. 

Independent Auditors 

The financial statements of the District, as of and for the years ended August 31, 2011, included in 

“APPENDIX B – INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,” 

have been audited by Orizon CPAs LLC, independent auditors, as stated in their report appearing therein. 

Certification and Other Matters Regarding Official Statement 

Information set forth in this Official Statement has been furnished or reviewed by certain officials of the 

District, certified public accountants, and other sources, as referred to herein, which are believed to be 

reliable.  Any statements made in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion, estimates or 

projections, whether or not so expressly stated, are set forth as such and not as representations of fact, and 

no representation is made that any of the estimates or projections will be realized. 

Simultaneously with the delivery of the Bonds, the Superintendent of the District, acting on behalf of the 

District, will furnish to the Underwriter a certificate stating, among other things, that to the best 

66



11 

knowledge and belief of such officer, this Official Statement (and any amendment or supplement hereto) 

as of the date of sale and as of the date of delivery of the Bonds does not contain any untrue statement of 

a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the 

statements herein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading in any 

material respect. 

The District will, upon delivery of the Bonds, certify that there is no litigation pending affecting the 

validity of the Bonds as of the date of delivery. 

The form of this Official Statement, and its distribution and use by the Underwriter, has been approved by 

the District.  Neither the District nor any of its officers, directors or employees, in either their official or 

personal capacities, has made any warranties, representations or guarantees regarding the financial 

condition of the District or the District’s ability to make payments required of it; and further, neither the 

District nor its officers, directors or employees assumes any duties, responsibilities or obligations in 

relation to the issuance of the Bonds other than those either expressly or by fair implication imposed on 

the District by the Bond Resolution. 

This Official Statement is issued by the District. 

DOUGLAS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 0017, 

IN THE STATE OF NEBRASKA 

(MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS) 

 

 

By:     

 Superintendent 

67



  

APPENDIX A 

INFORMATION CONCERNING THE DISTRICT

68



 A-1 

APPENDIX A 

INFORMATION CONCERNING THE DISTRICT 

___________________ 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

The District is located in the southwestern portion of the City of Omaha and in adjacent Sarpy 

County, Nebraska within the Omaha metropolitan area, approximately ten miles from the Omaha central 

business district.  District officials estimate that at present the population is approximately 125,000.  The 

District encompasses approximately thirty-five square miles (22,400 acres) and is the third largest school 

district in Nebraska (the “State”) with 22,676 students as of the beginning of the 2012-13 school year.  

The District operates twenty-four elementary schools, six middle schools and three senior high schools.  

The District has been accredited by the State Department of Education with a rating of “AA,” the highest 

rating given by the Department.  All of the schools in the District have been accredited by the North 

Central Association of Colleges and Schools. 

The District’s boundaries were coterminous with the city limits of the former City of Millard, 

Nebraska in 1957, when reorganization of the District was initiated.  In 1959, reorganization was 

completed and seven rural districts joined the District.  Despite the annexation of the City of Millard by 

the City of Omaha in 1971, the District remains a separate and independent unit.  The following table 

illustrates the growth of the District. 

Students and Faculty (1955–56 to 2012-13) 

 

__________________________________ 

1 
 Elementary number is lower as approximately 650–700 sixth grade students were moved from elementary schools 

to middle schools in 1994/95. 

SCHOOL STUDENTS FACULTY 

YEAR Elementary1 Secondary Total  

1955–56 80 55 135 7 

1960–61 278 142 420 22 

1965–66 1,316 516 1,832 88 

1970–71 3,170 1,406 4,576 223 

1975–76 4,927 3,206 8,133 435 

1980–81 7,261 4,852 12,113 654 

1985–86 7,979 6,242 14,221 839 

1990–91 9,138 7,590 16,728 1,103 

1995–961 8,492 9,496 17,988 1,325 

2000–01 8,439 10,348 18,787 1,394 

2005–06 9,287 11,182 20,469 1,573 

2006–07 9,617 11,503 21,120 1,623 

2007–08 9,786 11,712 21,498 1,670 

2008–09 9,917 11,666 21,583 1,709 

2009–10 10,300 11,725 22,025 1,733 

2010–11 10,386 11,762 22,148 1,764 

2011–12 10,418 12,000 22,418 1,745 

2012–13 10,372 12,304 22,676 1,722 

69



A-2 

Area Economy 

The economic viability of the Millard School District is tied closely to the general economy of the 

City of Omaha. 

City of Omaha–General Information 

The following information about the City of Omaha, Nebraska is excerpted from previous City of 

Omaha Official Statements and is included because the District is located within the City’s boundaries 

and in the surrounding metropolitan area.  The Series 2012 Bonds are not a debt of, nor are they 

payable by, the City of Omaha. 

Location and General Background.  Omaha, founded in 1854, is the largest city in the State of 

Nebraska.  Omaha is the hub of a vast transportation network leading to all parts of the nation and thus 

offers significant advantages to business and industry competing in regional and national markets.  This 

fact is substantiated by the growth of population, employment and income during recent years. 

Area and Population.  The U.S. Census Bureau in the 2010 Census reported the population of the 
eight–county Omaha Metropolitan Statistical Area (“MSA”), comprising five Nebraska counties and three 
Iowa counties, numbered 865,350 with over 1.1 million within a 60-minute drive.  The 2011 population 
estimate from the U.S. Census Bureau of the City of Omaha is approximately 416,855 and their estimate 
for the MSA is 881,493. 

Transportation.  Nearly 4.2 million passengers, over 94 million pounds of cargo and over 
50 million pounds of mail passed through Eppley Airfield, Omaha’s principal airport, in 2011.  In the last 
decade, Eppley Airfield has made over $110 million in investments in terminal, apron, cargo area and 
runway expansions.  Eppley Airfield offers between 150 and 170 flights per day and is serviced by eight 
national air carriers (recent mergers within the industry may change the number), 11 regional airlines, 
seven air freight carriers and two full–service general aviation facilities.  A total of 129 general aviation 
aircraft, including 34 executive jets, are based at Eppley Airfield.  There are 90 departures out of Eppley 
Airfield daily. 

Omaha is general headquarters for the Union Pacific Railroad.  The Burlington Northern Santa Fe 
and the Canadian National railroads also provide service and combine to make Omaha an important rail 
center. 

Two interstate highways (Interstate 80 and Interstate 29), five federal highways and seven state 
highways provide fast all-weather routes within Nebraska and to and from the rest of the nation.  In 
addition, Interstate 480 (downtown spur) and Interstate 680 (circumferential route) provide quick access 
to all parts of the metropolitan area. 

More than 100 motor common carriers haul freight to and from Omaha and all parts of the nation, 
making Omaha a major Midwestern trucking center.  Several bus lines operate between Omaha and points 
in Iowa, Illinois and Nebraska. 

Utility Services.  Residential, commercial and industrial electric service rates in Omaha 
historically have been below the national averages, according to reports of the Edison Electric Institute in 
its Statistical Yearbook of the Electrical Utility Industry.  In addition to low rates, the Omaha Public 
Power District, a Nebraska political subdivision, assures its customers ample power with a net generating 
capability of 3,222.7 megawatts. 

The Metropolitan Utilities District (“MUD”), a Nebraska political subdivision, distributes natural 
gas and water in the Omaha area.  Rates compare favorably with those prevailing in other metropolitan 
areas in the nation.  Omaha has a plentiful water supply (Missouri River and Platte River wells) and a 

70



A-3 

water system designed to the standards of the National Board of Fire Underwriters, with a current 
capacity of 334 million gallons a day.  MUD’s supply of natural gas is purchased wholesale from up to 
twenty different suppliers.  This supply is supplemented with peak–shaving storage facilities which can 
provide up to approximately 30% of peak demand.  There have been no interruptions of natural gas 
service to firm commercial and residential customers and no interruptions are expected in the foreseeable 
future. 

Education.  Omaha is an important educational center and is the location of Creighton 

University, the University of Nebraska at Omaha and the University of Nebraska Medical Center.  These 

institutions, together with three additional colleges located in Omaha, offer educational programs at the 

graduate and undergraduate levels, in law and in the health professions: medicine, dentistry, nursing and 

pharmacy. 

Health Services.  There are 13 hospitals within the City of Omaha, six of them classified as 
acute–care community hospitals.  Of the remaining seven hospitals, two are acute-care hospitals operated 
by governmental entities (one by the State of Nebraska and one by Douglas County), four are specialized 
hospitals (pediatrics, maternity care, geriatrics and psychiatry) and one is a major hospital of the Veterans 
Administration.  There are more than 1,200 physicians and more than 300 dentists in Omaha; their 
services are utilized both by Omaha residents and by persons within the surrounding region. 

Military.  The United States Strategic Command (“USSTRATCOM”) is headquartered at Offutt 
Air Force Base, just south of Omaha.  The missions of U.S. Strategic Command are: to deter attacks on 
U.S. vital interests, to ensure U.S. freedom of action in space and cyberspace, to deliver integrated kinetic 
and non–kinetic effects to include nuclear and information operations in support of U.S. Joint Force 
Commander operations, to synchronize global missile defense plans and operations, to synchronize 
regional combating of weapons of mass destruction plans, to provide integrated surveillance and 
reconnaissance allocation recommendations to the Secretary of Defense, and to advocate for capabilities 
as assigned.  The estimated economic impact of Offutt Air Force Base on the Greater Omaha community 
is more than $1.8 billion. 

Economy.  From an economy founded on the livestock industry in the late nineteenth century, 
Omaha is a major grain exchange market in the United States.  Food processing is also an important part 
of the economy and is represented by such companies as ConAgra Foods, Inc., Kellogg Company and 
Omaha Steaks International. 

The geographic centrality of Omaha in the United States has encouraged commercial 
development, and the City is home to five Fortune 500 companies, which represent a diverse array of 
industries: Berkshire Hathaway, ConAgra Foods, Inc., Mutual of Omaha, Peter Kiewit Sons’, Inc. and 
Union Pacific Corp.  The City’s economy continues to diversify, although it still remains agriculturally 
oriented.  The Omaha MSA contains more than 650 manufacturing plants, including plants operated by 
Lozier Corporation and Valmont Industries Inc.  In the early 1980s, Omaha began developing as a major 
participant in the reservation, customer service and direct–response center industry.  Currently, there are 
50 such firms located within the City.  In total they employ a labor force in excess of 40,000.  Major 
employers in this group include First Data Corporation, Oriental Trading Co., Inc., West Corporation, 
PayPal, Marriott Worldwide Reservation Center and Omaha Steaks.  Omaha is the home of Peter Kiewit 
Sons’, Inc., one of the largest construction and mining organizations in North America, TD Ameritrade, a 
major discount stock brokerage firm, and 21 insurance companies (with over 50 employees each), 
including Mutual of Omaha, the world’s largest mutual health and accident company, and Woodmen of 
the World Life Insurance Society, the largest fraternal life insurance company.  In December of 2011 
meatpacking employment in the Omaha MSA numbered 6,900.  The district offices of the Farm Credit 
System for Nebraska, Iowa, South Dakota and Wyoming are headquartered in Omaha. 

The City is economically attractive to potential residents.  The cost of living in the City in the 
third quarter of 2011 across all categories was 89.4% of the national average.  Omaha MSA residents 
enjoy a median household income of $57,901 – over 8% higher than the national average.  The June 2012 

71



A-4 

seasonally adjusted unemployment rate for the Omaha MSA was 4.2%, compared with 8.2% for the 
United States.   

SELECTED ECONOMIC INDICATORS 

Omaha MSA Population and Employment
*
 

  

Population
1
 

Non-Farm 

Employment
2 

 

2000 769,117 441,600 

2001 775,380 444,500 

2002 782,384 439,400 

2003 790,535 440,700 

2004 800,459 441,900 

2005 810,493 448,800 

2006 820,051 456,800 

2007 829,183 463,600 

2008 839,265 469,800 

2009 849,517 459,500 

2010 868,097 457,300 

2011 877,110 460,400 

______________________ 
1
  Source:  U.S. Census Bureau 

2
  Source:  Greater Omaha Chamber of Commerce; US Bureau of Labor Statistics. 

72



A-5 

Largest Employers—City of Omaha Metro Area 

June 30, 2012 

Company Product/Service Number of Employees 
Offutt Air Force Base

*
 National Security 8,879 

Alegent Health Healthcare 8,600 

Omaha Public Schools Education 7,239 

The Nebraska Medical Center Healthcare 5,600 

Methodist Health System Healthcare 5,500 

University of Nebraska Medical Center Healthcare 4,974 

First Data Corp. Transaction Processing 4,900 

Union Pacific Corp. Railroad 4,500 

Hy-Vee Inc. Supermarkets 3,963 

First National Bank of Omaha Banking 3,707 

West Corp. Telemarketing 3,600 

Walmart Stores Store 3,500 

ConAgra Foods Food products 3,300 

Mutual of Omaha Insurance 3,235 

Creighton University Education 3,010 

University of Nebraska at Omaha Education 3,000 

Millard Public Schools Education 2,719 

City of Omaha Administration 2,562 

PayPal Transaction Processing 2,500 

Omaha Public Power District Energy 2,300 

   
     

Located in Sarpy County (immediately south of Omaha). 

Source:  Greater Omaha Chamber of Commerce Top 25 Employer List, (Ranked by Number of Employees). 

73



A-6 

Omaha MSA (Eight Counties) Non-Farm Employment 

Industry Average for 2010 Average for 2011 Average for 2012* 

 Number % of Total Number % of Total Number % of Total 

       

Mining, Logging and Construction 20,900 4.6 19,900 4.3 20,300 4.4 

Manufacturing 31,000 6.8 31,400 6.8 31,900 6.9 

Trade, Transportation and Utilities 94,000 20.6 93,200 20.2 93,800 20.2 

Information 11,100 2.4 11,000 2.4 10,800 2.3 

Financial Activities 40,200 8.8 41,000 8.9 40,200 8.7 

Professional and Business Services 63,000 13.8 64,700 14.1 65,100 14.0 

Education and Healthcare Services 70,100 15.4 71,900 15.6 74,300 16.0 

Leisure and Hospitality 43,600 9.6 44,500 9.7 44,300 9.5 

Other Services 17,600 3.9 17,300 3.8 17,300 3.7 

Government 65,100 14.3 65,400 14.2 66,100 14.2 

          

Total Non-Farm Employment 456,500 100.0 460,300 100.0 464,100 100.0 

       

*Average through June 2012       

       
  

Source:  U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics: State and Area Employment, Hours and Earnings 

74



A-7 

SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

 

GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS 

The debt service requirements on all outstanding District general obligation bonds are shown below. 

 

 

Fiscal Year Ending 

August 31 

 Total 

Outstanding 

General Obligation 

Debt Service 

2013  $  12,905,581.67 

2014  13,032,887.50 

2015  12,999,137.50 

2016  12,904,512.50 

2017  12,194,037.50 

2018  12,279,887.50 

2019  11,775,875.00 

2020  12,486,600.00 

2021  12,498,050.00 

2022  12,512,550.00 

2023  12,528,900.00 

2024  12,547,450.00 

2025      12,552,487.50 

TOTAL 
 

$163,217,956.67 

 

PROPERTY VALUATIONS AND DEBT RATIOS 

Fiscal Year End August 31 

 

 2008
 2009 2010 2011 2012 

Property Valuations $8,792,360,909 $8,937,690,566 $9,053,485,029 $9,170,102,685 $9,147,791,919 

      
Direct General Obligation $157,785,000 $149,810,0

00 

$142,910,000 $135,500,000 $124,665,000 

Bonded Debt      

      
% of Direct General Obligation 1.79% 1.68% 1.58% 1.48% 1.36% 

Bonded Debt to Valuation      

                                                      
 Including the Series 2012 Bonds offered herein and excluding the bonds being refunded by the Series 2012 Bonds. 

75



A-8 

ESTIMATED OVERLAPPING AND UNDERLYING DEBT 

As of June 30, 2012 

 

 

 Net Bonded Debt 

Percentage 

Applicable to 

School District 0017 

Net Debt 

Applicable to 

School District 0017 

 

Douglas County 

 

$  74,115,000 

 

21.24% 

 

$    15,742,26 

City of Omaha 526,180,000 20.53% 108,024,750 

Omaha-Douglas    

   Building Commission
1 

37,875,000 21.24% 8,044,650 

Sarpy County
2
 19,385,000 15.78% 3,058,953 

Certain Douglas County    

 Sanitary and     

 Improvement Districts
3
 96,392,195 100.00% 96,392,195 

Certain Sarpy County    

 Sanitary and    

 Improvement Districts
3
     58,880,531 100.00%     58,880,531 

Totals $812,827,726  $290,143,109 

 

% of Combined Net Direct General Obligation  

 Bonded Debt and Overlapping Bonded Debt  

 to Certified 2012 Taxable Valuation  4.53% 
 

_______________________ 
1 

Payable from certain property tax revenues and payments to be made to the Commission by the City of Omaha 

and Douglas County under certain contractual agreements. 
2 

Sarpy County, under various lease-purchase agreements, is obligated to provide for annual rental payments.  

Leases are funded as expenditures, subject only to the 50–cent/$100 of taxable valuation tax limitation. 
3 

Estimated.  As of June 30, 2012, there were approximately $37,363,141 in Construction Fund Warrants 

outstanding for Douglas County SIDs and $5,408,081 for Sarpy County SIDs in the District.  Construction Fund 

Warrants for SIDs are retired from a combination of special assessments levied against real estate and property 

taxes levied against real estate and certain tangible personal property and General Obligation Bonds. 

76



A-9 

PROPERTY VALUATION 

 

1989-90, and 2000-01 to 2012-13 

Fiscal 

Year 

Total 

Valuation 

Increase (Decrease) Over Preceding School Year 

Amount Percent 

1989–90 $2,179,574,827 $163,646,301 8.12% 

2000–01 5,510,057,648 780,237,636 16.50 

2001–02 5,869,603,888 359,546,240 6.53 

2002–03 6,089,980,576 220,376,688 3.75 

2003–04 6,427,751,582 337,771,006 5.25 

2004–05 6,849,871,741 422,120,159 6.57 

2005–06 7,572,481,955 722,560,214 10.55 

2006–07 8,022,187,811 449,755,856 5.94 

2007–08 8,792,360,909 770,173,098 9.60 

2008–09 8,937,690,566 235,327,863 2.70 

2009–10 9,053,485,029 115,794,463 1.30 

2010–11 9,079,309,589 25,824,560 0.29 

2011–12 9,170,102,685 90,793,096 1.00 

2012–13             9,147,791,919 (22,310,766) (0.24) 

 

Property valuation of the District has increased by almost $7 billion since 1990.  Most of the land in the 

District is developed, although approximately one–third of the new homes in the Omaha area currently 

being built are within the District’s boundaries.  It is anticipated that growth in enrollment and valuation 

will continue. 

 

HISTORY OF DISTRICT LEVIES 

 

1989-90, and 1999-00 to 2012-13 

(amount per $100 of valuation)
* 

Fiscal  

Year 

General 

Fund 

Building 

Fund 

Bond 

Fund Total Change 

1989–90 $1.63160 $0.04010 $0.26930 $1.94100 $0.08090 

1999–00 0.94091 0.06431 0.30753 1.31274 (0.08226) 

2000–01 0.93788 0.06416 0.26395 1.26599 (0.04675) 

2001–02 0.91715 0.08550 0.23980 1.25670 (0.05600) 

2002–03 1.04910 –0– 0.22840 1.27750 0.02080 

2003–04 1.08230 0.02000 0.21890 1.32120 0.04370 

2004–05 1.05000 0.05000 0.19890 1.29890 (0.02230) 

2005–06 1.01660 0.06610 0.02073 1.29000 (0.00890) 

2006–07 0.97540 0.08730 0.21690 1.27960 (0.01930) 

2007–08 0.95000 0.10000 0.16000 1.21000 (0.06960) 

2008–09 1.04010 0.01000 0.15990 1.21000 – 

2009–10 0.09000 –0– 0.16000 0.25000 (0.96000) 

2010–11 0.09000 0.01000 0.16000 0.26000 0.01000 

2011–12 0.09000 0.01000 0.16000 0.26000 0.00000 

2012–13 0.11000 0.01000 0.14000 0.26000 0.00000 

__________________ 
*
See “NEBRASKA DEVELOPMENTS RELATED TO BUDGETS AND TAXATION – School Finances” 

herein regarding Fiscal Years 2009-10 and later. 

77



A-10 

MAJOR TAXPAYERS 

Valuations In Excess of $10,000,000 

(as of April 16, 2012) 

Name of Taxpayer 

Valuation 

of Real Property 

OAK VIEW MALL LLC $103,206,100 

COMMERCIAL FEDERAL SAVINGS & LOAN  43,432,000 

EM OMAHA OWNER LLC 40,368,700 

OMAHA PLAZA INVESTMENTS LLC 36,287,300 

WACHOVIA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 34,060,000 
BISHOP CLARKSON MEMORIAL HOSPITAL  33,204,300 

OMAHA MARKETPLACE HOLDINGS LLC 32,971,200 

 AVG-CFM 204Q LLC 28,537,300 

LVP OAKVIEW STRIP CENTER LLC 24,434,800 
LINDEN PLACE LTD PTNRS 1 21,835,100 

WEST PACIFIC APARTMENTS LLC 20,855,300 

NDC WEST DODGE LLC 20,689,900 
MONTCLAIR INVESTMENT CO 19,867,600 

ORIENTAL TRADING COMPANY INC 19,113,800 

PHOENIX REALTY SPECIAL ACCOUNT 16,128,000 

SFI LTD PARTNERSHIP 44 15,771,200 
ORCHARD AVENUE APARTMENTS LLC 14,871,000 

NS-156 Q LLC 14,775,000 
FARM CREDIT SERV OF AMERICA 14,253,100 

11818 I STREET LLC 13,783,200 
HONEYDEW LLC 13,676,200 

BROOKSTONE VILLAGE INC 13,488,800 

PEPPERWOOD VILLAGE LLC 13,197,100 

TARGET CORPORATION 

 

12,648,800 

WAL-MART REAL ESTATE BUSINESS 12,630,100 

SILVERCREST 108 & Q 12,357,000 

FLIK INC 12,068,000 

WALNUT GROVE RETIREMENT 11,170,600 

TIC METROPOLITAN OFFICES LLC 11,076,300 

WEST DODGE APARTMENTS LTD 11,070,800 

CONSTRUCTION DEVELOPERS INC 11,025,700 

FIRSTPORT LP 11,001,000 

CALIFORNIA RED LLC 10,505,200 

SWEETBRIAR III LLC 10,286,300 

TYSON PROCESSING SERVICES INC 10,275,000 

 
Source:  The Office of the Douglas County Clerk, report dated April 16, 2012. 

78



A-11 

PROPERTY TAX COLLECTIONS 

Property taxes on tangible property, real and personal, are levied by the District, collected and 
held by Douglas and Sarpy County Treasurers, and credited to the General Fund, Special Fund and Bond 
Fund Accounts of the District.  Taxes become due December 31.  In Douglas County and Sarpy County, 
the first half of tax payable becomes delinquent the following April 1 and the second half August 1. 

Schedule of Tax Collections
*
 

School Year Taxes Certified 
Total Collections 

Amount 
% 

1998–99 $ 58,205,495 $ 58,190,598 99.97% 

1999–00 61,475,545 60,882,415 99.04 

2000–01 69,065,917 67,175,187 97.26 

2001–02 73,032,885 72,528,773 99.31 

2002–03 77,026,800 76,046,525 98.23 

2003–04 84,081,988 83,193,681 98.94 

2004–05 88,092,063 88,110,083 100.02 

2005–06 96,713,919 94,992,683 98.22 

2006–07 101,633,416 98,328,443 96.75 

2007–08 104,255,000 102,246,903 98.07 

2008–09 107,072,159 102,777,870 95.99 

2009–10 22,409,485 24,307,874 108.47 

2010–11 23,370,125 22,231,048 95.13 

2011–12 23,603,858 22,650,575 95.96 

2012–13 23,560,440 -- -- 

_____________________ 
*
 See “NEBRASKA DEVELOPMENTS RELATED TO BUDGETS AND TAXATION – School Finances” 

herein regarding Fiscal Years 2009-10 and later. 
 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT 

General Obligation Bonds 

General obligation bonds may be issued by a school district only if approval is given by a 

majority of the district’s voters.  (A school district may issue general obligation refunding bonds without 

an election.)  School District 0017 is a Class III School District, and as such under Nebraska law has no 

legal limit on the amount of its bonded indebtedness.  The District has no authorized but unissued general 

obligation bonds. 

Debt Payment Record 

The District has never defaulted on its obligations to pay principal of or interest on its 

indebtedness. 

79



A-12 

Outstanding General Obligation Bonded Indebtedness 

As of Dates of Issuance 
1
 

 

General Obligation Bonds 

Dated Date 

 

Maturity Dates 

Interest 

Rates 

Initial 

Amount 

Balance 

August 31, 2012 

April 15, 2003 November 15, 2003–2018 2.000–4.250% $32,080,000 $  1,485,000 

August 10, 2006 June 15, 2018–2025 4.500–4.625% 48,000,000 48,000,000 

April 15, 2009 June 15, 2010–2017 3.00–4.00% 25,405,000 19,475,000 

May 5, 2010 June 15, 2011–2025 2.00–6.00% 51,480,000   44,790,000 

November 16, 2012  

     (this issue) 
2
 

 

November 15, 2013-2018 ____%–____% 13,100,000 
3
     13,100,000 

3
 

     TOTAL    $126,850,000 
3
 

_____________________ 
1  

Does not include $4,265,000 of Certificates of Participation issued in 2005 or $3,710,000 of Certificates of  

 Participation issued in 2012. 
 
2
 This issue will refund all but $1,485,000 of the April 15, 2003 issue.  The balance will be retired on November 15,  

 2012. 
 
3
   Preliminary; subject to change. 

 

 

NEBRASKA SCHOOL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

 

Pursuant to the School Employees Retirement Act, Sections 79-901 to 79-977.01, Reissue 

Revised Statutes of Nebraska, as amended, a retirement system for the purpose of providing retirement 

allowances or other benefits for the school employees of the State of Nebraska is in effect.  The school 

employees retirement system originally became effective July 1, 1945 under a predecessor statute. 

 

Nebraska law requires annual state deposits equal to normal costs and further requires level 

annual payments by the State to fund, by no later than January 1, 1994, the current unfunded accrued 

liabilities of the System. 

Section 79-975, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, as amended, requires school district 

deposits equal to a uniform percentage of school employee contributions.  Under this plan, appropriations 

to meet any unfunded accrued liability, as noted above, are the responsibility of the State of Nebraska, 

rather than of individual school districts. 

**** 

80



  

APPENDIX B 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

81



  

APPENDIX C 

FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE 

82



 C-2 

APPENDIX C 

FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE 

This Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the “Disclosure Certificate”), dated as of November 16, 

2012,  is executed and delivered by Douglas County School District 0017 in the State of Nebraska (Millard 

Public Schools) (the “District”) in connection with the issuance of $__________ in aggregate principal 

amount of General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 (the “Bonds”).  The approval of the issuance 

of the Bonds was authorized pursuant to a resolution adopted by the Board of Education of the District on 

__________ __, 2012 (the “Resolution”).  The District covenants and agrees as follows: 

Section 1.  Purpose of the Disclosure Certificate.  This Disclosure Certificate is being executed 

and delivered by the District for the benefit of the Holders and Beneficial Owners of the Bonds and in order 

to assist the Participating Underwriter in complying with S.E.C. Rule 15c2-12(d)(2). 

The CUSIP Number of the final maturity of the Bonds is ______ ___.  The final Official Statement 

relating to the Bonds is dated __________ __, 2012 (the “Final Official Statement”). 

Section 2.  Definitions.  In addition to the definitions set forth in the Resolution, which apply to 

any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Certificate unless otherwise defined in this Section, the 

following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings: 

“Annual Report” shall mean any Annual Report provided by the District pursuant to, and as 

described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Certificate. 

“Beneficial Owner” shall mean any person which (a) has the power, directly or indirectly, to vote or 

consent with respect to, or to dispose of ownership of, any Bonds (including persons holding Bonds through 

nominees, depositories or other intermediaries), or (b) is treated as the owner of any Bonds for federal 

income tax purposes. 

“Listed Events” shall mean any of the events listed in Section 6 of this Disclosure Certificate. 

“MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.  Reference is made to Commission 

Release No. 34–59062, December 8, 2008 (the “Release”) relating to the MSRB’s Electronic Municipal 

Market Access (“EMMA”) system for municipal securities disclosure that became effective on July 1, 

2009.  To the extent applicable to this Disclosure Certificate, the District shall comply with the Release and 

with EMMA.  

“Participating Underwriter” shall mean the original Underwriter of the Bonds required to comply 

with the Rule in connection with offering of the Bonds.   

“Rule” shall mean Rule 15c2-12(d)(2) adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under 

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time. 

“State” shall mean the State of Nebraska. 

Section 3.  Provision of Annual Reports. The District shall provide, not later than May 1 of each 

year, commencing May 1, 2013, to the Participating Underwriter and the MSRB an Annual Report in an 

electronic format accompanied by identifying information as prescribed by the MSRB which is consistent 

with the requirements of Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate.  The Annual Report may be submitted as a 

single document or as separate documents comprising a package and may include by reference other 

information as provided in Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate, provided that the audited financial 

statements of the District may be submitted separately from the balance of the Annual Report and later than 

83



 C-3 

the date required above for the filing of the Annual Report if they are not available by that date.  If the 

District’s fiscal year changes, it shall give notice of such change in the same manner as for a Listed Event 

under Section 6. 

Section 4.  Content of Annual Reports.  The District’s Annual Report shall contain or include by 

reference the following: 

(a) The audited financial statements of the District for the prior fiscal year, prepared in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as promulgated to apply to governmental 

entities from time to time by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.  If the District’s 

audited financial statements are not available by the time the Annual Report is required to be filed 

pursuant to Section 3, the Annual Report shall contain unaudited financial statements in a format 

similar to the financial statements contained in the final Official Statement, and the audited 

financial statements shall be filed in the same manner as the Annual Report when they become 

available. 

(b) Such financial and operating data of the District included in the final Official 

Statement with respect to the Bonds which is customarily prepared by the District annually and is 

publicly available. 

Any or all of the items listed above may be included by specific reference to other documents, 

including official statements of debt issues of the District or related public entities, which have been 

submitted to the MSRB or the Securities and Exchange Commission.  If the document included by 

reference is a final official statement, it must be available from the MSRB.  The District shall clearly 

identify each such other document so included by reference. 

Section 5.  Failure To File Annual Financial Information.  The District agrees to provide or 

cause to be provided to the MSRB, in a timely manner, notice of a failure by the District to provide the 

Annual Report described in Sections 3 and 4 above when the same is due hereunder. 

Section 6.  Listed Events.  The District agrees to provide or cause to be provided to the MSRB 

notice (a “Listed Event Notice”) of the occurrence of any of the following events (each, a “Listed Event”) 

with respect to the Bonds in a timely manner, not in excess of 10 business days after the occurrence of the 

event: 

(a) Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

(b) Non–payment related defaults, if material; 

(c) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 

(d) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; 

(e) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 

(f) Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or 

final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other 

material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the security, or other material 

events affecting the tax status of the Bonds; 

(g) Modifications to rights of Bondholders, if material; 

(h) Bond calls, if material, and tender offers; 

84



 C-4 

(i) Defeasances; 

(j) Release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds, if 

material;  

(k) Rating changes; 

(l) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the District; 

(m) The consummation of a merger, consolidation or acquisition involving the District 

or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the District other than in the ordinary course of 

business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a 

definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material; or 

(n) Appointment of a successor or additional paying agent or the change of name of a 

paying agent, if material. 

Each Listed Event Notice shall be in electronic form and shall be so captioned and prominently state the 

date, title and (to the extent less than all of the Bonds are affected by the related Listed Event) CUSIP 

numbers of the Bonds.  The District may from time to time choose to provide notice of the occurrence of 

certain other events in addition to those listed above, but the District does not undertake any commitment to 

provide such notice of any event except those events listed above. 

Section 7.  Transmission of Notices, Documents and Information. Unless otherwise required by 

the MSRB, all notices, documents and information provided to the MSRB shall be provided to the MSRB’s 

Electronic Municipal Markets Access (EMMA) system, the current Internet Web address of which is 

www.emma.msrb.org.  All notices, documents and information provided to the MSRB shall be provided in 

an electronic format as prescribed by the MSRB (currently, portable document format (pdf), which must be 

word–searchable except for non-textual elements) and shall be accompanied by identifying information as 

prescribed by the MSRB. 

Section 8.  Termination of Reporting Obligation.  The District’s obligations under this 

Disclosure Certificate shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of all 

of the Bonds.  If such termination occurs prior to the final maturity of the Bonds, the District shall give 

notice of such termination in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 6. 

Section 9.   Amendment; Waiver.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure 

Certificate, the District may amend this Disclosure Certificate and any provision of this Disclosure 

Certificate may be waived, provided that the following conditions are satisfied: 

(a) If the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of Section 3, 4 or 6, it may be 

made only in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal 

requirements, change in law, or change in the identity, nature or status of an obligated person with 

respect to the Bonds or the type of business conducted; 

(b) The undertaking, as amended or taking into account such waiver, would, in the 

opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, have complied with the requirements of the Rule at 

the time of the original issuance of the Bonds, after taking into account any amendments or 

interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in circumstances; and 

(c) The amendment or waiver either (i) is approved by the Holders of the Bonds in the 

same manner as provided in the Resolution for amendments to the Resolution with the consent of 

85

http://www.emma.msrb.org/


 C-5 

Holders, or (ii) does not, in the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, materially impair the 

interests of the Holders or Beneficial Owners of the Bonds. 

If any provision of this Disclosure Certificate is amended or waived, the District shall describe such 

amendment or waiver in the next Annual Report and shall include, as applicable, a narrative explanation of 

the reason for the amendment or waiver and its impact on the type (or, in the case of a change of accounting 

principles, on the presentation) of financial information or operating data being presented by the District.  In 

addition, if the amendment relates to the accounting principles to be followed in preparing financial 

statements, (i) notice of such change shall be given in the same manner as for a Listed Event under 

Section 6, and (ii) the Annual Report for the year in which the change is made should present a comparison 

(in narrative form and also, if feasible, in quantitative form) between the financial statements as prepared on 

the basis of the new accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the former accounting 

principles. 

Section 10.  Additional Information.  Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall be deemed to 

prevent the District from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set forth in 

this Disclosure Certificate or any other means of communication, or including any other information in any 

Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which is required by this 

Disclosure Certificate. If the District chooses to include any information in any Annual Report or notice of 

occurrence of a Listed Event in addition to that which is specifically required by this Disclosure Certificate, 

the District shall have no obligation under this Bond to update such information or include it in any future 

Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event. 

Section 11.  Default.  In the event of a failure of the District to comply with any provision of this 

Disclosure Certificate, any Holder or Beneficial Owner of the Bonds may take such actions as may be 

necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific performance by court order, to cause the 

District, as the case may be, to comply with its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate.  A default 

under this Disclosure Certificate shall not be deemed an Event of Default under the Resolution, and the sole 

remedy under this Disclosure Certificate in the event of any failure of the District to comply with this 

Disclosure Certificate shall be an action to compel performance. 

Section 12.  Beneficiaries.  This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the benefit of the 

District, the Participating Underwriter and the Holders and Beneficial Owners from time to time of the 

Bonds, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity. 

DOUGLAS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 0017 

IN THE STATE OF NEBRASKA (MILLARD 

PUBLIC SCHOOLS)  

By:   

Its   

86



  

APPENDIX D 

BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM

87



 

D-1 

APPENDIX D 

BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM 

The Bonds are available in book-entry only form and beneficial ownership interests therein may 

be purchased in the principal amount of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.  Purchasers of the Bonds 

will not receive certificates representing their interests in the Bonds. 

 The following information concerning The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, 

New York and DTC’s book-entry system has been obtained from sources the District believes to be 

reliable.  However, the District takes no responsibility as to the accuracy or completeness thereof 

and neither the Indirect Participants nor the Beneficial Owners should rely on the following 

information with respect to such matters, but should instead confirm the same with DTC or the 

Direct Participants, as the case may be.  There can be no assurance that DTC will abide by its 

procedures or that such procedures will not be changed from time to time. 

The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York, will act as securities depository 

for the Series 2012 Bonds.  The Series 2012 Bonds will be issued as fully-registered securities registered 

in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an 

authorized representative of DTC.  One fully-registered Series 2012 Bond certificate will be issued for 

each separate maturity of the Series 2012 Bonds, each in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity, 

and will be deposited with DTC. 

DTC, the world’s largest depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the 

New York Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a 

member of the Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York 

Uniform Commercial Code, and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A 

of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million 

issues of U.S. and non–U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market 

instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC’s participants (“Direct Participants”) deposit with DTC.  

DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities 

transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges 

between Direct Participant’s accounts.   This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities 

certificates.  Direct Participants include both U.S. and non–U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, 

trust companies, clearing corporations and certain other organizations.  DTC is a wholly–owned 

subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”).  DTCC is the holding company 

for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which 

are registered clearing agencies.  DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries.  Access to the 

DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non–U.S. securities brokers and dealers, 

banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship 

with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”).  DTC has a Standard & 

Poor’s rating of AA+.  The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and 

Exchange Commission.  More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com. 

Purchases of the Series 2012 Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct 

Participants, which will receive a credit for the Series 2012 Bonds on DTC’s records.  The ownership 

interest of each actual purchaser of each Series 2012 Bond (“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded 

on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records.  Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation 

from DTC of their purchase.  Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations 

providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or 

Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction.  Transfers of 

ownership interests in the Series 2012 Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of 

88

http://www.dtcc.com/


 

 D-2 

Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners.  Beneficial Owners will not 

receive certificates representing their ownership interests in Series 2012 Bonds, except in the event that 

use of the book-entry system for the Series 2012 Bonds is discontinued. 

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Series 2012 Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with 

DTC are registered in the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may 

be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  The deposit of Securities with DTC and their 

registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial 

ownership.  DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Series 2012 Bonds; DTC’s 

records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Series 2012 Bonds are 

credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners.  The Direct and Indirect Participants will 

remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers. 

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct 

Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial 

Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory 

requirements as may be in effect from time to time.  Beneficial Owners of Series 2012 Bonds may wish to 

take certain steps to augment the transmission to them of notices of significant events with respect to the 

Series 2012 Bonds, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to the documents 

relating to the Series 2012 Bonds.  For example, Beneficial Owners of Series 2012 Bonds may wish to 

ascertain that the nominee holding the Series 2012 Bonds for their benefit has agreed to obtain and 

transmit notices to Beneficial Owners.  In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their 

names and addresses to the Registrar and request that copies of notices be provided directly to them. 

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC.  If less than all of the Series 2012 Bonds within a 

maturity are being redeemed, DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each 

Direct Participant in such issue to be redeemed. 

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to 

Series 2012 Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s MMI Procedures.  

Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the District (or the Registrar) as soon as 

possible after the record date.  The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights to 

those Direct Participants to whose accounts Series 2012 Bonds are credited on the record date (identified 

in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 

Redemption proceeds, principal, and interest payments on the Series 2012 Bonds will be made to 

Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  DTC’s 

practice is to credit Direct Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail 

information from the Registrar, on payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on 

DTC’s records.  Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions 

and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or 

registered in “street name,” and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC nor its 

nominee, the Registrar or the District, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in 

effect from time to time. Payment of redemption proceeds, principal, and interest payments to Cede & Co. 

(or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility 

of the Registrar (from funds provided by the District), disbursement of such payments to Direct 

Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial 

Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants. 

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Series 2012 Bonds 

at any time by giving reasonable notice to the District or the Registrar.  Under such circumstances, in the 

89



 

 D-3 

event that a successor depository is not obtained, certificates for the Series 2012 Bonds are required to be 

printed and delivered. 

The District may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry transfers through DTC (or 

a successor securities depository).  In that event, certificates for the Series 2012 Bonds will be printed and 

delivered to DTC. 

The information under this subcaption concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system has been 

obtained from sources that the District believes to be reliable, but the District takes no responsibility for 

the accuracy thereof. 

The District and the Registrar will not have any responsibility or obligation to Participants, to 

Indirect Participants or to any Beneficial Owner with respect to (i)  the accuracy of any records 

maintained by DTC, any Direct Participant or any Indirect Participant; (ii)  the payment by DTC or any 

Direct Participant or Indirect Participant of any amount with respect to the principal or redemption price 

of or interest on the Series 2012 Bonds; (iii)  any notice which is permitted or required to be given to 

bondholders under the Resolution; (iv)  the selection by DTC or any Direct or Indirect Participant of any 

person to receive payment in the event of a partial redemption of the Series 2012 Bonds; or (v)  any 

consent given or other action taken by DTC as Bondholder. 

The information included under this subcaption, other than in this paragraph, the preceding 

paragraph hereof and the first two full paragraphs under this subcaption, has been provided by DTC.  No 

representation is made by the District or the Registrar as to the accuracy or adequacy of such information 

provided by DTC or as to the absence of material adverse changes in such information subsequent to the 

date hereof.  The Beneficial Owners of the Series 2012 Bonds will rely on DTC Participants or Indirect 

Participants for timely payments and other notices and for otherwise making available to the Beneficial 

Owners the rights of a bondholder.  No assurances can be given, in the event of the bankruptcy or 

insolvency of DTC or the Direct Participant or Indirect Participant through which a Beneficial Owner 

holds beneficial interest in the Series 2012 Bonds, that payment will be made by DTC, the Direct 

Participant or the Indirect Participant on a timely basis. 

90



  

APPENDIX E 

FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL 

 

91



 

4833-7054-4913.1  

 

 APPENDIX E 

 

FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL 

 

 

                 , 2012 

 

 

Board of Education 

Douglas County School District 017 

  in the State of Nebraska 

Omaha, NE  68137 

 

$               

Douglas County School District 017, 

In the State of Nebraska 

(Millard Public Schools) 

General Obligation Refunding Bonds 

Series 2012 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

We have acted as Bond Counsel in connection with the issuance and sale by the Douglas 

County School District 017, in the State of Nebraska (Millard Public Schools) of $               

aggregate principal amount of General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 (the “Bonds”).  

The Bonds are issuable as fully registered Bonds without coupons dated as of the date hereof in 

the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, bearing interest payable 

semiannually on May 15 and November 15 of each year, commencing May 15, 2013, at the rates 

per annum set forth in the schedule below and maturing serially or as term bonds in numerical 

order on each of the dates and in the principal amounts as follows: 

Date 

(November 15) 

 

Amount 

Maturing 

Interest 

Rate 

2013 $                % 

2014   

2015   

2016   

2017   

2018   

The Bonds are not subject to redemption in advance of the respective maturities thereof at 

the option of the District.  The Bonds recite that they are issued by the District to finance the cost 

of refunding certain outstanding general obligation indebtedness of the District, under and 

pursuant to and in full conformity with the Constitution and Statutes of the State of Nebraska, 

and pursuant to and in full compliance with the proceedings of the Board of Education of the 

District duly enacted and adopted. 

92



 

_____________, 2012 

Page 2 

E-2 
 

The District has covenanted in the resolution pursuant to which the Bonds have been 

issued (the “Resolution”) to comply with all necessary provisions of the Internal Revenue Code 

of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), to preserve the exclusion of interest on the Bonds from gross 

income for federal income tax purposes.  Noncompliance by the District with such restrictions 

may cause the interest on the Bonds to be subject to federal income taxation retroactive to their 

date of issue. 

We have examined the Constitution and Statutes of the State of Nebraska, certified copies 

of proceedings of the Board of Education of the District authorizing the issuance of the Bonds 

and an executed bond of said issue. 

In our opinion the Bonds have been authorized and issued in accordance with the 

Constitution and Statutes of the State of Nebraska and constitute valid and legally binding 

obligations of the District, and the District has the power and is obligated to levy ad valorem 

taxes for the payment of the Bonds and the interest thereon upon all the property within the 

District subject to taxation by the District without limitation as to rate or amount. 

The rights of the owners of the Bonds and the enforceability thereof may be subject to 

valid bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other laws for the relief of debtors. 

It is also our opinion that, assuming compliance by the District with the covenant referred 

to in the third paragraph of this letter, the interest on the Bonds, including any original issue 

discount properly allocable to an owner thereof, is excluded from gross income for federal 

income tax purposes and is neither a specific preference item nor included in adjusted current 

earnings for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals and 

corporations.  Interest on the Bonds, however, must be included in the “adjusted current 

earnings” of certain corporations (i.e., alternative minimum taxable income as adjusted for 

certain items, including those items that would be included in the calculation of a corporation’s 

earnings and profits under Subchapter C of the Code) and such corporations are required to 

include in the calculation of alternative minimum taxable income 75% of the excess of each such 

corporation’s adjusted current earnings (which includes tax-exempt interest) over its alternative 

minimum taxable income (determined without regard to this adjustment and prior to reduction 

for certain net operating losses). 

The accrual or receipt of interest on the Bonds may otherwise affect the federal income 

tax liability of the recipient.  The extent of these other tax consequences will depend upon the 

recipient’s particular tax status or other items of income or deduction.  We express no opinion 

regarding any such consequences.  Purchasers of the Bonds, particularly purchasers that are 

corporations (including S corporations and foreign corporations operating branches in the 

United States), property or casualty insurance companies, banks, thrifts or other financial 

institutions or certain recipients of Social Security or Railroad Retirement benefits, taxpayers 

otherwise entitled to claim the earned income credit or taxpayers who may be deemed to have 

93



 

_____________, 2012 

Page 3 

E-3 
 

incurred (or continued) indebtedness to purchase or carry tax-exempt obligations are advised to 

consult their tax advisors as to the tax consequences of purchasing or holding the Bonds. 

It is further our opinion that, under the existing laws of the State of Nebraska, interest 

income on the Bonds is exempt from Nebraska state income taxation as long as it is exempt for 

purposes of the federal income tax. 

The scope of our engagement has not extended beyond the examinations and the 

rendering of the opinions expressed herein.  Our engagement with respect to the transaction 

referred to herein terminates upon the date of this letter.  We assume no obligation to review or 

supplement this letter subsequent to its date, whether by reason of a change in current laws, by 

legislative or regulatory action, by judicial decision or for any other reason.   

This opinion is based solely upon existing federal and State of Nebraska laws, 

regulations, rulings and judicial decisions.  We express no opinion as of any subsequent date or 

with respect to any pending legislation.   

Very truly yours, 

[To be signed and delivered at Closing by 

Kutak Rock LLP] 

 

94



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2012 

Department Human Resources 

Action Desired: Approval 

Background: Personnel items: (1) Hire 
 
Options/Alternatives  
Considered: N/A 
 
Recommendations: Approval 

Strategic Plan 

Reference: N/A 

Implications of  
Adoption/Rejection: N/A 
 
Timeline: N/A 

Responsible 
Persons: Jim Sutfin, Ed.D. 
 

   

 

 

Superintendent’s Signature: __________________________________________ 

95

kksullivan
Dr Lutz



October 1, 2012 
 

 
TEACHERS RECOMMENDED FOR HIRE 

 
 
Recommend: the following teachers be hired for the 2012/2013 school year: 
 

1. Megan S. Janda – BA – University of Nebraska, Omaha.  Grade 2 teacher at Holling Heights 
Elementary School for the 2012-2013 school year. 
 
 

96



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

Agenda Item: Summer School Report  

 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2012 

 

Department: Educational Services 

 

Title and Brief  

Description: Summer School Report 

 

Action Desired: Information Only  

Background:   The opportunity to participate in extended school offerings during the 

summer was provided to Pre-K through Grade 12 students. 

Opportunities to continue to develop competency in reading, math, 

and writing skills were offered to all students.  

 A total of 1,472 students attended MPS Summer School, which is an 

increase of 22 students from the previous year. These students had 

more than 1,855 course enrollments, a decline of 11 course 

enrollments from 2011.  

 The 2012 Summer School Program end-of-year financial statements 

reflect a deficit of $3,031.93 when not including the State Aid 

Summer School Allowance for FY12 of $462,047.  This contrasts 

with the 2011 deficit of $3,354.12.  As approved by the Board of 

Education in December, 2011, Rule 6655.1, parents were able to 

utilize an on-line credit card payment and processing company 

(RevTrak).  Fifty-three percent of collected tuition was paid by credit 

card. 

 

Recommendations:   Receive the report 

 

Strategic Plan  

Reference:   Strategies 4, 5 and 6 

 

Timeline:   An annual report for the Board of Education 

 

Responsible Persons:  Dr. Mark Feldhausen, Kara Hutton, Aaron Bearinger, Tassandra 

Little, Amanda Hunt, Andrew DeFreece, Charlene Snyder and  

 Dr. Nancy Johnston  

  

Superintendent’s Approval:   
  

 (Signature) 

97

kksullivan
Dr Lutz



2012 Summer School Data 

  
Elementary 

Elementary Alternate 
Curriculum Program 

Middle Level High School 
6

th
 Grade – Age 21 

Alternate Curriculum 
Program 

  2010 2011 2012 2010 2011 2012 2010 2011 2012 2010 2011 2012 2010 2011 2012 

Courses Held 19 21 20 2 2 1 18 16 18 38 35 36 1 NA 1 

Sections Held 32 38 36 2 2 1 21 20 20 55 47 45 2 NA 1 

Students Enrolled 507 602 604 17 20 10 241 226 256 606 622 599 13 NA 7 

Course Enrollments 507 602 604 17 20 10 326 335 359 891 929 875 13 NA 7 

In-District Tuition $100 $115 $115 $95 $115 $115 $100 $115* $115* $100 $135 $135 $100 NA $135 

In-District  
Non-Public 
Enrollments 

10 15 16 0 1 0 6 0 4 19 4 5 0 NA 0 

Out-of-District 
Tuition $  

$150 $165 $165    $150 $165** $165** $150 $185 $185    

Out-of-District 
Students 

13 8 7    4 5 5 27 21 18    

Free/Reduced Students 105 192 194 0 7 2 41 81 50 71 130 138 0 NA 1 
Free/Reduced  Course 
Enrollments 

105 192 194 0 7 2 73 106 80 111 211 202 0 NA 1 

Course Failures 
         

23 27 29 
   

Graduates 
         

21 12 7 
   

                *In district tuition rate of $115 for 3 week classes.  In district tuition rate of $95 for 1 week class.   

    
  

 **Out of district tuition rate for 3 week class was $165.  Out of district tuition rate for 1 week class was $110. 

      

 
 

 

 

98



 Total student enrollment in Summer School increased to 1,459.  

 

 The total number of course enrollments was 1,838 with 17 additional students 

participating in courses for students with disabilities. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 Tuition rates did not change in 2012, with the exception of the middle school mini-

course, Babysitting Basics.  First-aid and CPR certification fees were included in tuition, 

increasing tuition from $60 to $95 for students who are Millard residents.  Out-of-district 

tuition for this course was $110. 

 

 In 2012 there were 476 course enrollments by students who qualify for free or reduced 

price lunches.  This was 26% of all course enrollments. 

 

 

99



 

ELEMENTARY SUMMER SCHOOL REPORT 
 

The 2012 elementary summer program was held at Neihardt Elementary School.  There were 

twenty, 3-week courses, with 36 sections, held for three hours per day.  Enrollment increased 

slightly from 602 students in 2011 to 604 students in 2012.  Elementary Alternate Curriculum 

Program courses were offered concurrently in June at Neihardt for students with moderate to 

severe disabilities. 

 

Summary Information 

Location:    Neihardt 

Dates:     June 11-June 28, M-Th 

Time:     8:30-11:50 

Administrator:    Amanda Hunt 

Number of Teachers:   36 

Number of Students:   604 

Alternate curriculum students: 10 

 

The following courses (sections) were held during the 3-week summer session: 

Kindergarten Readiness (4) 

Reading and Math Skills 1 (4) 

Reading and Math Skills 2-3 (5) 

Reading and Math Skills 4-5 (3) 

Fizzing Liquids (2) 

Spanish (2) 

Lego Technics and Math Applications (2) 

Earth Habitats (2) 

Computers and the Internet 

Applications for Computers 

Music, Movement and Drama (2) 

Music Explosion 

HAL Math Pentathlon Games (2) 

Creative Writing 

Gravity and Magnetism 

English Language Learners (2)

 

No courses were cancelled in 2012.  However, two grade levels of Spanish were combined. Due 

to interest, an additional section of Earth Habitats was offered. 

  

Points of Special Note: 

 The average daily attendance rate was 96%. 

 57 preschoolers experienced the four Kindergarten Readiness classes.  Fifty-four of these 

students, or 95%, are now in Kindergarten. 

 223 first through fifth grade students participated in reading and math reteaching courses.  

The average class size for these courses was 19 students. 

 131 first through fifth grade students learned more about science in Fizzing Liquids, Lego 

Technics, Earth Habitats, and Gravity and Magnetism. 

 40 students in second through fifth grade enrolled in the HAL Math Pentathlon courses. 

 Two courses were offered for students with Limited English Proficiency. 58 students 

with Limited English Proficiency participated in these courses or the Reading and Math 

Skills courses. 

 The number of students receiving tuition waivers due to eligibility for the free and 

reduced priced lunch program increased from 192 to 194, accounting for 32% of the 

elementary summer school population. 

100



MIDDLE LEVEL SUMMER SCHOOL REPORT 

 

The middle level summer program was offered at Russell Middle School.  Sixteen, 3-week 

courses were offered.  Babysitting Basics was the only mini-course offered and three sections 

were held.  Middle school enrollment increased from 226 in 2011 to 256 in 2012.   

Summary Information 

Location:     Russell Middle School 

Dates:      June 11-June 28, M-Th 

Time:      8:00-11:15, 11:50-3:00 

Administrator:     Tassandra Little 

Number of Teachers:    17 

Number of Students:    256 

Number of Course Enrollments:  359 

 

The following courses were held during the 3 week summer session: 

6 Grade Reading and Writing    6 Grade Master your Math 

6 Grade Be Cool in Middle School   6 Grade Pre-Algebra Prep 

 

7 Grade Reading/Writing     

  

8 Grade Reading/Writing    8 Grade Master your Math 

 

6, 7, 8 Art Expressions    6, 7, 8 Guitar 

6, 7, 8 Computer/Multi-media   6, 7, 8 Digital Art/Photoshop 

6, 7, 8 Intro to Photojournalism   6, 7, 8 Drama 

6, 7, 8 Forensic Science    6, 7, 8 Math Plus (HAL) 

6, 7, 8 Spanish 

 

Mini-courses: One week          

   Babysitting (3 sections)          

        

The following course was offered in the spring, but cancelled due to low enrollment during 

the final week of May:

7 Grade Master your Math

 

Points of Special Note: 

 The daily average number of students eating school lunch was approximately 67 students.  

The daily average number of meals served to students who were eligible for free or 

reduced lunch was 39, or 58%. 

 

 The average daily attendance rate was 95%. 

 

 The number of courses taken which qualified for tuition waivers due to students 

qualifying for the free or reduced price lunch program was 80.  This is 22% of all middle 

school courses taken in 2012. 

 

 142 incoming sixth grade students accounted for 187 course enrollments, or 52% of all 

middle school course enrollments. 

 

101



 Eighty-eight students participated in reading and math reteaching courses.  This is 25% of 

all course enrollments. 

 

 Popular elective courses were:  Math Prep for Pre-Algebra: 24, Art Expressions: 22, Be 

Cool in Middle School: 22, Intro to Photojournalism: 21, 3 sections of Babysitting: 60 

total. 

 

 Forensic Science evolved from a mini-course to a three-week course.  Therefore, 

enrollment in the one-week mini-courses dropped from 70 in 2011 to 60 in 2012.  Sixteen 

students participated in the 3-week Forensic Science course.  
 

 Twenty students dropped one or more courses after June 11
th

, whereas sixteen students 

dropped by the similar date in 2011.  Of the twenty students who dropped, 70% of those 

who dropped qualified for free or reduced price lunches.   
 

 

 

The number of students from each middle school in Millard is reflected below: 

 

School Beadle Andersen Kiewit Russell North Central 

Out of 

District 

& 

Private 

2008 23 10 38 36 21 9 8 

2009 13 12 38 21 38 18 7 

2010 30 33 42 58 41 29 10 

2011 52 35 28 47 38 21 5 

2012 53 29 33 76 34 22 9 

      

*Bold numbers indicate summer school site each year 

 

 

 

 

102



HIGH SCHOOL SUMMER SESSION REPORT 
 

 

The high school program offers students the opportunity to repeat courses they have not yet 

passed, to take courses that may be difficult to schedule during the regular school year, or to take 

courses out of interest, or to work towards completion of graduation requirements.  The program 

was held at Millard West High School from June 11 – July 13, 2012, with a total of 599 students 

participating in 875 course enrollments.    

 

Summary Information 

Location:     Millard West High School 

Dates:      June 11-July 13 

Time:      7:45-10:50, 11:25-2:30 

Administrator:     Aaron Bearinger 

Number of Teachers:               24.5 

Number of Students:    599 

Number of Course Enrollments:  875 

Students with 1 Course:   316 

Students with 2 Courses:   283 

Students with Mini-course:    17 

Students in Alternate Curriculum:  7 

 

The following courses were held during the 5 week summer session: (number of sections) 

English 9, 10 (1st Semester), 11 

Speech (2) 

Creative Writing (2) 

Algebra (2) 

Geometry (2) 

Algebra II 

Physical Science 

Biology 

American History 

World Geography 

US Government & Politics (3) 

Ethnic Studies 

Computer Tech Applications (2) 

Personal Finance (2) 

Foods of the World 

Everyday Living (2) 

Art Foundations 

Color and Design 

Sports Skills and Fitness (2) 

Cross Training (2) 

Lifetime Fitness (3) 

ELO Math 

ACT/SAT Preparation 

 

The courses below were offered in the spring, but cancelled due to low enrollment:  
English 10 - 2

nd
 Semester 

Semester Summer Literacy Enrichment 

Geometry - 1
st
 Semester 

    

Environmental Science 

ELO Science 

ELO Social Studies

Points of Special Note: 

 On average, 78 lunches were served each day at the high school.  The daily average of 

meals served to students who qualify for free or reduced lunch was 35, or 45%. 

 The average daily attendance rate was 96%. 

 The number of courses taken which qualified for tuition waivers due to students 

qualifying for the free or reduced price lunch program was 203.  This is 23% of all high 

school courses taken in 2012. 

 

103



 80 students took a math course for credit recovery and 51 students took an English course 

for credit recovery. 

 Seven students graduated at the end of summer school. Two additional students did not 

complete the requirements.  One student is enrolled at the assigned high school and the 

other is attending Ombudsman. 

 36 students completed the full year courses: Algebra (14), and Geometry (22), in the full-

day, 5-week semester classes. 

 Physical Education classes continue to be very popular.  A third section of Lifetime 

Fitness was added and held at Russell Middle School.   Two hundred eight students took 

a PE course.  This is 24% of all high school course enrollments. 

 Two students participated in the ELO Math Course, one of whom met the cutscore.  

 The number of courses failed in 2012 was 29, including 9 Withdrawal Failures.  This was 

an increase from 27 in 2011. 

 77 courses were dropped after June 11
th

 which was an increase from 50 in 2011.   

Twenty-eight or 36% of the drops were from English and Math courses.   

 

Enrollment from each of the Millard High Schools 

 

 
Incoming 

9
th

 Grade 
MSHS MNHS MWHS Horizon 

Out-of-

District and 

Private 

2008 65 119 212 110 5 30 

2009 88 95 271 76 2 36 

2010 83 96 281 112 8 46 

2011 89 112 266 132 7 25 

2012 84 99 279 107 7 23 

 

104



SUMMER SCHOOL PROGRAM  

CONSIDERATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
 The decrease in out-of district may be contributed to the increase in tuition in 2011.   

 55 Elementary students attended Summer School in June and the Elementary Learning 

Center in July. 

 The elementary program had 604 enrollments and used every available classroom space 

at Neihardt, including the multi-purpose room and small rooms for band and strings.  It 

will be necessary to select future locations purposefully.  It may be appropriate to explore 

the option of using two elementary sites.   

 In 2012 credit cards were accepted for tuition payments through a company called 

RevTrak.   

o 882 courses were purchased, 48% of all 1,855 courses taken in 2012.   

o The amount collected      $97,935.00 

                        Less 3.49%             $3,971.71 

            Total Credit Card income         $93,963.29  

o 53% of all tuition paid was through credit card payments. 

 With the popularity of credit card payments, it would be beneficial to explore the possible 

connections between RevTrak and IC in terms of on-line registration. 

105



 

2012 Summer School Programs Financial Report 
 

Elementary           

         

  Receipts   Expenditures   

         

   Tuition Received $48,865.00  Salary/Benefits $82,006.52 

      Supplies $1,267.43 

      Transportation      $6,005.76 

         

  Elementary Revenue $48,865.00  Elementary Expenditures $89,279.71 

         

          FRPL Tuition Waiver* $22,310.00 

Middle School       

         

  Receipts   Expenditures   

         

   Tuition Received $33,290.00  Salary/Benefits $43,163.38 

      Supplies $761.89 

      Transportation         $794.98 

         

  Middle School Revenue $33,290.00  Middle School Expenditures $44720.25 

         

          FRPL Tuition Waiver* $9,200.00 

High School       

     

Expenditures 

  

  Receipts     

         

   Tuition Received $96,326.00  Salary/Benefits $188,110.92 

   Field Trip Fees      $656.00  Supplies $2369.69 

      Transportation       $6810.59 

        

  High School Revenue $96,982.00  High School Expenditures $195,168.97 

         

          FRPL Tuition Waiver* $27,270.00 

K-12 Summer School Program      

         

  Total Receipts $179,137.00  Total Expenditures $329,168.93 

         

  Strategic Planning Budget $147,000.00     

         

  Total Operating Budget $326,137.00     

              

         

 Note: State Aid Summer School Allowance for FY12  Summer School Balance -$3,031.93 

  was $462,047.06.     

     Total FRPL Tuition Waiver* $58,780.00 

         

     * Cost of Services to FRPL students embedded in 

           expenditure statements   
 

106



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: ACT and SAT 2011-2012 Results

MEETING DATE: October 1, 2012

DEPARTMENT: Educational Services: Assessment, Research, and Evaluation

TITLE AND BRIEF
DESCRIPTION: ACT and SAT 2011-2012 Results

ACTION DESIRED: X Information

BACKGROUND: The District ACT composite average is 23.4, again higher than the state average of
22.0 and national average of 20.9. A District trend line shows a steady increase and/or
maintenance of strong ACT performance consistently out-performing the state and
nation.

RECOMMENDATIONS: None

STRATEGIC PLAN
REFERENCE: None

RESPONSIBLE
PERSONS: Dr. Mark Feldhausen, Dr. Tami Williams, and Sharon Freeman

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL: _____________________________

BOARD ACTION:

107

kksullivan
Dr Lutz



ACT & SAT 
RESULTS 

2011-2012 
 
 
 
                                                                               

 
 
 
 
 

                                                                                     
 
 

Educational Services 
Department of Assessment, Research, and Evaluation 

Fall 2012 
 

108



 

 
INTRODUCTION 

 
 
The American College Test (ACT) and the Scholastic Aptitude Test (SAT I) are widely 
used college admissions tests that are typically taken by high school juniors and seniors.  
Both tests measure skills that students have learned in high school and that they will need 
for academic success in college. 
 
 
ACT 
 
The ACT is a 2 hour and 55 minute test that includes 215 questions.  In 1989 a revised 
version of the ACT was introduced which reflected the changes in high school 
curriculum.  The old test included the four areas of English, mathematics, social studies, 
and natural science.  The new ACT Assessment includes: 
 

English 
75 items/45 minutes 

 
Mathematics 
60 items/60 minutes 

 
Reading 
40 items/35 minutes 

 
Science Reasoning 
40 items/35 minutes 

 
In addition, students receive subtest scores for each of the four tests. 
 
The ACT Writing Test, which measures skill in planning and writing a short essay, is 
optional. 
 
The ACT standard score scale ranges from 1 to 36. 
 
 
SAT 
 
The SAT is a 4 hour mixed method test that includes written response as well as multiple-
choice questions that measure developed verbal and mathematical reasoning abilities as 
well as writing.  The SAT scores are intended to supplement the secondary school record 
and other information about the student in assessing readiness for college-level work.  
Student performance on the SAT is reported on a scale of 200 to 800 on each sub-test. 

109



Average ACT Scores by Level of Academic Preparation

District
2004-05 682 406 58 34 23.7 20.7 24.2 21.0 24.1 21.6 23.6 21.5 24.0 21.4
2005-06 631 424 55 37 23.9 21.1 24.2 21.5 24.4 21.6 23.8 21.6 24.2 21.6
2006-07 564 434 47 36 24.2 21.3 24.7 21.6 24.6 21.9 24.4 21.7 24.6 21.8
2007-08 797 409 63 32 23.9 20.7 24.4 21.2 24.5 21.9 24.0 21.4 24.3 21.4
2008-09 941 350 73 27 24.3 20.7 24.3 20.9 24.6 21.9 23.9 21.2 24.4 21.3
2009-10 938 339 73 26 24.3 20.6 24.2 20.5 24.6 22.0 24.2 20.9 24.5 21.1
2010-11 927 360 72 28 24.0 20.5 24.3 20.4 24.5 21.8 24.2 21.2 24.4 21.1
2011-12 932 351 72 27 24.0 20.4 24.4 20.7 24.4 21.4 24.1 21.3 24.4 21.1

State
2004-05 10,913 4,397 67 27 22.4 19.3 22.5 19.7 22.8 20.1 22.4 20.1 22.6 19.9
2005-06 10,133 4,517 64 28 22.5 19.7 22.4 20.0 23.0 20.6 22.5 20.5 22.7 20.3
2006-07 9,539 4,458 59 28 22.7 19.8 22.6 20.1 23.2 20.8 22.6 20.5 22.9 20.4
2007-08 11,934 3,944 72 24 22.6 19.5 22.6 19.7 23.2 20.6 22.5 20.1 22.8 20.1
2008-09 12,701 3,346 78 21 22.7 19.1 22.5 19.4 23.2 20.1 22.6 19.9 22.9 19.8
2009-10 12,870 3,053 80 19 22.7 18.9 22.3 19.1 23.1 20.1 22.7 19.8 22.8 19.6
2010-11 13,168 3,120 80 19 22.5 18.9 22.3 19.1 22.9 20.0 22.5 19.8 22.7 19.6
2011-12 13,515 2,896 82 17 22.4 18.9 22.3 19.2 22.8 19.9 22.4 19.7 22.6 19.5

National
2004-05 658,430 406,763 56 34 21.6 18.8 21.7 19.1 22.2 19.8 21.7 19.6 21.9 19.5
2005-06 647,298 413,888 54 34 21.6 19.0 21.8 19.4 22.3 20.1 21.7 19.7 22.0 19.7
2006-07 659,603 444,906 51 34 21.7 19.2 21.9 19.6 22.4 20.2 21.8 19.8 22.0 19.8
2007-08 873,743 431,748 61 30 21.6 18.8 21.9 19.3 22.3 19.9 21.6 19.4 22.0 19.5
2008-09 1,039,502 391,458 70 26 21.7 18.3 21.9 18.9 22.3 19.4 21.7 19.2 22.0 19.1
2009-10 1,118,639 397,685 71 25 21.6 18.1 21.9 18.9 22.2 19.2 21.7 19.0 22.0 18.9
2010-11 1,202,164 366,518 74 23 21.5 18.3 21.8 19.0 22.0 19.3 21.6 19.0 21.9 19.0
2011-12 1,259,744 355,849 76 21 21.3 18.3 21.8 19.1 22.0 19.4 21.6 19.1 21.8 19.1

Average ACT Scores for All Graduates

Number Mathematics Sci Reason Composite
District
2004-05 1,186 22.5 22.9 23.1 22.8 23.0
2005-06 1,156 22.8 23.1 23.3 22.9 23.1
2006-07 1,197 23.0 23.3 23.4 23.2 23.4
2007-08 1,265 22.8 23.3 23.6 23.1 23.3
2008-09 1,293 23.3 23.4 23.9 23.2 23.6
2009-10 1,280 23.3 23.2 23.9 23.3 23.6
2010-11 1,294 23.0 23.2 23.7 23.3 23.4
2011-12 1,292 23.0 23.4 23.6 23.3 23.4

State
2004-05 16,220 21.4 21.6 21.9 21.7 21.8
2005-06 15,892 21.5 21.6 22.2 21.8 21.9
2006-07 16,137 21.8 21.8 22.4 21.9 22.1
2007-08 16,573 21.8 21.8 22.5 21.9 22.1
2008-09 16,286 21.9 21.8 22.5 22.0 22.1
2009-10 16,172 21.8 21.6 22.4 22.0 22.1
2010-11 16,461 21.8 21.7 22.3 22.0 22.1
2011-12 16,581 21.8 21.7 22.3 21.9 22.0

National
2004-05 1,186,251 20.4 20.7 21.3 20.9 20.9
2005-06 1,206,455 20.6 20.8 21.4 20.9 21.1
2006-07 1,300,599 20.7 21.0 21.5 21.0 21.2
2007-08 1,421,941 20.6 21.0 21.4 20.8 21.1
2008-09 1,480,469 20.6 21.0 21.4 20.9 21.1
2009-10 1,568,835
2010-11 1,623,112
2011-12 1,666,017

   Number
   Core  /  Less

English Reading

Mathematics
Core  /  Less

English
Core  /  Less

     Percent
Core  /  Less

  Composite
Core  /  Less

 Sci Reason
Core  /  Less

Reading
Core  /  Less

21.120.921.320.5 21.1

20.5 21.0 21.3 21.0
20.6 21.1 21.3

20.9
20.9 21.1

110



English Math Reading Science Comp

Millard 23.0 23.4 23.6 23.3 23.4

Nebraska 21.8 21.7 22.3 21.9 22.0

National 20.5 21.1 21.3 20.9 21.1

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

25.0

Comparison of the ACT Average Scores 
with Other Groups 2011-12

Scores range from 1-36

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

MILLARD 23.0 23.1 23.4 23.3 23.6 23.6 23.4 23.4

NEBRASKA 21.8 21.9 22.1 22.1 22.1 22.1 22.1 22.0

NATIONAL 20.9 21.1 21.2 21.1 21.1 21.0 21.1 21.1

19.5
20.0
20.5
21.0
21.5
22.0
22.5
23.0
23.5
24.0

ACT Composite Scores Over 8 Years 
Millard, Nebraska, and National

2004-
05

2005-
06

2006-
07

2007-
08

2008-
09

2009-
10

2010-
11

2011-
12

Percentage 29% 36% 37% 38% 40% 41% 38% 39%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

Percentage of Millard Students 
Scoring in Top Quartile Nationally

111



2004-
2005

2005-
2006

2006-
2007

2007-
2008

2008-
2009

2009-
2010

2010-
2011

2011-
2012

Percentage 82.20% 77.58% 80.23% 78.47% 74.23% 75.87% 77.76% 77.37%

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

100.00%

Percent of Millard Seniors Taking the ACT 
Over Eight Years

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Millard 58% 55% 47% 63% 73% 73% 72% 72%

Nebraska 67% 64% 59% 72% 78% 80% 80% 82%

National 56% 54% 51% 61% 70% 71% 74% 76%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Percent of ACT Tested Students Who Have 
Taken Core Curriculum

1292 Seniors from the class of 2012 took the ACT

112



2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12

North High 79.90% 80.13% 86.16% 83.81%

South High 64.30% 59.68% 71.46% 72.13%

West High 87.50% 86.47% 87.35% 87.77%

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

100.00%

Percentage of Seniors Taking the ACT Test by 
School 2009-2012

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

North High 59% 69% 72% 72% 73%

South High 63% 69% 66% 67% 63%

West High 67% 80% 79% 74% 79%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Percentage of ACT Tested Students 
Who Have Taken Core Curriculum

113



English Math Reading Science Composite

2011-12 20.8 21.2 21.4 21.7 21.4

2010-11 21.3 21.8 22.5 22.4 22.1

2009-10 21.5 21.6 22.6 22.2 22.1

2008-09 21.7 22.4 22.5 22.6 22.4

2007-08 21.6 22.7 22.8 22.5 22.5

20.0
20.5
21.0
21.5
22.0
22.5
23.0
23.5
24.0
24.5
25.0

South High

English Math Reading Science Composite

2011-12 24.3 24.8 24.8 24.4 24.7

2010-11 23.9 24.2 24.4 24.0 24.3

2009-10 24.0 24.1 24.6 23.8 24.2

2008-09 24.4 24.2 24.9 23.7 24.5

2007-08 23.4 23.6 24.0 23.3 23.7

20.0
20.5
21.0
21.5
22.0
22.5
23.0
23.5
24.0
24.5
25.0

North High

English Math Reading Science Composite

2011-12 23.3 23.5 23.9 23.5 23.7

2010-11 23.4 23.3 23.9 23.2 23.6

2009-10 23.8 23.4 24.0 23.5 23.8

2008-09 23.3 23.2 23.8 23.0 23.5

2007-08 23.1 23.4 23.8 23.3 23.5

20.0
20.5
21.0
21.5
22.0
22.5
23.0
23.5
24.0
24.5
25.0

West High

ACT Average Scores for Five Years

5

114



English Math Reading Science Composite

Core or More 24.0 24.4 24.4 24.1 24.4

Less than Core 20.4 20.7 21.4 21.3 21.1

Total Group 23.0 23.4 23.6 23.3 23.4

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

25.0

30.0

Millard Public Schools Results
2011-12

English Math Reading Science Composite

Core or More 22.4 22.3 22.8 22.4 22.6

Less than Core 18.9 19.2 19.9 19.7 19.5

Total Group 21.8 21.7 22.3 21.9 22.0

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

25.0

30.0

Nebraska Statewide Results
2011-12

115



25

67

46

52

3130

75

51

59

36
39

82

63

67

46

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

All Four English Math Reading Science

Percent of Students Meeting ACT College Readiness Benchmark Scores
2011-12

National Nebraska Millard

ACT College Benchmark score is the minimum score needed on an ACT subject-area test 
to indicate a 50% chance of obtaining a B or higher, or about a 75% chance of obtaining a C 

or higher in the corresponding credit-bearing college course.

116



 

USA NE MPS USA NE MPS USA NE MPS USA NE MPS USA NE MPS USA NE MPS USA NE MPS

All Students 21.1 21.9 23.1 21.2 22.1 23.4 21.1 22.1 23.3 21.1 22.1 23.6 21.0 22.1 23.6 21.1 22.1 23.4 21.1 22.0 23.4

African 
American/ Black

17.1 17.7 19.3 17.0 17.9 20.9 16.9 17.5 21.8 16.9 17.7 20.2 16.9 17.8 20.1 17.0 17.5 19.2 17.0 17.1 19.9

American Indian/ 
Alaska Native

18.8 18.8 21.8 18.9 19.1 25.0 19.0 19.1 ‐ 18.9 19.3 25.0 19.0 19.1 23.0 18.6 18.8 21.5 18.4 17.9 20.0

Caucasian 
American/ White

22.0 22.3 23.3 22.1 22.4 23.3 22.1 22.5 23.3 22.2 22.6 23.7 22.3 22.6 23.6 22.4 22.7 23.5 22.4 22.7 23.6

Hispanic/ Latino 18.6 19.0 21.0 18.7 19.2 22.5 18.7 19.5 22.1 18.7 19.1 20.3 18.6 19.1 23.7 18.7 19.0 21.3 18.9 19.0 20.9

Asian 22.3 21.9 22.6 22.6 22.7 26.3 22.9 22.9 24.6 23.2 22.4 24.4 23.4 23.0 26.4 23.6 22.3 26.9 23.6 22.1 25.5

Native Hawaiian/ 
Pacific Islander

‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ 19.5 17.3 ‐ 19.8 18.1 17.5

Two or More 
Races

‐ ‐ ‐ 21.0 21.6 22.8 20.9 21.3 21.2 21.0 21.5 23.7 21.0 21.2 22.4 21.1 20.8 21.5 21.4 21.6 23.8

Prefer Not to 
Respond/ No 
Response

21.1 21.5 22.5 21.7 22.1 23.5 21.8 21.9 24.1 20.9 21.4 24.6 20.5 20.8 23.0 20.7 22.0 24.1 21.3 22.6 23.6

20122010 20112006 2007 2008 2009

117



 

USA NE MPS USA NE MPS USA NE MPS USA NE MPS USA NE MPS USA NE MPS USA NE MPS

All Students 21.1 21.9 23.1 21.2 22.1 23.4 21.1 22.1 23.3 21.1 22.1 23.6 21.0 22.1 23.6 21.1 22.1 23.4 21.1 22.0 23.4

African 
American/ Black

17.1 17.7 19.3 17.0 17.9 20.9 16.9 17.5 21.8 16.9 17.7 20.2 16.9 17.8 20.1 17.0 17.5 19.2 17.0 17.1 19.9

American Indian/ 
Alaska Native

18.8 18.8 21.8 18.9 19.1 25.0 19.0 19.1 ‐ 18.9 19.3 25.0 19.0 19.1 23.0 18.6 18.8 21.5 18.4 17.9 20.0

Caucasian 
American/ White

22.0 22.3 23.3 22.1 22.4 23.3 22.1 22.5 23.3 22.2 22.6 23.7 22.3 22.6 23.6 22.4 22.7 23.5 22.4 22.7 23.6

Hispanic/ Latino 18.6 19.0 21.0 18.7 19.2 22.5 18.7 19.5 22.1 18.7 19.1 20.3 18.6 19.1 23.7 18.7 19.0 21.3 18.9 19.0 20.9

Asian 22.3 21.9 22.6 22.6 22.7 26.3 22.9 22.9 24.6 23.2 22.4 24.4 23.4 23.0 26.4 23.6 22.3 26.9 23.6 22.1 25.5

Native Hawaiian/ 
Pacific Islander

‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ 19.5 17.3 ‐ 19.8 18.1 17.5

Two or More 
Races

‐ ‐ ‐ 21.0 21.6 22.8 20.9 21.3 21.2 21.0 21.5 23.7 21.0 21.2 22.4 21.1 20.8 21.5 21.4 21.6 23.8

Prefer Not to 
Respond/ No 
Response

21.1 21.5 22.5 21.7 22.1 23.5 21.8 21.9 24.1 20.9 21.4 24.6 20.5 20.8 23.0 20.7 22.0 24.1 21.3 22.6 23.6

20122010 20112006 2007 2008 2009

118



Critical Reading Math Writing
Millard 610 619 591
Nebraska 576 585 562
National 496 514 488

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

SAT SCORES 2011-2012

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
# Tested 152 157 127 106 110 105 111 139

0
20
40
60
80

100
120
140
160
180

Number of Millard Students 
Taking the SAT Over Eight Years

8.32% of 2011-12 seniors took the SAT

119



2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Millard 579 575 585 581 591 596 591

Nebraska 566 562 566 570 568 569 562

National 497 494 493 492 491 489 488

0
100
200
300
400
500
600
700

SAT Writing Scores
Since Inception

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Millard 606 599 606 605 616 618 616 619

Nebraska 579 583 585 584 592 592 591 585

National 520 518 515 514 514 515 514 514

0
100
200
300
400
500
600
700

SAT Math Scores 
Over Eight Years

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Millard 597 593 582 590 596 597 608 610

Nebraska 574 576 579 579 585 583 585 576

National 508 503 502 500 499 500 497 496

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

SAT Critical Reading Scores 
Over Eight Years

120



Critical
Reading

Math Writing

North High 630 640 618

South High 572 557 546

West High 584 598 578

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

2010-11 Scores 

77

13

49

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

North High South High West High

Number of Students Taking the SAT 
by School 2011-12

Critical
Reading

Math Writing

North High 621 637 608

South High 552 575 534

West High 607 602 580

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

2011-12 Scores

SAT Scores by School

121



September 20, 2012
Millard Public Schools

Total Enrollment

SpEd

Cluster Current Current YTD Official 12/13

Elementary K 1 2 3 4 5 Prgm Total Change Change Enrollment

Abbott (3 unit) 64 66 67 69 87 70 423  --  --  --

Ackerman (4 unit) 62 79 67 84 92 101 485  --  --  --

Aldrich (3 unit) 80 67 71 91 71 68 448  --  --  --

Black Elk (4 unit) 51 59 79 93 83 95 460  --  --  --

Bryan (3 unit) 56 65 55 63 67 62 368  --  --  --

Cather (3 unit) 68 64 74 75 71 82 434  --  --  --

Cody (2 unit) 24 37 35 30 28 29 14 197  --  --  --

Cottonwood (3 unit) 45 53 71 59 57 61 346  --  --  --

Disney (3 unit) 44 58 44 36 44 46 13 285  --  --  --

Ezra Millard (3 unit) 63 70 62 62 67 70 10 404  --  --  --

Harvey Oaks (2 unit) 39 44 43 50 46 47 269  --  --  --

Hitchcock (2 unit) 30 46 37 39 31 30 10 223  --  --  --

Holling Heights (3 unit) 61 60 62 69 68 63 14 397  --  --  --

Montclair (4 unit) 83 86 91 84 83 80 507  --  --  --

Morton (3 unit) 33 46 56 57 50 61 11 314  --  --  --

Neihardt (4 unit) 88 76 77 102 86 95 524  --  --  --

Norris (3 unit) 58 58 62 67 58 54 357  --  --  --

Reagan (4 unit) 138 132 126 113 125 115 749  --  --  --

Reeder (3 unit) 101 88 107 97 72 94 13 572  --  --  --

Rockwell (3 unit) 52 56 53 53 57 50 9 330  --  --  --

Rohwer (3 unit) 46 69 64 71 67 84 14 415  --  --  --

Sandoz (3 unit) 49 69 43 54 53 49 317  --  --  --

Upchurch   (3 unit) 114 99 107 115 85 73 593  --  --  --

Wheeler (4 unit) 77 93 79 99 102 107 23 580  --  --  --

Willowdale (3 unit) 58 56 64 65 66 71 380  --  --  --

Totals 1584 1696 1696 1797 1716 1757 131 10377  --  --  --

SpEd Official 12/13

Middle 6 7 8 Prgm* Total Change Change Enrollment

Andersen MS 323 276 266 0 865  --  --  --

Beadle MS 397 359 330 23 1086  --  --  --

Central MS 255 245 255 24 755  --  --  --

Kiewit MS 313 309 310 0 932  --  --  --

North MS 263 259 241 18 763  --  --  --

Russell MS 290 293 291 0 874  --  --  --

MS Alternative 0 7 9 0 16  --  --  --

Totals 1841 1748 1702 65 5291  --  --  --

High 9 10 11 12  --  --  --

North HS 624 620 597 611 17 2452  --  --  --

South HS 524 511 496 492 43 2023  --  --  --

West HS 567 608 603 532 35 2310  --  --  --

Horizon HS 0 0 24 88 0 112  --  --  --

Totals 1715 1739 1720 1723 95 6897  --  --  --

*Sped Program Included in MS/HS Grade Level totals Contracted SPED 36  --  --  --

Young Adult Program 52  --  --  --

Preschool SPED Total Ombudsman (Primary) 21  --  --  --

Bryan 8 28 36 Total District K-12 22674  --  --  --

Cody 57 37 94 Total District PreK-12 23348  --  --  --

Cody Early Start 5 9 14
Disney 18 12 30
Hitchcock 31 12 43 Elementary Elementary 10418

Holling Heights 0 20 20  Middle School 5291 Middle Sch 5078

Montclair 24 9 33 High School 6897 High Sch 6809

Montclair Montessori 2 80 82 Contracted 36 Contracted 49

Neihardt 6 55 61 Young Adult 52 Young Adult 50

Norris ELL 2 16 18 Ombudsman (Primary) 21 Ombudsman (Primary) 14

Norris Montessori 0 30 30   TOTAL 22674   TOTAL 22418

Rockwell 0 17 17
Sandoz 14 5 19
Sandoz ELL 2 34 36
Wheeler 31 14 45
Homebased Infants 96 0 96
TOTAL 674

Career Academies NHS SHS WHS HHS TOTAL

Culinary 9 8 7 24

Education 13 13 24 50

Entrepreneurship 3 7 15 25

Finance 4 1 5 10

Health Sciences 24 22 37 83

Dist/Log Mgmt 1 1 10 3 15

Ombudsman  (Primary and Secondary Assignment) 35

9/20/2012 9/20/2011

10377

Not SPED

22,418
22,676 22,674

19,000

19,500

20,000

20,500

21,000

21,500

22,000

22,500

23,000

Sep '11 Aug '12 Sep '12

K-12 Enrollment 2012-13

122



Elementary Classroom Enrollment Class

Current Current YTD Official 12/13 Size W/out

K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment SPED

Abbott 22 23 22 23 22 23
22 22 22 23 21 23
20 21 23 23 22 24

22
Total Students 64 66 67 69 87 70 423  --  --  -- 423
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 4 3 19 19
Classroom Avg 21.33 22.00 22.3 23.0 21.7 23.3 22 22

Current Current YTD Official 12/13
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Ackerman 21 20 22 19 22 26
21 20 23 23 23 24
20 19 22 22 24 26

20 20 23 25

Total Students 62 79 67 84 92 101 485  --  --  -- 485
Total Teachers 3 4 3 4 4 4 22 22
Classroom Avg 20.7 19.8 22.3 21.0 23.0 25.3 22 22

Current Current YTD Official 12/13
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Aldrich 21 22 23 22 24 21
19 22 24 22 24 24
19 23 24 23 23 23
21 24

Total Students 80 67 71 91 71 68 448  --  --  -- 448
Total Teachers 4 3 3 4 3 3 20 20
Classroom Avg 20.0 22.3 24.0 22.8 23.7 22.7 22 22

Current Current YTD Official 12/13
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Black Elk 26 20 27 24 20 24
25 19 26 24 21 24

20 26 23 21 23
22 21 24

Total Students 51 59 79 93 83 95 460  --  --  -- 460
Total Teachers 2 3 3 4 4 4 20 20
Classroom Avg 25.5 19.7 26.3 23.3 20.8 23.8 23 23

Current Current YTD Official 12/13
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Bryan 19 21 19 22 21 21
19 22 18 21 23 21
18 22 18 20 23 20

Total Students 56 65 55 63 67 62 368  --  --  -- 368
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 3 3 18 18
Classroom Avg 18.7 21.7 18.3 21.0 22.3 20.7 20 20

Current Current YTD Official 12/13
K 1 2 3 4 5 C-K C-1 C-2 C-3 C-4 C-5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Cather 23 20 24 24 22 16 22 23 13 25 24 16
13 25 23 21 24 26 25 25

Total Students 23 20 37 24 22 41 45 44 37 51 49 41 434  --  --  -- 434
Total Teachers 1 1 2 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 20 20
Classroom Avg 23.0 20.0 18.5 24.0 22.0 20.5 22.5 22.0 18.5 25.5 24.5 20.5 22 22

SpEd Current Current YTD Official 12/13
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Cody 12 19 18 14 14 15 7
12 18 17 16 14 14 7

Total Students 24 37 35 30 28 29 14 197  --  --  -- 183
Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 14 12
Classroom Avg 12.0 18.5 17.5 15.0 14.0 14.5 7.0 14 15

Current Current YTD Official 12/13
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Cottonwood 22 17 23 20 19 20
23 18 24 18 19 20

18 24 21 19 21

Total Students 45 53 71 59 57 61 346  --  --  -- 346
Total Teachers 2 3 3 3 3 3 17 17
Classroom Avg 22.5 17.7 23.7 19.7 19.0 20.3 20 20

SpEd Current Current YTD Official 12/13
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Disney 21 18 22 18 22 23 6
23 21 22 18 22 23 7

19

Total Students 44 58 44 36 44 46 13 285  --  --  -- 272
Total Teachers 2 3 2 2 2 2 2 15 13
Classroom Avg 22.00 19.33 22.00 18.00 22.00 23.00 6.5 19 21

123



Class

SpEd Current Current YTD Official 12/13 Size W/out

K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment SPED

Ezra Millard 22 22 21 22 23 24 4
21 24 21 22 21 22 6
20 24 20 18 23 24

Total Students 63 70 62 62 67 70 10 404  --  --  -- 394
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 20 18
Classroom Avg 21.0 23.3 20.7 20.7 22.3 23.3 5.0 20 22

Current Current YTD Official 12/13
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Harvey Oaks 20 22 22 25 24 23
19 22 21 25 22 24

Total Students 39 44 43 50 46 47 269  --  --  -- 269
Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 2 12 12
Classroom Avg 19.5 22.0 21.5 25.0 23.0 23.5 22 22

SpEd Current Current YTD Official 12/13
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Hitchcock 16 22 18 19 16 15 5
14 24 19 20 15 15 5

Total Students 30 46 37 39 31 30 10 223  --  --  -- 213
Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 14 12
Classroom Avg 15.0 23.0 18.5 19.5 15.5 15.0 5.0 16 18

SpEd Current Current YTD Official 12/13
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Holling Heights 22 21 20 24 21 22 7
21 20 20 24 24 21 7
18 19 22 21 23 20

Total Students 61 60 62 69 68 63 14 397  --  --  -- 383
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 20 18
Classroom Avg 20.3 20.0 20.7 23.0 22.7 21.0 7.0 20 21

Current Current YTD Official 12/13
K 1 2 3 4 5 M-K M1-3 M4-5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Montclair 17 19 22 20 23 20 16 23 16
18 19 22 21 24 19 16 23 19

16 24 20
22 22
23
23

Total Students 35 38 44 41 47 39 48 138 77 507  --  --  -- 507
Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 6 4 25 25
Classroom Avg 17.5 19.0 22.0 20.5 23.5 19.5 16.0 23.0 19.3 20 20

SpEd Current Current YTD Official 12/13
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Morton 16 22 19 20 24 22 4
17 24 19 19 26 21 7

18 18 18

Total Students 33 46 56 57 50 61 11 314  --  --  -- 303
Total Teachers 2 2 3 3 2 3 2.0 17 15
Classroom Avg 16.5 24.0 18.7 19.0 25.0 20.3 5.5 18 20

Current Current YTD Official 12/13
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Neihardt 23 19 19 25 22 23
22 19 19 26 21 24
21 19 19 26 22 24
22 19 20 25 21 24

Total Students 88 76 77 102 86 95 524  --  --  -- 524
Total Teachers 4 4 4 4 4 4 24 24
Classroom Avg 22.0 19.0 19.3 25.5 21.5 23.8 22 22

Current Current YTD Official 12/13
K 1 2 3 4 5 M-K M1-3 M4-5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Norris 17 18 18 23 21 22 12 22 14
18 19 20 23 19 23 11 22 13

22

Total Students 35 37 38 46 40 45 23 66 27 357  --  --  -- 357
Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 2 19 19
Classroom Avg 17.5 18.5 19.0 23.0 20.0 22.5 11.5 22.0 13.5 19 19

Current Current YTD Official 12/13
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Reagan 24 22 25 26 24 23
24 23 25 25 25 23
23 22 25 26 26 23
23 22 25 18 26 23
24 23 26 18 24 23
20 20

Total Students 138 132 126 113 125 115 749  --  --  -- 749
Total Teachers 6 6 5 5 5 5 32 32
Classroom Avg 23.0 22.4 25.2 22.6 25.0 23.0 23 23

124



SpEd Current Current YTD Official 12/13
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Reeder 20 21 22 23 24 24 7
21 22 21 24 24 23 6
22 23 21 25 24 23
20 22 21 25 24
18 22

Total Students 101 88 107 97 72 94 13 572  --  --  -- 559
Total Teachers 5 4 5 4 3 4 2 27 25
Classroom Avg 21.0 22.0 21.3 23.5 24.0 23.3 8.0 21 22

SpEd Current Current YTD Official 12/13
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Rockwell 18 19 16 27 19 24 5
17 18 19 26 19 26 4
17 19 18 19

Total Students 52 56 53 53 57 50 9 330  --  --  -- 321
Total Teachers 3 3 3 2 3 2 4 20 16
Classroom Avg 17.3 18.5 17.5 26.5 19.0 25.0 8.0 17 20

SpEd Current Current YTD Official 12/13
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Rohwer 23 22 23 24 23 21 7
23 23 21 24 21 20 7

24 20 23 23 22
21

Total Students 46 69 64 71 67 84 14 415  --  --  -- 401
Total Teachers 2 3 3 3 3 4 2 20 18
Classroom Avg 23.0 23.0 21.3 23.7 22.3 21.0 8.0 21 22

Current Current YTD Official 12/13
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Sandoz 16 24 22 18 27 16
16 22 21 18 26 15
17 23 18 18

Total Students 49 69 43 54 53 49 317  --  --  -- 317
Total Teachers 3 3 2 3 2 3 16 16
Classroom Avg 16.3 23.0 21.5 18.0 26.5 16.3 20 20

Current Current YTD Official 12/13
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Upchurch 24 25 22 25 21 24
23 24 22 22 21 25
22 25 21 25 22 24
24 25 21 19 21
21 21 24

Total Students 114 99 107 115 85 73 593  --  --  -- 593
Total Teachers 5 4 5 5 4 3 26 26
Classroom Avg 22.8 24.8 21.4 23.0 21.3 24.3 23 23

SpEd Current Current YTD Official 12/13
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Wheeler 17 22 19 26 26 29 8
20 25 19 25 23 27 8
19 24 22 22 27 25 7
21 22 19 26 26 26

Total Students 77 93 79 99 102 107 23 580  --  --  -- 557
Total Teachers 4 4 4 4 4 4 3 27 24
Classroom Avg 19.3 23.3 19.8 24.3 25.5 26.8 7.7 21 23

Current Current YTD Official 12/13
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Willowdale 20 19 20 22 22 24
19 18 22 22 22 23
19 19 22 21 22 24

Total Students 58 56 64 65 66 71 380  --  --  -- 380
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 3 3 18 18
Classroom Avg 19.3 18.7 21.3 21.7 22.0 23.7 21 21

Elementary Totals SpEd Current Current YTD Official 12/13
Grade K 1 2 3 4 5 M-1 M-2 M-3  M-4 M-5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment
Students 1584 1696 1696 1797 1716 1757 69 71 64 54 50 131 10377  --  --  -- 10246
Teachers 80 77 77 78 75 77 9 6 23 502 479
Classroom Avg 19.8 22.0 22.0 23.0 22.9 22.8 5.7 20.67 21.390

SpEd Current Current YTD Official 12/13
6 7 8 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Andersen MS 323 276 266 0 865  --  --  --
Beadle MS 397 359 330 23 1086  --  --  --
Central MS 255 245 255 24 755  --  --  --
Kiewit MS 313 309 310 0 932  --  --  --
North MS 263 259 241 18 763  --  --  --
Russell MS 290 293 291 0 874  --  --  --
MS Alternative 0 7 9 16  --  --  --
Totals 1841 1748 1702 65 5291  --  --  --

9 10 11 12
North HS 624 620 597 611 17 2452  --  --  --
South HS 524 511 496 492 43 2023  --  --  --
West HS 567 608 603 532 35 2310  --  --  --
Horizon HS 0 0 24 88 112  --  --  --
Totals 1715 1739 1720 1723 95 6897  --  --  --

Contracted SPED 36  --  --  --
Young Adult Program 52  --  --  --
Ombudsman (Primary Enrollment) 21  --  --  --

Total District Enrollment 22674  --  --  --

125


	Board Packet October 1, 2012
	Agenda October 1, 2012
	Administrative Memorandum October 1, 2012
	E.1. Approval of Board of Education Minutes September 17, 2012
	Financials
	Check Register
	Surplus
	E.4. Summary of Board Committee of the Whole Meeting
	H.1. Approval of Suprintendent Goals for 2012-2013
	H.2. Reaffirm Policy 6040 - Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - Ceremonies and Observances
	H.3. Approval of Rule 6040.1 Curriculum, Instruction, & Assessment - Ceremonies & Observances - Flag Salute & Treatment
	H.4. Approval of Rule 6040.2 Curriculum, Instruction, & Assessment - Ceremonies & Observances - Pledge of Allegiance
	H.5. Reaffirm Policy 6920 Curriculum, Instruction, & Assessment -  Community Resources
	H.6. Approval of Rule 7305.1 - Technology - Web Publishing & Social Media
	H.7. Adoption of Resolution Regarding Bond Refunding
	H.8. Approval of Personnel Action
	New Hire
	I.1. Summer School 2012 Report
	I.2 ACT, SAT 2011-2012 Results
	I.3. Enrollment Report



